
 

 

TRANSPORTATION POLICY BOARD MEETING 
Monday, September 9, 2019 

Room 3.102, Joe C. Thompson Center, University of Texas Campus 

Red River and Dean Keeton Streets, Austin, Texas 

6:00 p.m. 
 

REVISED AGENDA 
WATCH CAMPO LIVE: www.campotexas.org/livestream 

 

 

1. Certification of Quorum – Quorum requirement is 11 members…………….……Chair Steve Adler  
 

2. Public Comments 
Comments are limited to topics not on the agenda but may directly or indirectly affect transportation in the 

CAMPO geographic area.  Up to 10 individuals may sign up to speak – each of whom must contact the 

CAMPO office by 4:30 p.m., Monday, September 9, 2019. 

  

3. Chair Announcements ………………………………………………………….…Chair Steve Adler  
 

4. Report from the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Chair…………………… Mr. Mike Hodge 

Mr. Hodge will provide an overview of TAC discussion items and recommendations to the Transportation 

Policy Board. 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, the Board may recess into a closed meeting (an executive 

session) to deliberate any item on this agenda if the Chairman announces the item will be deliberated in 

executive session and identifies the section or sections of Chapter 551 that authorize meeting in executive 

session. A final action, decision, or vote on a matter deliberated in executive session will be made only after the 

Board reconvenes in an open meeting. 

 

5. Executive Session ………………………………………….……………….……. Chair Steve Adler 
The Transportation Policy Board will recess to an Executive Session, if necessary. 

 
 

ACTION:  

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO COMMENT ON ITEMS 6-10 IN THE SECTION BELOW.   
 

6. Discussion and Approval of June 10, 2019 Meeting Summary 

 ............................................................................................................... Mr. Ashby Johnson, CAMPO 
Mr. Johnson will present the June 10, 2019 meeting summary and request Transportation Policy Board 

approval. 
 

7. Discussion and Approval of Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) Amendments 

A. FY 2018 & 2019 UPWP Amendment #6 

B. FY 2020 & 2021 UPWP Amendment #1 

........................................................................................................ Ms. Theresa Hernandez, CAMPO 
Ms. Hernandez will present UPWP Amendments for FY 2018 & 2019 and FY 2020 & 2021 with 

accompanying Resolution 2019-9-7A and Resolution 2019-9-7B and request approval by the 

Transportation Policy Board. 

http://www.campotexas.org/livestream


 

Transportation Policy Board Agenda – September 9, 2019 Page 2

  

 

 

 

 

8. Discussion and Adoption of Regional Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Plan 

....................................................................................................................... Mr. Nirav Ved, CAMPO 
Mr. Ved will present the Regional Transportation Demand Management Plan with accompanying 

Resolution 2019-9-9 and request adoption by the Transportation Policy Board. 

 

9. Discussion and Approval of Proposed Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Policy and 

Allocation of Remaining Funds in Transportation Demand Management Category 

............................................................................................................... Mr. Ashby Johnson, CAMPO  
Mr. Johnson will initiate a discussion for potential Transportation Policy Board approval of a proposed 

TDM Policy and request potential allocation of $498,720 in the TDM Transportation Improvement Program 

(TIP) category. 

 

10. Discussion and Approval of Transfer of Ownership, Operations and Maintenance of Commute 

Solutions Program to CAMPO………………………………………...Mr. Ashby Johnson, CAMPO 
Mr. Johnson will initiate a discussion for Transportation Policy Board approval of the transfer of 

ownership, operations, and maintenance of the Commute Solutions Program from the Capital Area Council 

of Governments (CAPCOG) and approval of an Interlocal Agreement on CAMPO-CAPCOG activities. 
 

 

INFORMATION: 

    
 

11. Discussion on Potentially Adding the City of Kyle as a Non-Voting Member of the Transportation 

Policy Board………...…………………………………... Mr. Tim Tuggey, CAMPO Legal Counsel 
Mr. Tuggey will brief the Policy Board on Kyle’s request to join the Transportation Policy Board. The 

Transportation Policy Board will also discuss the potential of adding Kyle as a non-voting member. 

 

12. Discussion on 2019-2022 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Fall Amendment Cycle 

................................................................................................................... Mr. Ryan Collins, CAMPO 
Mr. Collins will provide an overview of the 2019-2022 TIP fall amendment cycle. 

 

13. Executive Director’s Report on Transportation Planning Activities 

a.  Update on Unified Transportation Program/IH 35 Project 

b.   Update on 2045 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 

c. Report on FY 2018 Audit Finding Results 

d.   2020 Transportation Policy Board Meeting Schedule 

e.   2020 Technical Advisory Committee Meeting Schedule 

 

14. Announcements 

a. Next Technical Advisory Committee Meeting – September 23, 2019 

b. Next Transportation Policy Board Meeting – October 7, 2019 
 

15. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 



 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Transportation Policy Board 

Meeting Summary  

June 10, 2019 

 

 

1. Certification of Quorum – Quorum requirement is 11 members............................................. Chair Steve Adler 

The CAMPO Transportation Policy Board was called to order by the Chair at 6:03 p.m. 

The roll was taken and a quorum was announced present. 

 

 Member Representing 
Member 

Attending 

Alternate 

Attending 

1 Steve Adler, Chair Mayor, City of Austin Y  

2 
Cynthia Long, 

Vice Chair 
Commissioner, Williamson County Y  

3 Alison Alter City of Austin, District 10 Y  

4 Clara Beckett Commissioner, Bastrop County N Commissioner Cynthia Long 

5 Gerald Daugherty Commissioner, Travis County Y  

6 Sarah Eckhardt Judge, Travis County N Mayor Steve Adler 

7 Tucker Ferguson, P.E. TxDOT-Austin District Y  

8 Jimmy Flannigan City of Austin, District 6 Y  

9 Victor Gonzales Mayor, City of Pflugerville Y  

10 Jane Hughson Mayor, City of San Marcos Y  

11 Mark Jones Commissioner, Hays County Y  

12 Ann Kitchen City of Austin, District 5 Y  

13 Terry Mitchell Capital Metro Board Member Y  

14 Craig Morgan Mayor, City of Round Rock Y  

15 James Oakley Judge, Burnet County Y  

16 Dale Ross Mayor, City of Georgetown Y  

17 Brigid Shea Commissioner, Travis County Y  

18 Edward Theriot Commissioner, Caldwell County Y  

19 Jeffrey Travillion Commissioner, Travis County  Y  

20 Corbin Van Arsdale Mayor, City of Cedar Park Y  

 

 

 



CAMPO Transportation Policy Board Meeting June 10, 2019 

Meeting Summary Page 2 of 10 

 

 

 

 

For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/. 

 

2. Public Comments 

 

The Chair recognized the following individuals whom offered public comments.  

1. Mr. Richard Reeves, Private Citizen 

2. Mr. Roger Baker, Private Citizen 

3. Mr. Dick Kallerman, Private Citizen 

 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/4/. 

 

 

3. Chair Announcements ............................................................................................................ Chair Steve Adler 

 

The Chair recognized Mr. Ashby Johnson, Executive Director of CAMPO who provided a brief summary of the 

CAMPO Primer Package as included in the meeting materials. 

 

The Chair briefly discussed a strategic planning process for CAMPO as indicated in an outline included in the 

meeting materials. 

 

The Chair provided clarification on the expectation and performance evaluation for the CAMPO Executive 

Director. 

 

The Chair also welcomed new board member and District Engineer for the TxDOT Austin District, Mr. Tucker 

Ferguson, P.E.   

 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/5/. 

 

 

4.   Report from the Technical Advisory Committee Chair ..........................................................Mr. Mike Hodge  

 

In the absence of the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Chair, Vice Chair Julia Cleary provided an overview 

of the discussions from the May 20, 2019 meeting.  Vice Chair Cleary reported that the TAC took action to 

recommend approval of the 2020-2021 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) subject to the removal of the US 

77 Feasibility Study and additional wording changes.  The TAC also took action to recommend approval of the 

Luling Transportation Study.  Vice Chair Cleary highlighted discussions on the preliminary results of the Regional 

Arterials Study and MoKan Northeast Subregional Plan.  The TAC received notification of the potential 

cancellation of the 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Call for Projects.  The TAC also 

received a status report from the Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) regarding the status of its 

Commute Solutions Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Program and online Rideshare and Transit Tool. 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/6/. 

 

 

5.   Executive Session ..................................................................................................................... Chair Steve Adler 

 

An Executive Session was not convened. 

 

 

 

http://www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/


CAMPO Transportation Policy Board Meeting June 10, 2019 

Meeting Summary Page 3 of 10 

 

 

 

 

For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/. 

 

6.   Discussion and Approval of May 6, 2019 Meeting Summary 

There were no public comments on the May 6, 2019 meeting summary. 

The Chair recognized Mr. Ashby Johnson who presented the May 6, 2019 meeting summary. 

The Chair entertained a motion for approval of May 6, 2019 meeting summary. 

Mayor Craig Morgan moved for approval of the meeting summary. 

Mayor Victor Gonzales seconded the motion. 

 

The motion prevailed unanimously. 

 

Ayes:  Mayor Steve Adler (Proxy for Judge Sarah Eckhardt), Council Member Alison Alter, Commissioner Gerald 

Daugherty, Mr. Tucker Ferguson, P.E., Council Member Jimmy Flannigan, Mayor Victor Gonzales, Mayor Jane 

Hughson, Commissioner Mark Jones, Council Member Ann Kitchen, Commissioner Cynthia Long (Proxy for 

Commissioner Clara Beckett), Mr. Terry Mitchell, Mayor Craig Morgan, Judge James Oakley,  Mayor Dale Ross, 

Commissioner Brigid Shea, Commissioner Edward Theriot, Commissioner Jeffrey Travillion, and Mayor Corbin 

Van Arsdale 

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None 

Absent and Not Voting:  None  

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/8/.  

 

 

 7.   Discussion and Adoption of 2020-2021 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)  

There were no public comments on the adoption of the 2020-2021 UPWP. 

The Chair recognized Ms. Theresa Hernandez, Finance & Administration Manager who presented the final draft 

2020-2021 UPWP for adoption by the Transportation Policy Board.  Ms. Hernandez informed the Board that the 

draft document was presented to the Technical Advisory Committee at its May 20, 2019 meeting.  The TAC 

requested two (2) modifications of which were incorporated into the final draft document, as presented. 

 

Chair Adler entertained a motion for adoption of the 2020-2021 UPWP with accompanying Resolution 2019-6-7. 

 

Council Member Jimmy Flannigan moved for approval. 

 

Commissioner Gerald Daugherty seconded the motion. 

 

The motion prevailed unanimously. 

 

 

http://www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/


CAMPO Transportation Policy Board Meeting June 10, 2019 

Meeting Summary Page 4 of 10 

 

 

 

 

For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/. 

 

Ayes:  Mayor Steve Adler (Proxy for Judge Sarah Eckhardt), Council Member Alison Alter, Commissioner Gerald 

Daugherty, Mr. Tucker Ferguson, P.E., Council Member Jimmy Flannigan, Mayor Victor Gonzales, Mayor Jane 

Hughson, Commissioner Mark Jones, Council Member Ann Kitchen, Commissioner Cynthia Long (Proxy for 

Commissioner Clara Beckett), Mr. Terry Mitchell, Mayor Craig Morgan, Judge James Oakley,  Mayor Dale Ross,  

Commissioner Brigid Shea, Commissioner Edward Theriot, Commissioner Jeffrey Travillion, and Mayor Corbin 

Van Arsdale 

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None 

Absent and Not Voting:  None 

The motion prevailed unanimously. 

 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/9/. 

 

 

8.  Discussion and Approval of Transportation Development Credit (TDC) Applications for FY 2018 Federal 

Transit Administration (FTA) 5310 Funding Awards 

 

There were no public comments on the approval of TDC applications for FY 2018 FTA 5310 funding awards.   

The Chair recognized Mr. Ryan Collins, Short Range Planning Manager who provided a brief overview of the  

FTA Section 5310 Program.  Mr. Collins informed the Board that CAMPO received two (2) applications for TDCs 

from the most recent Call for Projects, as presented in the meeting materials.   

The Chair entertained a motion for approval of the TDC applications for FY 2018 FTA 5310 funding awards as 

presented with accompanying Resolution 2019-6-8. 

Judge James Oakley moved for approval. 

Commissioner Edward Theriot seconded the motion. 

The motion prevailed unanimously.   

Ayes:  Mayor Steve Adler (Proxy for Judge Sarah Eckhardt), Council Member Alison Alter, Commissioner Gerald 

Daugherty, Mr. Tucker Ferguson, P.E., Council Member Jimmy Flannigan, Mayor Victor Gonzales, Mayor Jane 

Hughson, Commissioner Mark Jones, Council Member Ann Kitchen, Commissioner Cynthia Long (Proxy for 

Commissioner Clara Beckett), Mr. Terry Mitchell, Mayor Craig Morgan, Judge James Oakley,  Mayor Dale Ross, 

Commissioner Brigid Shea, Commissioner Edward Theriot, Commissioner Jeffrey Travillion, and Mayor Corbin 

Van Arsdale 

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None 

 

http://www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/


CAMPO Transportation Policy Board Meeting June 10, 2019 

Meeting Summary Page 5 of 10 

 

 

 

 

For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/. 

 

Absent and Not Voting:  None 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/10/. 

 

 

9.  Discussion and Approval of Allocation of Transportation Set-Aside Funding to TxDOT for Shared Use 

Path at US 290 and SH 130 

There were no public comments on the approval of the allocation of Transportation Set-Aside (TASA) funding to 

TxDOT for the shared use path at US 290 and SH 130. 

The Chair recognized Mr. Ryan Collins who provided a brief overview of the TASA Program, funding background, 

and the Shared Use Path Bridge at US 290 and SH 130 Project layout.   

Mr. Collins informed the Board that approximately $1,069,919.71 in Transportation Set-Aside funding must be 

obligated before the end of FY 2019, September 30, 2019 or returned for redistribution. 

The Chair entertained a motion for approval of the allocation of Transportation Set-Aside funding to TxDOT for 

the shared use path at US 290 and SH 130 with accompanying Resolution 2019-6-9. 

Judge James Oakley moved for approval. 

Commissioner Gerald Daugherty seconded the motion. 

The motion prevailed unanimously.   

Ayes:  Mayor Steve Adler (Proxy for Judge Sarah Eckhardt), Council Member Alison Alter, Commissioner Gerald 

Daugherty, Mr. Tucker Ferguson, P.E., Council Member Jimmy Flannigan, Mayor Victor Gonzales, Mayor Jane 

Hughson, Commissioner Mark Jones, Council Member Ann Kitchen, Commissioner Cynthia Long (Proxy for 

Commissioner Clara Beckett), Mr. Terry Mitchell, Mayor Craig Morgan, Judge James Oakley,  Mayor Dale Ross, 

Commissioner Brigid Shea, Commissioner Edward Theriot, Commissioner Jeffrey Travillion, and Mayor Corbin 

Van Arsdale 

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None 

Absent and Not Voting:  None 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/11/. 

 

 

10.  Discussion and Acceptance of Luling Transportation Study 

There were no public comments on the acceptance of the Luling Transportation Study. 

The Chair recognized Mr. Nirav Ved, Special Assistant to the CAMPO Executive Director who presented the 

Luling Transportation Study for acceptance by the Transportation Policy Board.     

 

http://www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/


CAMPO Transportation Policy Board Meeting June 10, 2019 

Meeting Summary Page 6 of 10 

 

 

 

 

For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/. 

 

The Chair entertained a motion for acceptance of the Luling Transportation Study. 

Commissioner Edward Theriot moved for approval. 

Commissioner Mark Jones seconded the motion. 

The motion prevailed unanimously.   

Ayes:  Mayor Steve Adler (Proxy for Judge Sarah Eckhardt), Council Member Alison Alter, Commissioner Gerald 

Daugherty, Mr. Tucker Ferguson, P.E., Council Member Jimmy Flannigan, Mayor Victor Gonzales, Mayor Jane 

Hughson, Commissioner Mark Jones, Council Member Ann Kitchen, Commissioner Cynthia Long (Proxy for 

Commissioner Clara Beckett), Mr. Terry Mitchell, Mayor Craig Morgan, Judge James Oakley,  Mayor Dale Ross, 

Commissioner Brigid Shea, Commissioner Edward Theriot, Commissioner Jeffrey Travillion, and Mayor Corbin 

Van Arsdale 

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None 

Absent and Not Voting:  None 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/12/. 

 

 

11.  Discussion and Concurrence on Recommendations for Draft Regional Transportation Demand 

Management (TDM) Plan 

 

There were no public comments on concurrence on the recommendations for the Draft Regional TDM Plan. 

 

The Chair recognized Mr. Ashby Johnson who informed the Board that discussion and concurrence on the 

recommendations for the Draft Regional TDM Plan will be deferred to the August meeting. 

 

The Chair provided a brief summary of the Board’s previous discussion on the Draft Regional TDM Plan. 

 

Vice Chair Cynthia Long provided clarification on the timeline for presentation and action on the Draft Regional 

TDM Plan.   

 

The Chair entertained a motion to approve deferral of a concurrence by the Transportation Policy Board on the 

recommendations for the Draft Regional Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Plan. 

 

Commissioner Gerald Daugherty moved for approval to defer concurrence on the recommendations. 

 

Mayor Jane Hughson seconded the motion. 

 

The motion prevailed unanimously.   

Ayes:  Mayor Steve Adler (Proxy for Judge Sarah Eckhardt), Council Member Alison Alter, Commissioner Gerald 

Daugherty, Mr. Tucker Ferguson, P.E., Council Member Jimmy Flannigan, Mayor Victor Gonzales, Mayor Jane 

Hughson, Commissioner Mark Jones, Council Member Ann Kitchen, Commissioner Cynthia Long (Proxy for 

http://www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/


CAMPO Transportation Policy Board Meeting June 10, 2019 

Meeting Summary Page 7 of 10 

 

 

 

 

For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/. 

 

Commissioner Clara Beckett), Mr. Terry Mitchell, Mayor Craig Morgan, Judge James Oakley,  Mayor Dale Ross, 

Commissioner Brigid Shea, Commissioner Edward Theriot, and Mayor Corbin Van Arsdale 

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None 

Absent and Not Voting:  Commissioner Jeffrey Travillion 

 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/13/. 

 

 

12.  Discussion and Approval of Proposed Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Policy, Amendment 

of 2040 Plan, and Allocation of Funding in TDM Category 

 

There were no public comments on the approval of the proposed TDM policy, amendment of the 2040 Plan, and 

allocation of funding in the TDM category. 

 

The Chair recognized Mr. Ashby Johnson who informed the Board that approval of the allocation of funding in the 

TDM Category will be deferred to the August meeting.    

 

The Vice Chair provided a brief overview of the ramifications of deferring discussion and approval of the Draft 

Regional TDM Plan, proposed TDM policy and amendment of the 2040 Plan.    

 

The Chair recognized Mr. Ashby Johnson who informed the Board that CAMPO staff agrees that amending the 

existing 2040 Plan should be considered as part of the planning and development process for the 2045 Plan.  Mr. 

Johnson added that the TDM policy change request should be addressed by the CAMPO 2045 Plan Subcommittee 

in addition to any other policy items to be considered. 

 

Mr. Johnson stated that the Executive Committee of the Transportation Policy Board was informed of staff’s 

request to transfer the Commute Solutions Program back to CAMPO at its June meeting.  Mr. Johnson further 

stated that CAMPO is now better staffed to operate the Commute Solutions Program.   

 

The Chair stated that it is the expectation of the Board that the CAMPO 2045 Subcommittee consider the proposed 

TDM Policy if it is not approved by the Board for amendment into the 2040 Plan. The Chair further stated that it is 

also the expectation of the Board that the proposed TDM policy will be taken into account even though it has not 

been included in the plan, should there be scoring of a project call. 

 

The Chair entertained a motion to approve exclusion of the proposed TDM policy from the 2040 Plan, with 

consideration of it for inclusion in the 2045 Plan, and presentation to the Transportation Policy Board for approval 

should there be a project call. 

 

Mayor Craig Morgan moved for approval to approve exclusion of the proposed TDM Policy from the 2040 Plan, 

with consideration of it for inclusion in the 2045 Plan, and presentation to the Transportation Policy Board for 

approval should there be a project call. 

Mayor Dale Ross seconded the motion to postpone consideration of the $498, 720 allocation of funding in the TDM 

Category. 

http://www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/


CAMPO Transportation Policy Board Meeting June 10, 2019 

Meeting Summary Page 8 of 10 

 

 

 

 

For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/. 

 

The motion prevailed unanimously. 

 

Ayes:  Mayor Steve Adler (Proxy for Judge Sarah Eckhardt), Council Member Alison Alter, Commissioner Gerald 

Daugherty, Mr. Tucker Ferguson, P.E., Council Member Jimmy Flannigan, Mayor Victor Gonzales, Mayor Jane 

Hughson, Commissioner Mark Jones, Council Member Ann Kitchen, Commissioner Cynthia Long (Proxy for 

Commissioner Clara Beckett), Mr. Terry Mitchell, Mayor Craig Morgan, Judge James Oakley,  Mayor Dale Ross, 

Commissioner Brigid Shea, Commissioner Edward Theriot, and Mayor Corbin Van Arsdale 

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None 

Absent and Not Voting:  Commissioner Jeffrey Travillion 

 

 

The Chair entertained a motion to postpone consideration of the $498,720 allocation of funding in the TDM 

Category. 

 

Mayor Dale Ross moved for approval. 

 

Mayor Jane Hughson seconded the motion. 

 

The motion prevailed unanimously. 

 

Ayes:  Mayor Steve Adler (Proxy for Judge Sarah Eckhardt), Council Member Alison Alter, Commissioner Gerald 

Daugherty, Mr. Tucker Ferguson, P.E., Council Member Jimmy Flannigan, Mayor Victor Gonzales, Mayor Jane 

Hughson, Commissioner Mark Jones, Council Member Ann Kitchen, Commissioner Cynthia Long (Proxy for 

Commissioner Clara Beckett), Mr. Terry Mitchell, Mayor Craig Morgan, Judge James Oakley,  Mayor Dale Ross, 

Commissioner Brigid Shea, Commissioner Edward Theriot, and Mayor Corbin Van Arsdale 

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None 

Absent and Not Voting:  Commissioner Jeffrey Travillion 

 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/13/. 

 

 

13.  Discussion and Approval of Platinum Planning Interlocal Agreements 

A. San Marcos Platinum Planning Study 

B. Austin-Bergstrom Spur Platinum Planning Study 

 

There were no public comments on the approval of the San Marcos and Austin-Bergstrom Spur Platinum Planning 

Studies. 

 

The Chair recognized, Mr. Ashby Johnson who presented interlocal agreements for the San Marcos Platinum 

Planning Study and the Austin-Bergstrom Spur Platinum Planning Study.   

 

http://www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/


CAMPO Transportation Policy Board Meeting June 10, 2019 

Meeting Summary Page 9 of 10 

 

 

 

 

For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/. 

 

 

The Chair entertained a motion for approval of Platinum Planning Interlocal Agreements for the San Marcos 

Platinum Planning Study and Austin-Bergstrom Platinum Planning Study. 

 

Commissioner Gerald Daugherty moved for approval. 

 

Council Member Jimmy Flannigan seconded the motion. 

 

The motion prevailed unanimously.   

Ayes:  Mayor Steve Adler (Proxy for Judge Sarah Eckhardt), Council Member Alison Alter, Commissioner Gerald 

Daugherty, Mr. Tucker Ferguson, P.E., Council Member Jimmy Flannigan, Mayor Victor Gonzales, Mayor Jane 

Hughson, Commissioner Mark Jones, Council Member Ann Kitchen, Commissioner Cynthia Long (Proxy for 

Commissioner Clara Beckett), Mr. Terry Mitchell, Mayor Craig Morgan, Judge James Oakley, Mayor Dale Ross, 

Commissioner Brigid Shea, Commissioner Edward Theriot, and Mayor Corbin Van Arsdale 

Nays:  None 

Abstain:  None 

Absent and Not Voting:  Commissioner Jeffrey Travillion 

 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/15/.  

 

 

14.  Discussion on Preliminary Results of Regional Arterials Study 

 

The Chair recognized Mr. Kelly Porter, Regional Planning Manager who provided an overview on the preliminary 

results from the Regional Arterials Study.  Mr. Porter informed the Board that the Regional Arterials Study is a 

fiscally unconstrained needs analysis for the region.  Mr. Porter highlighted the Regional Arterials Steering 

Committee and its members.  Mr. Porter discussed the three (3) phases of the regional arterials process, existing 

conditions, regional arterials network, and public outreach efforts.  Mr. Porter stated that the Regional Arterials 

Study is intended to be one of the components of the 2045 Plan just as the Regional Alternative Transportation 

Plan, Luling Relief Route and other CAMPO-led studies will be. 

 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/16/. 

 

 

15.  Discussion Preliminary Results of MoKan Northeast/Subregional Plan 

 

The Chair recognized Mr. Kelly Porter who introduced Mr. Steve Miller of Halff Associates as the presenter of the 

technical analysis for the MoKan Northeast/Subregional Plan.   

 

Mr. Miller informed the Board that the MoKan Northeast/Subregional Plan is a subset of the Regional Arterials 

Study and identified its boundaries.  Mr. Miller also informed the Committee that the concepts included in the plan 

were coordinated with stakeholders and are designed to improve capacity, safety, connectivity, and multimodal 

options.  Mr. Miller noted that local government sponsorship is necessary to move forward with the concepts 

identified in the plan.  Mr. Miller later provided a brief overview of the modeling scenarios with preliminary 

modeling results, preliminary cost estimates, public outreach efforts, and next steps. 

http://www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/
http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/15/


CAMPO Transportation Policy Board Meeting June 10, 2019 

Meeting Summary Page 10 of 10 

 

 

 

 

For agenda material and meeting video visit www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/. 

 

 

State Representative Celia Israel later provided comments on the MoKan Northeast/Subregional Plan. 

 

Mayor Victor Gonzales also provided comments on the MoKan Northeast/Subregional Plan and CAMPO’s public 

outreach efforts in the City of Pflugerville. 

 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/17/. 

 

 

16.  Executive Director’s Report on the Transportation Planning Activities 

  

Mr. Ashby Johnson reported that progress reports for the projects included in the TIP were included in the meeting 

materials for review.   

 

Vice Chair Long provided a brief status update on the CAMPO 2045 Plan Subcommittee’s planning process for the 

CAMPO 2045 Plan. 

 

Video of this item can be viewed at http://austintx.swagit.com/play/06122019-1667/20/.  

    

 

17.  Announcements 

There were no announcements. 

 

18.  Adjournment 

The Transportation Policy Board Meeting adjourned at 9:38 p.m.  

http://www.campotexas.org/meeting-agendas/


   
Date:     September 9, 2019  

Continued From: April 8, 2019 

    Action Requested:   Approval 

 

 
 

To: 
 

Transportation Policy Board 

From: Ms. Theresa Hernandez, Finance & Administration Manager  

Agenda Item: 7A 

Subject: Discussion and Approval of FY 2018 & 2019 Unified Planning Work Program 

(UPWP) Amendment #6 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

CAMPO staff recommends the Transportation Policy Board approve the FY 2018 & 2019 Unified 

Planning Work Program (UPWP) Amendment Six with the accompanying resolution (Attachment A). 

 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The purpose of this item is to add the City of Austin’s Bergstrom Spur Study, Regional Transit Study, 

and Regional Transportation Plan to the General Planning Consultant. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Amendment Six will decrease the FY 2018 & 2019 UPWP (Attachment B) by $50,000.00. 

 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The UPWP is the federally-required document that identifies work tasks to be completed in the CAMPO 

region. The proposed Amendment Six to the FY 2018 & 2019 UPWP is detailed as follows: 

 

2018 & 2019 Unified Planning Work Program: Amendment Six 

   Subtask 1.4 
   Add Bergstrom Spur Study, Regional Transit Study, and Regional Transportation  

   Plan funding $760,000 STBG funds, $190,000 Local funds 

Subtask 5.2.1    Remove funding and Regional Transit Study 

Subtask 5.2.4    Remove funding and Bergstrom Spur Study 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Attachment A – Resolution 2019-9-7A  

Attachment B – FY 2018 & 2019 Unified Planning Work Program and Proposed Amendment 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 

FY 2018 & 2019 
 

UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 
 
 
 

CAPITAL AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved by the Transportation Policy Board:  June 5, 2017 
Amended Administratively:  August 22, 2017 

Amended by the Transportation Policy Board:  September 11, 2017 
Amended by the Transportation Policy Board:  January 8, 2018 

Amended by the Transportation Policy Board:  April 9, 2018 
Amended by the Transportation Policy Board:  August 13, 2018 

Amended by the Transportation Policy Board:  April 8, 2019 
Amended by the Transportation Policy Board:  AugustSeptember 9, 2019 



 

 

 
1.2.1 Legal Services: This activity is for legal services that are necessary for 

planning purposes. 
 
Responsible Agency: Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Funding Requirement: $60,000 
Product(s):   Legal opinion(s) and counsel, as necessary and 

appropriate, with prior approval from TxDOT and FHWA  
 
Subtask 1.3 Audit Costs – Consultant Work 
 
1.3.1 Audit Services: This activity is for audit services that are necessary to 

comply with the Single Audit Act. 
 
Responsible Agency: Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Funding Requirement: $50,000  
Product(s):   Single Audit Report, financial statements 
 
Subtask 1.4 General Planning Consultant – Consultant Work 
 
1.4.1 General Planning Consultant 
Consultant to assist in the overall activities related to regional transportation 
planning in the CAMPO planning boundary that includes the counties of Bastrop, 
Burnet, Caldwell, Hays, Travis, and Williamson. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO  
Funding Requirement: $1,200,000 $1,960,000 STP MM and $300,000 
$490,000 Local 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough



 

 

 
 FUNDING SUMMARY  

 
 

Task 1.0 - FY 2018 & FY 2019 
 

Grand Total

2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018&2019

1.1 CAMPO 1,647,578 1,734,792 1,647,578 1,734,792 3,382,370     

1.2 CAMPO 30,000      30,000      30,000       30,000       60,000          

1.3 CAMPO 25,000      25,000      25,000       25,000       50,000          

1.4 CAMPO 300,000  900,000  75,000     225,000  375,000     1,125,000 1,500,000     

TOTAL 1,702,578 1,789,792 300,000  900,000  75,000     225,000  2,077,578 2,914,792 4,992,370     

Transportat ion 
Planning Funds

 (TPF)1
STPMM Local Total

Subtask
Responsible 

Agency

 
 

Grand Total

2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018&2019

1.1 CAMPO 1,647,578 1,734,792 1,647,578 1,734,792 3,382,370     

1.2 CAMPO 30,000      30,000      30,000       30,000       60,000          

1.3 CAMPO 25,000      25,000      25,000       25,000       50,000          

1.4 CAMPO 300,000  1,660,000  75,000     415,000  375,000     2,075,000 2,450,000     

TOTAL 1,702,578 1,789,792 300,000  1,660,000  75,000     415,000  2,077,578 3,864,792 5,942,370     

Transportation 
Planning Funds

 (TPF)1
STPMM Local Total

Subtask
Responsible 

Agency

 
 

1 TPF – This includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 Funds.  TxDOT will apply transportation development credits sufficient to 
provide the match for TPF.   As the credits reflect neither cash nor man-hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables. 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Highlight



 

 

clear traffic incidents to safely and quickly restore traffic flow. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO  
Funding Requirement: $240,000 STPMM and $60,000 Local Funds   
 
5.2.2 Round Rock Kenney Fort Analysis Moved to Subtask 5.3 
 
5.2.3 FM 150 Extension Corridor/Yarrington Road Extension Study  Moved to 
Subtask 5.3 
 
5.2.4 US 183 Luling Relief Route Alternative Analysis 
US 183 from north Luling to US 183/SH 80 south of Luling 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO and Caldwell County 
Funding Requirement: $225,000 STPMM  56,250 TDCs 
 
5.2.5 Regional Arterial and MoKan/Northeast Subregional 
Needs analysis of the regional arterial system for current and future demand and to 
improve mobility for people and goods. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO  
Funding Requirement: $1,250,000 PL $840,000 State 
 
5.2.6  Regional Transit Study  
Develop a long-range planning strategy for a network of potential regional high 
capacity transit services and supporting infrastructure for the CAMPO six-county 
region. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO  
Funding Requirement: $500,000 STPMM $150,000 Local Funds 
 
5.2.7 Williams Drive Corridor 

 Corridor study for signal timing, access, and improved alternative transportation 
facilities including bicycle lanes. 
 
Responsible Agency:  CAMPO and City of Georgetown 
Funding Requirement:  $24,800 STP MM and $6,200 Local Funds 
5.2.8 Regional Active Transportation Plan (RATP) 

 Plan to document and provide a shared vision for the development of a safe and 
highly-functional active transportation network of pedestrian and bicycle facilities 
and amenities for the six-county CAMPO Region. 
 
Responsible Agency:  CAMPO  
Funding Requirement:  $38,400 STP MM and $9,600 Local Funds 
 
5.2.9 Capital-Alamo Regional Freight Study 

Formatted: Strikethrough



 

 

To understand the emerging market logistics and fulfillment agglomerations 
forming at the border shared between two MPO’s. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO  
Funding Requirement: $225,000 STPMM $56,250 Local Funds 
 
5.2.10 Bergstrom Spur 
Feasibility analysis of an abandoned rail corridor. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO and City of Austin  
Funding Requirement: $280,000 STPMM $70,000 Local Funds 
 
5.2.11 San Marcos – Southwestern Hays Sub-Regional Study 
The study will examine transportation and land use integration of the 
Downtown/Midtown core. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO and City of San Marcos  
Funding Requirement: $680,000 STPMM $170,000 Local Funds 
 
   
Subtask 5.3  Corridor and Feasibility Studies (undertaken by agencies other than 
CAMPO in the CAMPO region) 
 
5.3.1 Georgetown to San Antonio Mobility Study 
Conduct a feasibility study on mobility improvements in the rapidly growing 
Georgetown-San Antonio corridor. 
 
Responsible Agency: TxDOT  
Funding Requirement: $9,000,000 STP MM 
 
5.3.2  MoKan Transportation Corridor Feasibility Study – Segment 2 
Study is to assist in the mission of corridor preservation and to identify future 
operations for this segment of the regionally significant transportation corridor. 
 
Responsible Agency: City of Round Rock  
Funding Requirement: $2,000,000 STP MM 500,000 TDCs 

 
5.3.3 FM 150 Extension Corridor/Yarrington Road Extension Study  
SH 21 to FM 142/SH 130, conduct feasibility study for new location roadway 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO and Caldwell County 
Funding Requirement: $600,000 Concession Funds 
 
5.3.4 DFW to Monterrey High Speed Rail Study  
The effort to build high-speed trains connecting Dallas, Arlington, and Forth Worth – 
and eventually Waco, Austin, Laredo and possibly Monterrey, Mexico. 

Formatted: Strikethrough



 

 

 
Responsible Agency: NCTCOG 
Funding Requirement: $300,000 STPMM  200,000 Local 
 

 FUNDING SUMMARY  
 

 
 

Task 5.0 - FY 2018 & 2019 
 
 

 
 
 

State Grand Total

2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018&2019

5.1 CAMPO -             53,896      41,600         10,400     52,000          53,896       105,896        

5.2 CAMPO 750,000    500,000    328,200       1,885,000 75,800     446,250 340,000 500,000 -            1,494,000     3,331,250 4,825,250     

5.3 OTHER Agencies -             -             11,000,000  300,000    200,000 600,000 11,000,000   1,100,000 12,100,000  

TOTAL 750,000    553,896    11,369,800  2,185,000 86,200     646,250 340,000 500,000 -            600,000 12,546,000   4,485,146 17,031,146  

Total
Subtask

Responsible 
Agency

Transportat ion 
Planning Funds

 (TPF)1
STPMM Local Concession

 
 
 

State Grand Total

2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018&2019

5.1 CAMPO -             53,896      41,600         10,400     52,000          53,896       105,896        

5.2 CAMPO 750,000    500,000    328,200       1,105,000 75,800     226,250 340,000 500,000 -            1,494,000     2,331,250 3,825,250     

5.3 OTHER Agencies -             -             11,000,000  300,000    200,000 600,000 11,000,000   1,100,000 12,100,000  

TOTAL 750,000    553,896    11,369,800  1,405,000 86,200     426,250 340,000 500,000 -            600,000 12,546,000   3,485,146 16,031,146  

Total
Subtask

Responsible 
Agency

Transportation 
Planning Funds

 (TPF)1
STPMM Local Concession

 
 
1 TPF – This includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 Funds.  TxDOT will apply transportation development credits sufficient to 
provide the match for TPF.   As the credits reflect neither cash nor man-hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables. 
 
 

 

Formatted: Highlight



 

 

VII. BUDGET SUMMARY - Include the following table which provides a summary of all 
funding requirements for this UPWP by task and source. Include sources of funding 
(including carryovers).   

 
 BUDGET SUMMARY - FY 2018 & 2019 
  

 
 

UPWP 

Task Description TPF
1
 Funds

FTA Sect. 

5304 STPMM Local Funds FTA STATE Concession Rider 42 CTRMA Total Funds

1.0

Administration‐

Management 3,492,370   1,200,000     300,000               ‐                    ‐              4,992,370          

2.0

Data Development 

and Maintenance 448,846       ‐                     ‐                      ‐                            ‐                    ‐              448,846              

3.0

Short Range 

Planning 711,056       ‐                     ‐                      ‐                            ‐                  ‐            711,056            

4.0

Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan 906,801       43,608         ‐                      ‐                            ‐                            ‐                    ‐              950,409              

4.5

MTP (other 

agencies) 3,000,000     17,915,000         600,000             1,350,000 53,000 22,918,000      

5.0 Special Studies 1,303,896   ‐                     13,554,800  732,450               840,000             600,000             ‐                  ‐            17,031,146      

6,862,969   43,608         17,754,800  18,947,450         840,000               600,000               1,350,000  53,000  47,051,827        TOTAL  
 
 
 
UPWP 

Task Description TPF
1
 Funds

FTA Sect. 

5304 STPMM Local Funds FTA STATE Concession Rider 42 CTRMA Total Funds

1.0

Administration‐

Management 3,492,370   1,960,000     490,000               ‐                    ‐              5,942,370          

2.0

Data Development 

and Maintenance 448,846       ‐                     ‐                      ‐                            ‐                    ‐              448,846              

3.0

Short Range 

Planning 711,056       ‐                     ‐                      ‐                            ‐                  ‐            711,056            

4.0

Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan 906,801       43,608         ‐                      ‐                            ‐                            ‐                    ‐              950,409              

4.5

MTP (other 

agencies) 3,000,000     17,915,000         600,000             1,350,000 53,000 22,918,000      

5.0 Special Studies 1,303,896   ‐                     12,774,800  512,450               840,000             600,000             ‐                  ‐            16,031,146      

6,862,969   43,608         17,734,800  18,917,450         840,000               600,000               1,350,000  53,000  47,001,827        TOTAL  

 

1 TPF – This includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 Funds. TxDOT will apply transportation 
development credits sufficient to provide the match for TPF. As the credits reflect neither cash nor man-
hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables. 

 
Combined Transportation Planning Funds 2 $5,059,188 
Estimated Unexpended Carryover   $1,803,781          
TOTAL TPF     $6,862,969 
 2 Estimate based on prior years’ authorizations 

 
 

Formatted: Highlight



 
 

 

Resolution 2019-9-7A 

Acknowledging the Transportation Policy Board’s Adoption of Amendment Six to the 

CAMPO FY 2018 & 2019 Unified Planning Work Program 

WHEREAS, pursuant to federal law, the Governor of the State of Texas designated the Capital Area 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) as the Metropolitan Planning Organization for the Austin 

region in 1973; and    

WHEREAS, CAMPO’s Transportation Policy Board is the regional forum for cooperative decision-

making regarding transportation issues in Bastrop, Burnet, Caldwell, Hays, Travis and Williamson Counties 

in Central Texas; and 

WHEREAS, the mission of a Metropolitan Planning Organization is to conduct a coordinated, 

comprehensive and continuous metropolitan transportation planning process; and  

 

WHEREAS, 23 U.S.C. 134 and Section 5303 of the Federal Transit Act, require that the Metropolitan 

Planning Organizations, in the cooperation with the State, develop transportation plans and programs for 

urbanized areas of the state; and  

 

WHEREAS, 23 CFR 450.308 requires that transportation planning activities performed with federal 

transportation funds be documented in a Unified Planning Work Program; and  

 

WHEREAS, CAMPO’s Transportation Policy Board adopted the FYs 2018 & 2019 Unified Planning Work 

Program (UPWP) on June 5, 2017 and approved Amendment Five on April 8, 2019; and 

 

WHEREAS, staff is proposing Amendment Six to add funding to of $760,000 STBG, $190,000 Local 

funds to Subtask 1.4, the General Planning Consultant for the Bergstrom Spur Study, the Regional Transit 

Study, and the Regional Transportation Plan.  To remove the Regional Transit Study and Bergstrom Spur 

study from Subtask 5.2.1 and 5.2.4.  This revision is depicted in the background material accompanying 

this proposed resolution; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the CAMPO Transportation Policy Board hereby votes 

to approve the requested amendment to the CAMPO FY’s 2018 & 2019 Unified Planning Work Program 

as reflected in this Resolution; and directs the Executive Director to transmit the adopted amendment to the 

Federal Highway Administration through the Texas Department of Transportation; and 

 

Hereby orders the recording of this resolution in the minutes of the Transportation Policy Board; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board delegates the signing of necessary documents to the Board 

Chair. 



 

 

The above resolution being read, a motion to amend the CAMPO 2018 & 2019 Unified Planning Work Program 

as reflected was made on September 9, 2019 by __________________ duly seconded by _________________. 

 

Ayes:  

 

Nays:  

 

Abstain:  

 

Absent and Not Voting:  

 

SIGNED this 9th day of September 2019. 

 

   

Chair, CAMPO Board  

 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

        

Executive Director, CAMPO 



   
Date:     September 9, 2019  

Continued From: June 10, 2019 

    Action Requested:   Approval 

 

 
 

To: 
 

Transportation Policy Board 

From: Ms. Theresa Hernandez, Finance & Administration Manager  

Agenda Item: 7B 

Subject: Discussion and Approval of FY 2020 & 2021 Unified Planning Work Program 

(UPWP) Amendment #1 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

CAMPO staff recommends the Transportation Policy Board approve the FY 2020 & 2021 Unified 

Planning Work Program (UPWP) Amendment One with the accompanying resolution (Attachment A). 

 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The purpose of this item is to add the City of Austin’s Bergstrom Spur Study, Regional Transit Study, 

and Regional Transportation Plan to the General Planning Consultant and add the City of San Marcos’ 

Five Year Strategic Plan for Transit Service. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Amendment One will increase the FY 2020 & 2021 UPWP (Attachment B) by the amount of $130,000. 

 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The UPWP is the federally-required document that identifies work tasks to be completed in the CAMPO 

region. The proposed Amendment One to the FY 2020 & 2021 UPWP is detailed as follows: 

 

2020 & 2021 Unified Planning Work Program: Amendment One 

   Subtask 1.4 
   Add Bergstrom Spur Study, Regional Transit Study, and Regional Transportation  

   Plan funding $760,000 STBG funds, $190,000 Local funds 

   Subtask 4.4.16 
   Add $156,000 FTA funds, $24,000 local funds, and $19,200 TDCs for City of  

   San Marcos Five Year Strategic Plan 

Subtask 5.2.1    Remove funding and Regional Transit Study 

Subtask 5.2.4    Remove funding and Bergstrom Spur Study 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Attachment A – Resolution 2020-9-7B  

Attachment B – FY 2020 & 2021 Unified Planning Work Program with Proposed Amendment 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 

FY 2020 & 2021 
 

UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 
 
 
 

CAPITAL AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted by the Transportation Policy Board:  June 10, 2019 
Amended by the Transportation Policy Board:  September 9, 2019 



 

11 
 

 
Subtask 1.3 Audit Costs – Consultant Work 
 
1.3.1 Audit Services: This activity is for audit services that are necessary to 

comply with the Single Audit Act.  Ongoing contract. 
 
Responsible Agency: Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Funding Requirement: $50,000 PL 
Product(s):   Single Audit Report, financial statements 
 
Subtask 1.4 General Planning Consultant – Consultant Work 
 
1.4.1 General Planning Consultant 
Consultant to assist in the overall activities related to regional transportation 
planning in the CAMPO planning boundary that includes the counties of Bastrop, 
Burnet, Caldwell, Hays, Travis, and Williamson.  Ongoing contract. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO  
Funding Requirement: $240,000 $10,000,000 STP MM and $60,000 
$250,000 Local 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 FUNDING SUMMARY  
 

 
Task 1.0 - FY 2020 & FY 2021 

 

Grand Total

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020&2021

1.1 CAMPO 1,576,216 1,576,216 1,576,216 1,576,216 3,152,432     

1.2 CAMPO 30,000      30,000      30,000       30,000       60,000          

1.3 CAMPO 25,000      25,000      25,000       25,000       50,000          

1.4 CAMPO 240,000  -           60,000     -           300,000     -              300,000        

TOTAL 1,631,216 1,631,216 240,000  -           60,000     -           1,931,216 1,631,216 3,562,432     

Transportat ion 
Planning Funds

 (TPF)1
STBG Local Total

Subtask
Responsible 

Agency

 
 

1 TPF – This includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 Funds.  TxDOT will apply transportation development credits sufficient to 
provide the match for TPF.   As the credits reflect neither cash nor man-hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables. 
 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough



 

12 
 

Grand Total

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020&2021

1.1 CAMPO 1,576,216      1,576,216      1,576,216      1,576,216      3,152,432          

1.2 CAMPO 30,000           30,000           30,000           30,000           60,000               

1.3 CAMPO 25,000           25,000           25,000           25,000           50,000               

1.4 CAMPO 1,000,000    -               250,000       -               1,250,000      -                 1,250,000          

TOTAL 1,631,216      1,631,216      1,000,000    -               250,000       -               2,881,216      1,631,216      4,512,432          

Transportation Planning 
Funds
 (TPF)1

STBG Local Total
Subtask

Responsible 
Agency

 
 
 
 

Formatted: Highlight



 

22 
 

4.4.14 Corridor Mobility Development Program 
Assess a specific corridor’s mobility and safety deficiencies, and identify a vision for 
the long-term modernization of the corridor based on anticipated growth and City of 
Austin transportation policy. 
 
Responsible Agency:  City of Austin 
Funding Requirement: $1,000,000 Local Funds 
 
4.4.15 Austin Core Transportation Plan 
An update to the 2002 Downtown Access and Mobility Plan. It will serve as a 
decision-making tool for transportation planning, project development, operations, 
and demand management, with the goal of making decisions more transparent and 
predictable for all stakeholders. Outcomes include the identification of TDM 
strategies, multimodal projects, priority segments, and spatial needs to support 
mobility to, from, and within downtown for all users. 
 
Responsible Agency:  City of Austin 
Funding Requirement: $350,000 Local Funds 
 
4.4.16 Five Year Strategic Plan for Transit Service 
The plan will provide detailed goals, strategies, and action steps required to 
seamlessly integrate the existing City of San Marcos and Texas State University 
public transit systems, including administration, operations and maintenance, 
financing, and route structures, into one coordinated public transit system to serve 
the San Marcos urbanized area. 
 
Responsible Agency:  City of San Marcos 
Funding Requirement: $96,000 FTA 5304 $60,000 FTA 5306 $24,000 Local 
Funds $19,200 TDCs 
 
 

 FUNDING SUMMARY  
 

Task 4.0 - FY 2020 & FY 2021 
 
 

Grand Total

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020&2021

4.1 CAMPO 483,808    483,808  483,808            483,808     967,616            

4.2 CAMPO -             -           -                     -              -                     

4.3 CAMPO 25,000  25,000  25,000              25,000       50,000              

4.4
OTHER 
AGENCIES -             4,697,745    -       17,630,548   -   14,804,436      -        37,132,729       -              37,132,729      

-             -           -                -                    -        -                     -              -                     

483,808    483,808  25,000  25,000  4,697,745    -       17,630,548   -   14,804,436      -        37,641,537       508,808     38,150,345      

LOCAL TotalSTBG STATE

TOTAL

Sub
task

Responsible 
Agency

Transportat ion 
Planning Funds

 (TPF)1
FTA Sect. 5304

 
 
1 TPF – This includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 Funds.  TxDOT will apply transportation development credits sufficient to 

provide the match for TPF.   As the credits reflect neither cash nor man-hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables. 

 



 

23 
 

Grand Total

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020&2021

4.1 CAMPO 483,808    483,808  483,808            483,808     967,616            

4.2 CAMPO -             -           -                     -              -                     

4.3 CAMPO 25,000    25,000  -         -         25,000              25,000       50,000              

4.4
OTHER 
AGENCIES -             96,000    60,000  4,697,745    -       17,630,548   -       14,828,436      -        37,312,729       -              37,312,729      

-             -           -                -                    -        -                     -              -                     

483,808    483,808  121,000  25,000  60,000  -         4,697,745    -       17,630,548   -       14,828,436      -        37,821,537       508,808     38,330,345      

LOCAL TotalSTBG STATEFTA Sect.  5307

TOTAL

Sub
task

Responsible 
Agency

Transportat ion 
Planning Funds

 (TPF)1
FTA Sect.  5304

Grand Total

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020&2021

4.1 CAMPO 483,808         483,808      483,808                  483,808         967,616                 

4.2 CAMPO -                 -              -                          -                 -                         

4.3 CAMPO 25,000      25,000      -            -            25,000                    25,000           50,000                   

4.4
OTHER 
AGENCIES -                 96,000      60,000      4,697,745         -          17,630,548        -     14,828,436            -           37,312,729             -                 37,312,729            

-                 -              -                    -                         -           -                          -                 -                         

483,808         483,808      121,000    25,000      60,000      -            4,697,745         -          17,630,548        -     14,828,436            -           37,821,537             508,808         38,330,345            

FTA Sect. 5307

TOTAL

Subt
ask

Responsible 
Agency

Transportation Planning 
Funds
 (TPF)1

FTA Sect. 5304 LOCAL TotalSTBG STATE

 
 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.06"



 

25 
 

Subtask 5.2   Special Studies (undertaken by CAMPO and/or Consultant(s) 
 
5.2.1  Regional Transit Study  
Develop a long-range planning strategy for a network of potential regional high 
capacity transit services and supporting infrastructure for the CAMPO six-county 
region.  Contract TBD. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO  
Funding Requirement: $500,000 STBG $150,000 Local Funds 
 
5.2.2 FM 1626/RM 957 Intersection 

 Lane use and transportation nodal analysis.  Contract TBD. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO and City of Buda 
Funding Requirement: $160,000 STBG and $40,000 Local Funds 
 
5.2.3 Garlic Creek Parkway   

 Corridor and connectivity analysis.  Contract TBD. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO and City of Buda 
Funding Requirement: $280,000 STBG and $70,000 Local Funds 
 
5.2.4 Bergstrom Spur   
Feasibility analysis of an abandoned rail corridor.  Contract TBD. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO and City of Austin  
Funding Requirement: $280,000 STBG $70,000 Local Funds 
 
5.2.5 US 290/RM 12 & Mercer District 
Land use, corridor and node analysis.  Contract TBD. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO and City of Dripping Springs  
Funding Requirement: $360,000 STBG $90,000 Local Funds 
 
5.2.6 San Marcos Platinum Planning Study 
Land use, corridor and node analysis.  Contract TBD. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO and City of San Marcos  
Funding Requirement: $800,000 STBG $200,000 Local Funds 
 
5.2.7 FM 150/Yarrington Road Corridor Study and Schematic Development 
SH 21 to FM 142/SH 130, conduct feasibility study for new location roadway.  
Contract TBD. 
 
Responsible Agency: CAMPO and Caldwell County 
Funding Requirement: $1,725,000 STBG and 431,250 Local Funds 
  
 
 
 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough



 

26 
 

  
Subtask 5.3  Corridor and Feasibility Studies (undertaken by agencies other than 
CAMPO in the CAMPO region) 
 
 
5.3.1  MoKan Transportation Corridor Feasibility Study – Segment 2 
Study is to assist in the mission of corridor preservation and to identify future 
operations for this segment of the regionally significant transportation corridor. 
 
Responsible Agency: City of Round Rock  
Funding Requirement: $2,000,000 STBG 500,000 TDCs 

 
 
5.3.2 DFW to Monterrey High Speed Rail Study  
The effort to build high-speed trains connecting Dallas, Arlington, and Forth Worth – 
and eventually Waco, Austin, Laredo and possibly Monterrey, Mexico. 
 
Responsible Agency: NCTCOG 
Funding Requirement: $300,000 STBG  200,000 Local 
 

 FUNDING SUMMARY  
 

 
Task 5.0 - FY 2020 & 2021 

 
 

Grand Total

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020&2021

5.1 CAMPO 79,495      79,495      -                -              79,495          79,495       158,990        

5.2 CAMPO -             -             4,105,000    1,051,250  5,156,250     -              5,156,250     

5.3 OTHER Agencies -             -             2,300,000    200,000     2,500,000     -              2,500,000     

TOTAL 79,495      79,495      6,405,000    -   1,251,250  -   7,735,745     79,495       7,815,240     

Total
Subtask

Responsible 
Agency

Transportat ion 
Planning Funds

 (TPF)1
STBG Local

 
 
1 TPF – This includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 Funds.  TxDOT will apply transportation development credits sufficient to 
provide the match for TPF.   As the credits reflect neither cash nor man-hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables. 
 

Grand Total

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020&2021

5.1 CAMPO 79,495      79,495      -                -              79,495          79,495       158,990        

5.2 CAMPO -             -             3,325,000    831,250     4,156,250     -              4,156,250    

5.3 OTHER Agencies -             -             2,300,000    200,000     2,500,000     -              2,500,000    

TOTAL 79,495      79,495      5,625,000    -   1,031,250  -   6,735,745     79,495       6,815,240    

Total
Subtask

Responsible 
Agency

Transportat ion 
Planning Funds

 (TPF)1
STBG Local

 

Formatted: Highlight



 

27 
 

Grand Total

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020&2021

5.1 CAMPO 79,495           79,495           -                    -                  79,495               79,495           158,990             

5.2 CAMPO -                 -                 3,325,000         831,250          4,156,250          -                 4,156,250          

5.3 OTHER Agencies -                 -                 2,300,000         200,000          2,500,000          -                 2,500,000          

TOTAL 79,495           79,495           5,625,000         -     1,031,250       -     6,735,745          79,495           6,815,240          

Total
Subtask

Responsible 
Agency

Transportation Planning 
Funds
 (TPF)1

STBG Local

 



 

28 
 

VII. BUDGET SUMMARY - Include the following table which provides a summary of all 
funding requirements for this UPWP by task and source. Include sources of funding 
(including carryovers).   

 
 BUDGET SUMMARY - FY 2020 & 2021 
  

 
UPWP 

Task Description TPF
1
 Funds

FTA Sect. 

5304 STBG Local Funds STATE Total Funds

1.0

Administration‐

Management 3,262,432   240,000        60,000                 3,562,432          

2.0

Data Development 

and Maintenance 320,176       ‐                     ‐                      ‐                            320,176              

3.0

Short Range 

Planning 417,382       ‐                     ‐                     ‐                          417,382            

4.0

Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan 967,616       50,000         4,697,745     14,804,436         17,630,548         38,150,345        

4.5

MTP (other 

agencies) ‐                     ‐                          ‐                         

5.0 Special Studies 158,990       ‐                     6,405,000     1,251,250         7,815,240        

5,126,596   50,000         11,342,745  16,115,686         17,630,548         50,265,575        TOTAL  
 

1 TPF – This includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 Funds. TxDOT will apply transportation 
development credits sufficient to provide the match for TPF. As the credits reflect neither cash nor man-
hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables. 

 
Combined Transportation Planning Funds 2 $5,126,596 
Estimated Unexpended Carryover   $        9,266          
TOTAL TPF     $5,135,862 
 2 Estimate based on prior years’ authorizations 

 
 
 



 

29 
 

UPWP 

Task Description TPF1 Funds

FTA Sect. 

5304 FTA 5307 STBG Local Funds STATE Total Funds

1.0

Administration‐

Management 3,262,432     ‐                             1,000,000       250,000                    4,512,432              

2.0

Data Development and 

Maintenance 320,176         ‐                            ‐                             ‐                             ‐                                      320,176                   

3.0 Short Range Planning 417,382         ‐                            ‐                             ‐                             ‐                                      417,382                   

4.0

Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan 967,616         146,000          60,000              4,697,745       14,828,436            17,630,548            38,330,345           

4.5 MTP (other agencies) ‐                             ‐                             ‐                                      ‐                                     

5.0 Special Studies 158,990         ‐                            ‐ 5,625,000       1,031,250               6,815,240              

5,126,596     146,000          60,000              11,322,745    16,109,686            17,630,548            50,395,575           TOTAL  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Highlight



 
 

 

Resolution 2019-9-7B 

Acknowledging the Transportation Policy Board’s Adoption of Amendment One to the 

CAMPO FY 2020 & 2021 Unified Planning Work Program 

WHEREAS, pursuant to federal law, the Governor of the State of Texas designated the Capital Area 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) as the Metropolitan Planning Organization for the Austin 

region in 1973; and    

WHEREAS, CAMPO’s Transportation Policy Board is the regional forum for cooperative decision-

making regarding transportation issues in Bastrop, Burnet, Caldwell, Hays, Travis and Williamson Counties 

in Central Texas; and 

WHEREAS, the mission of a Metropolitan Planning Organization is to conduct a coordinated, 

comprehensive and continuous metropolitan transportation planning process; and  

 

WHEREAS, 23 U.S.C. 134 and Section 5303 of the Federal Transit Act, require that the Metropolitan 

Planning Organizations, in the cooperation with the State, develop transportation plans and programs for 

urbanized areas of the state; and  

 

WHEREAS, 23 CFR 450.308 requires that transportation planning activities performed with federal 

transportation funds be documented in a Unified Planning Work Program; and  

 

WHEREAS, CAMPO’s Transportation Policy Board adopted the FYs 2020 & 2021 Unified Planning Work 

Program (UPWP) on June 10, 2019; and 

 

WHEREAS, staff is proposing Amendment One to add funding of $760,000 STBG, $190,000 Local funds 

to Subtask 1.4, the General Planning Consultant for the Bergstrom Spur Study, the Regional Transit Study, 

and the Regional Transportation Plan.  To add $156,000 FTA funds, $24,000 local funds, and $19,200 

TDCs for the San Marcos Five Year Strategic Plan in Subtask 4.4.16.  To remove the Regional Transit 

Study and Bergstrom Spur study from Subtask 5.2.1 and 5.2.4.  This revision is depicted in the background 

material accompanying this proposed resolution; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the CAMPO Transportation Policy Board hereby votes 

to approve the requested amendment to the CAMPO FY’s 2020 & 2021 Unified Planning Work Program 

as reflected in this Resolution; and directs the Executive Director to transmit the adopted amendment to the 

Federal Highway Administration through the Texas Department of Transportation; and 

 

Hereby orders the recording of this resolution in the minutes of the Transportation Policy Board; and 

 



 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board delegates the signing of necessary documents to the Board 

Chair. 

 

The above resolution being read, a motion to amend the CAMPO 2020 & 2021 Unified Planning Work Program 

as reflected was made on September 9, 2019 by __________________ duly seconded by _________________. 

 

Ayes:  

 

Nays:  

 

Abstain:  

 

Absent and Not Voting:  

 

SIGNED this 9th day of September 2019. 

 

   

Chair, CAMPO Board  

 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

        

Executive Director, CAMPO 



          

 Date:            September 9, 2019 

     Continued From:               February 2, 2019 

      Action Requested:                           Adoption 

 

To: Transportation Policy Board 

From: Mr. Nirav Ved, Special Assistant to the Executive Director 

Agenda Item: 8 

Subject: Discussion and Adoption of Regional Transportation Demand Management Plan 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff seeks adoption of the Draft Regional Transportation Demand Management Plan. 
 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This item provides a presentation to the Transportation Policy Board (TPB) on the draft final Regional 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Plan. The plan provides: 

• A TDM vision and goals for the region, 

• Recommendations on achieving those goals including establishing a TDM subcommittee 

within TAC, 

• Revised TDM category selection criteria for the Transportation Improvement Program call for 

projects, and 

• A review of existing TDM efforts throughout the region 

 

This item has been presented to and discussed with the Technical Advisory Committee and was 

recommended for approval by the TPB at the August 26, 2019 TAC meeting. The TDM Plan was 

also included as part of the CAMPO public outreach effort conducted in June and July 2019. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Not applicable.  
 

 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

Over the past decade, the CAMPO region has experienced significant growth and prosperity which 

have also resulted in further traffic congestion on the region’s roadway system. Transportation 

Demand Management (TDM) is a collection of operational and behavior-changing strategies designed 

to reduce automobile trips, roadway congestion, and parking demand by redirecting travel towards 

alternate modes, times, and routes.  

 

In creating this plan, CAMPO convened a steering committee consisting of regional transportation 

stakeholders to define a unified vision, objectives, and priorities for advancing TDM policies, projects, 

and initiatives.  
 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Attachment:  Draft Regional Transportation Demand Management Plan 

Attachment:  Regional TDM Plan Comment Response Matrix 

Attachment:  Summary of Public Comments 

Attachment:  Resolution 2019-9-8 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 
DEMAND MANAGEMENT 
PLAN 
August 2019



ii
Table of Contents



iii

Table of Contents

Introduction ........................................................................................................................ 1

TDM Basics .................................................................................................................................................................2
Regional TDM Plan Process ..................................................................................................................................3
Regional TDM Priorities ..........................................................................................................................................5

PART I .................................................................................................................................... 7

TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT VISION AND GOALS .....................7
Vision ............................................................................................................................................................................7
Goals .............................................................................................................................................................................7

PART II................................................................................................................................... 9

MOVING GOALS FORWARD .................................................................................................9
Regional Coordination ............................................................................................................................................9
Incorporate TDM into the Transportation Planning Process ......................................................................10
Provide Education and Outreach ........................................................................................................................10
Improve the Transportation System ...................................................................................................................11
Increase Mobility Choices for Travelers ............................................................................................................12

PART III ................................................................................................................................. 14

MEASURING PERFORMANCE...............................................................................................14
Measuring Progress on TDM Plan Goals .........................................................................................................15

PART IV ................................................................................................................................. 18

CAMPO TDM PROJECT SELECTION CRITERIA .............................................................18
CAMPO Project Selection ......................................................................................................................................18

PART V .................................................................................................................................. 23

EXISTING CONDITIONS REPORT ........................................................................................23
The CAMPO Region ................................................................................................................................................23
Linkages to Other Plans .........................................................................................................................................25
Population ...................................................................................................................................................................27
Employment ................................................................................................................................................................29
Network Usage .........................................................................................................................................................32
Existing Programs and Strategies .......................................................................................................................40
Stakeholders and Partners ....................................................................................................................................43
TDM Opportunities ...................................................................................................................................................49

Table of Contents



iv

PART VI ................................................................................................................................. 60

NEXT STEPS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ........................................................................60
Recommendations ...................................................................................................................................................60

APPENDIX .......................................................................................................................... 63

Table of ContentsTable of Contents



v
Table of Contents

Table of Figures and Tables

Figure 1.1 ...................................................................................................................................................2

Figure 1.2.................................................................................................................................................. 4

Table 3.1 ...................................................................................................................................................15

Table 4.1 ...................................................................................................................................................19

Figure 5.1 ................................................................................................................................................24

Figure 5.2 ............................................................................................................................................. 28

Figure 5.3 ............................................................................................................................................. 30

Figure 5.4 ...............................................................................................................................................31

Figure 5.5  .............................................................................................................................................32

Table 5.6 ................................................................................................................................................33

Figure 5.7 ...............................................................................................................................................33

Figure 5.8 ..............................................................................................................................................34

Table 5.9 ................................................................................................................................................35

Figure 5.10 .............................................................................................................................................35

Figure 5.11 ..............................................................................................................................................37

Table 5.12 ...............................................................................................................................................39

Table 5.13 ................................................................................................................................................51



1

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Introduction
The Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) is the metropolitan planning 
organization (MPO) for Bastrop, Burnet, Caldwell, Hays, Travis, and Williamson Counties (“the region”). 
CAMPO is responsible for transportation planning efforts that improve the mobility of the region. 

Over the past decade, the six county CAMPO region has experienced significant growth and prosperity, 
with thriving businesses, economic growth, and a growing population to match. This rapid growth 
has caused further traffic congestion on the region’s roadway system, compounding the impacts of 
roadway construction and diminishing the mobility, safety, and reliability for travelers in the region. 

Specifically, the TDM plan aims to:

• Foster the implementation of TDM 
concepts within the CAMPO planning 
process by incorporating revised TDM 
project scoring criteria to select and 
fund TDM projects in the call for projects 
process;

• Promote a regional view that advances 
TDM practices throughout the CAMPO 
region for safer mobility, increased 
choice, and improved system reliability 
by defining and implementing a vision 
and goals for the region;

• Recommend the establishment of a 
TDM Subcommittee within CAMPO’s 
Technical Advisory Committee to 
advance TDM in the region across 
the full spectrum of applications and 
processes; and

• Support the CAMPO 2045 planning effort 
with actionable steps to advance TDM in the 
region.

IntroductionIntroduction

CAMPO TDM  
Steering Committee

Movability (TMA)

City of Austin (also represents 
program Smart Trips Austin)

Capital Area Council of 
Governments (also represents 
Commute Solutions program)

Travis County

Texas Department of 
Transportation

Bastrop County

Capital Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority 
(Office of Mobility 
Management)

City of San Marcos

Central Texas Regional Mobility 
Authority



2

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

TDM Basics

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) is a collection of strategies designed to reduce 
automobile trips, roadway congestion, and parking demand by redirecting travel towards other 
modes, times, and routes. TDM programs, plans, and policies address traffic congestion, safety, 
mobility, and travel time reliability issues by considering operational strategies, implementing 
mobility solutions, air quality maintenance, and providing choices for travelers. 

TDM programs often focus on strategies to reduce vehicle demand on roadways by increasing the use 
of modes other than driving alone. However, TDM programs can also involve changing commuters 
traveling behavior by providing information on transit, carpooling, vanpooling, biking, walking, and 
changes to work routine schedules (e.g., telecommuting and flex scheduling). TDM programs range 
in size, location, mode emphasis, and other variables based on the needs, transportation options 
available, and infrastructure of a region. TDM strategies for operational improvements, such as 
managed lanes and transit vehicles running on shoulders, are important concepts when developing 
a regional TDM plan. Outreach is integral to successful TDM programs, where public relations and 
educational campaigns can have an influential impact on how travelers approach their trips. A 
glossary of basic TDM strategies and their uses is included in the Appendix.

Figure 1.1

LAND USE

RIDESHARING

TRANSPORTATION 
DEMAND 

MANAGEMENT

RIDESHARING: Reducing the number of single occupancy vehicle trips 
can help to reduce the number of cars on the road

FLEXIBLE WORK SCHEDULE: Teleworking one day a week, or working 
flexible hours to stay o� the roads during peak hours can address work 
commute times

MULTIMODAL: Using many modes of transportation (walking, biking, 
transit, personal vehicle) can complete a trip without increasing the 
number of vehicles

REALTIME INFORMATION: Message Boards along highways, 
Technology (apps)

LAND USE: Live, work, play proximity

MULTIMODAL

REALTIME INFORMATION

FLEXIBLE WORK SCHEDULE

Introduction



3

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Regional TDM Plan Process

In creating this plan, CAMPO convened a TDM Steering Committee, consisting of regional 
transportation stakeholders, to define a unified vision, objectives, and priorities for advancing TDM 
policies, projects, and initiatives. The committee provided significant input and guidance in the 
creation of this plan to increase TDM policies and programs in the near term for the region. 

This TDM plan will guide the region in its TDM work over the coming years. Key to the success of this 
plan will be the appointment of a subcommittee within CAMPO’s Technical Advisory Committee 
dedicated and focused on implementing actions addressing congestion, mobility, safety, and 
reliability. This subcommittee will help implement TDM practices within the region, support outreach 
to the region’s employers to encourage and partner on commuter-based programs, and work 
together on TDM solutions that will directly impact peak hour travel, mode choice, and enhanced 
mobility. 

The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) provided a workshop in August 2018, which was 
hosted by CAMPO and attended by regional planning partners, transportation professionals, and 
TDM stakeholders. The workshop provided an overview of contemporary approaches for influencing 
travel behavior and planning for demand management. Attendees participated in a self-assessment 
exercise to review existing TDM strategies and capabilities in the region and identify steps and 
actions to elevate the TDM capabilities in the region. Overall, participants noted a lack of consistency 
between TDM strategies, goals, and metrics throughout the region. Breakout groups participated 
in exercises to identify actions that will advance TDM applications from ad-hoc activities to well-
defined approaches and formalize a regional vision, goals, and objectives. Breakout groups then 
discussed the current status and advancement strategies for measuring the performance of the 
current TDM program in the region and ways to incorporate TDM into planning efforts and funding 
programs. This TDM plan addresses two of the actions identified in the workshop, which were to 
develop an overarching vision for TDM in the region with specific goals for the region and to assess 
and update the project selection criteria for TDM. A summary of Workshop materials and input is in 
the Appendix.

In January 2019, the TDM Steering Committee received a presentation on TDM best practices 
from agencies around the country. Each presentation incorporated a discussion of how the 
CAMPO region might adapt approaches or elements from the various peer locations. The Steering 
Committee learned the lessons gained from previous TDM activities at peer locations and discovered 
the emerging tools, resources, and technology helping travelers with their transportation choices. 
Subsequent discussion by the Committee focused on the strengths and challenges in the region and 
clarified targeted priorities for advancing TDM in the region. 

IntroductionIntroduction



4

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Figure 1.2

 January 29, 2019 TDM Steering Committee Meeting

Stakeholder interviews were also conducted to further explore what TDM means to the CAMPO 
region. In-depth interviews were conducted to gather input on perspectives, resources, and 
priorities as they relate to TDM projects and strategies. The team coordinated with steering 
committee members, major employers in the region, and representatives from planning agencies 
to schedule and conduct 14 individual interviews between February 6 and February 19, 2019. 
Interviews took place in-person or via conference call and lasted approximately one hour.

Organizations from both the public and private sectors were represented in interviews and had 
varying levels of experience, resources, and involvement related to the implementation of TDM 
applications. Representatives from CAPCOG, TxDOT, Travis and Bastrop Counties, the Cities of San 
Marcos and Austin, CTRMA, Capital Metro, Movability Transportation Management Association 
(TMA), the Greater Austin Chamber of Commerce, Samsung Semiconductor, Google, and Whole 
Foods participated in the interview process. 

While the interview process was tailored to the organization’s level of expertise and involvement 
in implementing TDM practices, the interviews generally began with a brief introduction to TDM 
concepts, the planning process, and desired outcomes of the plan. Interviewees were asked to 
describe their organization’s impact on mobility in the region and their role in implementing existing 
TDM strategies, as well as their priorities and desired outcomes for potential TDM strategies that 
could be deployed in the region. 

High-level themes emerged throughout the interview process as organizations identified TDM 
needs and priorities in the context of the region, including:

• Incorporation of transit features into future roadway projects; 

Introduction



5

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

• Expanded transit service; 

• Addition of managed lanes;

• Increased availability of micromobility options.

Other identified themes included:

• Improved data collection and sharing;

• Strategies to mitigate transportation demand during construction; 

• Outreach and education initiatives to motivate a mode shift; and,

• Potential dedicated funding to support TDM strategies.

Themes were carried forward and incorporated into defined priorities of the plan.

Regional TDM Priorities

Through collaborative efforts with the TDM Steering Committee, CAMPO and its partners identified the 
following priorities as needs and focus areas in advancing a TDM agenda for the region:

• Support transit projects and programs that address service gaps, such as increasing the number 
of and access to park-and-ride facilities, guaranteed ride home programs, and ensuring 
connections to the “last mile” portion of a trip;

• Support TxDOT, CTRMA, and other regional transportation providers in the implementation of 
managed lanes along key corridors inundated with traffic congestion and travel time reliability 
challenges;

• Increase outreach and public education programs that promote the value and opportunities 
available in TDM programs, awareness of travel and transit options;

• Fund projects and programs that address and reduce peak-time traffic congestion on priority 
corridors to provide for peak spreading 

• Fund projects and programs that support implementation of work zone queue mitigation 
during roadway construction;

IntroductionIntroduction



6

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

• Develop employer-based programs for raising employees’ awareness about travel 
options and the commute cost, for example distributing commuter bonus vouchers, 
spreading work hours, telecommuting, and flex time programs to address peak hour 
travel on key corridors; and

• Develop data collection and sharing programs and procedures to advance the planning 
and implementation efforts of member agencies to address TDM priorities.

Central to conducting an effective TDM program is having a plan to guide it. This plan documents 
the region’s vision, goals, and key objectives for the advancement of TDM in the CAMPO region. The 
defined goals support an implementation approach for TDM in the region. 

TDM strategies can be applied to address the growing traffic congestion the region faces in the 
future with programs that are measured and evaluated, so that TDM activities can be effectively 
adjusted as needed. Finally, the plan helps to foster partnerships and collaborations with transit 
agencies, regional planning agencies, TxDOT, and the business community, and others to advance 
transportation demand management principles in the region.

Introduction



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

7

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PART I
TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT  
VISION AND GOALS

The Regional TDM Plan provides a regional framework with supporting priorities that will guide 
the identification and development of projects and strategies to manage traffic congestion. 
The framework details demand management practices to accommodate the population and 
employment growth that strains the transportation system in the region. The TDM framework will 
focus on addressing traveler behavior and mobility choice, with a secondary focus on coordinating 
and incorporating TDM applications when infrastructure investments and development occurs. 

A vision statement should fully capture the aspirational goals that the CAMPO TDM Steering 
Committee and TDM Program would like to accomplish. The vision, goals, and objectives for the 
TDM plan were developed with input from the Steering Committee. Through the committee’s input, 
stakeholder interviews, and early workshop findings, CAMPO and its partners defined the below 
vision statement and supporting goals.

Vision

The Regional Transportation Demand Management Plan provides a regional framework of priorities 
that identify projects, programs, policies, and strategies to manage congestion as population 
and employment growth put additional pressure on the regional transportation network. 
These projects, programs, policies, and strategies focus on travel behavior, along with strategic 
investments in transportation programs and infrastructure, where appropriate. Additionally, these 
efforts provide travelers with more information and options for deciding how, where, and when to 
travel within the CAMPO region.

Goals

CAMPO, in coordination with the TDM Steering Committee, developed five primary goals to support 
the vision for the region. These goals capture the priorities expressed by the committee and provide 
the foundation for the project selection criteria. The goals are shown in order of importance.

1. Regional Coordination: Document a collaborative plan where all TDM stakeholders 
have ownership and contribute to developing and maintaining a regional TDM 
system that benefits the entire CAMPO region;

2. Incorporate TDM into the transportation planning process: Develop CAMPO 
polices with its partner agencies that promote and prioritize both programmatic and 
infrastructure investments in TDM projects and strategies;

Part I  Vision and GoalsPart I  Vision and Goals



8

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

3. Provide Education and Outreach: Expand outreach and education to travelers, 
providing the transportation options available to them for getting from point A to 
point B; 

4. Improve the Transportation System: Enhance the performance of the region’s 
multimodal transportation system, especially during peak periods; and

5. Increase Mobility Choices for Travelers: Provide a range of transportation options 
throughout the region.

Part I  Vision and Goals



9

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PART II 
MOVING GOALS FORWARD

For each of the five goals defined in Part 1, CAMPO and its partners developed associated objectives 
to further guide each goal in its implementation. Often the objectives underpinning each goal need 
to be embraced and enacted by specific (or multiple) stakeholder agencies. CAMPO provides 
stewardship by working with the regional stakeholders to move the regional TDM goals forward and 
aligning TDM applications to meet the objectives.

Regional Coordination

Document a collaborative plan where all TDM stakeholders have ownership and contribute to 
developing and maintaining a regional TDM system that benefits the entire CAMPO region.

To date, TDM measures and efforts for several stakeholder agencies have advanced at disparate 
paces. This goal proposes that CAMPO organize and facilitate TDM efforts, so that each agency has 
ownership of various TDM programs and efforts, but the TDM vision for the whole region vision can 
be measured and advanced.

Specific objectives to advance regional coordination are outlined below.

• Develop and implement regional solutions to transportation system congestion that 
cross jurisdictional lines;

• Establish protocols for sharing transportation data and TDM options between agencies;

• Develop and maintain a unified information source where travelers can access all 
elements of TDM in the region;

• Promote greater regionalism and cooperation in the CAMPO region by working toward 
shared TDM goals;

• Promote a quality of life that will attract new businesses and residents to the region; and

• Establish a TDM Subcommittee of CAMPO’s Technical Advisory Committee, with 
regular meetings to monitor and ensure the implementation of regional TDM programs.

Part II  Moving Goals ForwardPart II  Moving Goals Forward



10

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Incorporate TDM into the Transportation Planning Process

Develop CAMPO polices with its partner agencies that promote and prioritize both programmatic 
and infrastructure investments in TDM projects and strategies.

Successfully integrating TDM into agency programs across the region requires a greater emphasis 
on TDM in programmatic and infrastructure planning and investment. Objectives that advance this 
goal focus on ensuring that TDM is considered in the planning, policy, and programming stages of all 
agency programs. Advancing this goal will include preparing policy and planning recommendations 
for the CAMPO 2045 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). These objectives position CAMPO and 
its stakeholders to have a strong TDM agenda that can be included in the upcoming cycle for 2045. 

Specific objectives to better incorporate TDM into transportation decision-making are outlined below.

• Identify and support TDM projects and strategies before capacity projects when 
developing corridor studies, long range plans, and other planning documents;

• Incorporate TDM measures into capacity expansion projects; examples may include 
transit use on managed lanes, high-occupant vehicle lanes, and expanded intelligent 
transportation systems (ITS);

• Incentivize cities and counties to update development codes that better incorporate 
TDM elements;

• Establish a targeted amount or percentage of specific funding categories of the 
Transportation Improvement Program and Regional Transportation Plan to TDM 
measures.

Provide Education and Outreach

Expand outreach and education to travelers, providing the transportation options available to 
them for getting from point A to point B.

A central theme for advancing TDM in the region is the need to engage, inform, educate, and 
reach out to travelers', commuters, tourists, and employers in the region; many TDM measures are 
rooted in changing travel behaviors. The first step in changing behavior is travelers education; this 
encompasses not only educating travelers about available options (transit, carpooling, altering travel 
times, changing a route or mode, or forgoing the trip) but also promoting the principles of TDM and 
the transportation community’s efforts to help preserve the safety, maintain air quality, mobility, and 
travel time reliability in the region. 

Part II  Moving Goals Forward



11

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

One strategy to advance this goal is engaging employers directly. Steering Committee member 
Movability (TMA) works with major employers in the region to help them make mobility connections 
and provide educational materials on best practices for developing and implementing custom 
mobility plans for commuter challenges that employers and other trip generators can impact. Other 
TDM Steering Committee members see great value in engaging the region’s major employers as a 
great first step towards enacting TDM practices that influence traveler behavior and choice. 

Specific objectives to provide the necessary education and outreach to advance TDM by influencing 
traveler behavior are outlined below.

• Communicate directly to travelers about regional programs and options that already exist;

• Promote the development of tailored TDM programs across the region;

• Educate interested employers and trip generators on options, including flex schedules 
and teleworking;

• Market TDM programs through mechanisms such as advertising and dynamic message 
signs; and

• Have regional agencies be more proactively involved in generating more participation 
in promoting multimodal transportation options and encourage employers to provide 
incentives to their employees who practice TDM strategies.

Improve the Transportation System

Enhance the performance of the region’s multimodal transportation system, especially during peak 
periods.

As regional TDM stakeholders address the demands on the system, it must be acknowledged that 
the region is still building out infrastructure to address safety, mobility, and reliability. This goal area 
recognizes this reality while incorporating TDM practices in new capacity and infrastructure projects. 
When traditional roadway projects occur, this goal encourages a coordinated effort to include TDM 
strategies in the design and operation of the network.

The region also recognizes that the continued construction on the transportation system often 
disrupts travel times and mobility because of traffic management (detours, work zone queues, etc.) 
approaches. This goal encourages a greater focus on traffic management during construction. 

Specific objectives to improve the transportation system are outlined below.

Part II  Moving Goals ForwardPart II  Moving Goals Forward



12

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

• Reduce the number of single-occupant vehicles to ensure efficient use of the roadway 
network;

• Support greater use of transit, shared rides, and active transportation modes;

• Incentivize all traditional roadway projects to have coordinated TDM education and 
outreach plans during construction phases;

• Improve the reliability of the transportation network through improved incident 
management;

• Enhance the reliability of travel times by shifting trips to off-peak periods;

• Provide travelers with incident information and alternate route options through ITS and 
other outreach;

• Work with agencies, private companies, and employers to improve connectivity and first/
last mile trip segments;

• Target congested corridors of regional importance for strategic infrastructure investment, 
such as managed lanes; and

• Document and evaluate performance measures over time to identify effective strategies.

Increase Mobility Choices for Travelers

Provide a range of transportation options throughout the region.

This goal and its associated objectives enhance and inform travelers about mobility choice. Initiatives 
that advance TDM in the region should focus on understanding how people make their transportation 
decisions and champion projects that will improve and support those decisions. Information on 
mobility choices also help travelers understand and use the existing systems and infrastructure, such 
as transit, ride hailing, walking and biking routes, and others.

Specific objectives to provide for greater mobility choices for travelers in the region are outlined below.

• Optimize transit services throughout the region that provide alternatives to driving alone;

• Implement projects that encourage everyday use of active transportation for commuting 
or other trips;

Part II  Moving Goals Forward



13

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

• Provide information to travelers about joining carpools or vanpools;

• Partner with transportation providers to expand first/last mile connections to reduce the 
need for driving; and

• Improve safety by providing transportation options to travelers with mobility challenges.

Part III  Measuring PerformancePart II  Moving Goals Forward



14

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PART III
MEASURING PERFORMANCE

1 Performance Measurement Fundamentals. https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/perf_measurement/fundamentals/index.htm accessed 
4/2/2019.

Performance measures provide documentation of results and progress relative to an agency, 
program, project goal or objective. The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) defines 
performance measures as “the use of statistical evidence to determine progress toward specific 
defined organizational objectives. This includes both evidence of actual fact, such as measurement 
of pavement surface smoothness, and measurement of customer perception such as would be 
accomplished through a customer satisfaction survey.1” Good measures should be meaningful to 
the customer, tell the story on how well goals and objectives are met, and provide simple, logical, and 
easily understandable information that captures a trend of performance. 

In general, agencies’ ability to measure congestion 
and reliability directly lag other planning goal areas 
due to lack of data. Pavement and bridge performance 
have been linked to direct field measurements and 
have been widely used to help prioritize investments. 
Safety has a long history of performance measurement 
based on actual crash experience and corresponding 
evaluation of safety countermeasures. In contrast, 
TDM and mobility performance measurement has had 
to rely on surrogate measures, such as demand levels 
and estimates of available capacity to infer actual 
performance. 

Measuring and reporting program effectiveness of 
TDM for the CAMPO region will have two distinct 
categories for measuring performance: how the 
region is doing as a whole as it tracks to, and makes 
progress with, the five goals established in this TDM 
plan, and how specific projects measure up to project 
specific goals. For instance, a specific project along a 
congested corridor may measure success in terms of 
a reduced travel time on the corridor, improved travel 
time reliability, or an increase in transit ridership on 
the corridor. Success in achieving CAMPO’s goals for 
TDM might be in TDM projects being planned, funded, 
and managed by several member agencies showing 
greater collaboration to accomplish TDM in the region.

Part III  Measuring PerformancePart II  Moving Goals Forward

TDM Strategy Success

An example of an Austin area TDM 
success where before and after 
measures were in place has been 
documented with the CTRMA 
MoPac express lanes. Express and 
variable priced lanes are both TDM 
operational strategies. CTRMA 
reports that the express lanes have 
had average speeds of 50 miles per 
hour and have allowed travelers 
commutes that are 50% faster. Also, 
the toll-free access for Capital Metro 
transit vehicles have pointed to a 73% 
increase of Express Bus ridership on 
the MoPac route.1

MoPac Express Lane Fact Sheet.   
www.mobilityauthority.com/upload/files/
resources/Roads/MIP_Fact_Sheet_01_04_19.
pdf, accessed 4/2/2019.



15

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Measuring Progress on TDM Plan Goals

In addition to reporting performance on specific projects, as noted above, there exists an opportunity 
to measure and report on the progress on achieving the TDM goals established by the TDM Steering 
Committee. These goals and potential measures of success are shown in Table 3.1. 

Table 3.1

GOAL MEASURING PROGRESS

Regional Coordination:
Document a collaborative 
plan where all TDM 
stakeholders have ownership 
and contribute to developing 
and maintaining a regional 
TDM system that benefits 
the entire CAMPO region.

• Partner agencies document TDM projects and 
strategies into planning processes.

• Number of planning documents including TDM 
strategies.

• Number of agencies including TDM strategies 
in mission, planning documents, or construction 
activities.

• Number of FTE equivalents at agencies within the 
region that lead TDM efforts

Incorporate TDM into the 
transportation planning 
process:
Develop CAMPO polices 
with its partner agencies 
that promote and prioritize 
both programmatic and 
infrastructure investments in 
TDM projects and strategies.

• CAMPO 2045 Plan includes a TDM policy position

• Number of agencies incorporating CAMPO’s TDM 
goals into their individual processes.

• Number of cities and counties that update 
development codes to better incorporate TDM

• Number of applications per TIP cycle that incorporates 
TDM measures into their project applications and the 
types of measures incorporated

• Percentage amount of Transportation Improvement 
Program that is dedicated to TDM measures

Part III  Measuring PerformancePart III  Measuring Performance



16

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part III  Measuring Performance

GOAL MEASURING PROGRESS

Provide Education and 
Outreach:
Expand outreach and 
education to travelers, 
providing the transportation 
options available to them  
for getting from point A to 
point B.

• Develop a toolbox of outreach and education  
materials for major employers, trip generators and the 
general public.

• Number and types of outreach materials 
developed (hard materials, videos, engagements).

• Amount of materials distributed to general public and 
trip generators. Work with employers to implement 
TDM programs.

• Number of employers (or trip generators) 
demonstrating official commitments to TDM

• Geographic range of employers (or 
trip generators) demonstrating official 
commitments to TDM

• Number of outreach and education campaigns 
that engage underserved populations

• Number of jurisdictions and public agencies that 
conduct outreach and disseminate TDM materials 

Increase Mobility Choices 
for Travelers:
Provide a range of 
transportation options 
throughout the region. 

• Increase the range of transportation options 
throughout the region

• Number of vanpool/carpool participants

• Percentage of residents within 3, 5, and 7 
miles of a park and ride facility

• Percentage of residents within a quarter mile 
of a transit stop

• Percentage of residents who can reach their 
place of employment by transit within 30 and 
45 minutes

• Number of centerline miles for active 
transportation facilities

• Number of dedicated guideway miles

• Improve last mile connections

• Percentage of micro-mobility rides that originate or 
end within 200 feet of a transit stop or park and ride 
facility 



17

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

GOAL MEASURING PROGRESS

Improve the Transportation 
System:
Enhance the performance 
of the region’s multimodal 
transportation system, 
especially during peak 
periods. 

• Collaborate with agencies for greater real time traveler 
information

• Number of agencies providing real time traveler 
information

• Number of agencies sharing travel time data

• Decrease reliance on commuting via single-occupied 
vehicles

• Percentage of commute trips taken at least one 
day a week by a non single-occupancy vehicle 
(SOV) mode

Part IV  CAMPO TDM Project Selection CriteriaPart III  Measuring Performance



18

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part IV  CAMPO TDM Project Selection Criteria

PART IV
CAMPO TDM PROJECT SELECTION CRITERIA

CAMPO Project Selection

CAMPO is responsible for allocating certain federal and state funds for transportation projects in 
the six-county region. In order to administer these funding programs and ensure an effective and 
equitable distribution to project sponsors, CAMPO has developed a project evaluation and selection 
process with an emphasis on several key factors: regional perspective; transparent decision-making 
in allocating funding for regional projects; objective evaluations that emphasize performance-
based, results-driven outcomes; data supported project applications and evaluation processes; and 
accountability. CAMPO follows a cycle of steps in soliciting agencies for projects, referred to as the 
call for projects, by conducting a review, scoring, and selection process.

The first part of the selection process evaluates project readiness. Projects are then scored with a 
combination of planning factors and consideration of cost-effectiveness. TDM is one of the six 
distinct project category types. However, the other category types such as, Roadway, ITS and Transit 
all contain a TDM nexus in some way. For example, the Roadway category provides extra points for 
projects that include a multimodal aspect such as sidewalks or transit connectivity. 

Previous cycles of project selection have had minimal evaluation of benefit cost information of the 
TDM projects due to the difficulty of tracked, measured outcomes for the different programs in 
operation. This led to concerns at the decision maker level about wanting to ensure scarce resources 
are being used effectively compared to alternatives seeking funding from the CAMPO Policy Board. 
Revisions to the scoring incorporate a greater accountability for TDM performance reporting as 
shown in Table 4.1. In development of the plan, stakeholders determined that performance measures 
to inform a cost-benefit analysis for project selection purposes would be deferred by 2 years to allow 
for data collection by project sponsors.

Currently, evaluation of TDM services is done primarily on an annual basis by local governments in 
the region and agencies through their annual budget process, and by the MPO through periodic 
grant funding calls with performance-based project selection criteria. Discussion at the MPO level 
has gathered around cost-effective TDM implementation strategies and measures of effectiveness. 



19

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part IV  CAMPO TDM Project Selection CriteriaPart IV  CAMPO TDM Project Selection Criteria

Table 4.1 

CRITERIA VALUE PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Planning 10 The project or activity has undergone a 
comprehensive planning process or is identified 
as a priority in a local or regional transportation 
plan.

10 The planning process or document identifies an 
outreach component addressing commuting 
patterns and traveler engagement.

Regional Impact 10 The project or activity is located on or directly 
affects an existing or proposed regionally 
significant corridor.  

Safety 10 The project or activity addresses transportation 
safety.

Congestion and 
Mobility

10 The project or activity reduces vehicle miles 
traveled (VMT) or vehicle hours traveled (VHT).

5 The project or activity addresses periods of peak 
travel.

5 The project or activity reduces vehicle trips or 
manages demand through strategies such as 
carpools, vanpools, managed lanes, corridor 
improvements, ITS installation, signal optimization 
or park and rides.

Social and 
Environmental 
Impacts

5 The project or activity has a positive impact (e.g. 
reduction in transportation costs and emissions, 
improvements on public health) on underserved 
populations including low-income, minority, 
elderly, persons with disabilities, and limited 
English proficiency households.



20

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part IV  CAMPO TDM Project Selection Criteria

CRITERIA VALUE PERFORMANCE MEASURE

Multimodal  
Elements

10 The project or activity decreases single occupancy 
vehicles usage or increases transit access. 

Interagency 
Coordination

10 The project or activity includes the direct 
participation of other federal, state, or local 
jurisdictions. 

10 The project or activity includes participation from 
regional employers and other trip generators 
impacting travel patterns.

Funding 5 The project or activity’s local cost share is 
overmatched. (5% = 1 point)

Total Points 100

TDM Planning Factors and Scoring Elements (as revised April 2019)

Additional Planning Factor Information – TDM Projects

The point values available for each criteria are noted in parenthesis.

• Planning (10) – The project or activity type should be identified in locally or regionally 
adopted transportation plans, including state, city, or county thoroughfare plans, city 
comprehensive plans; or CAMPO documents including the long-range Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP). Provide the name of the plan(s) in which the project is 
included, and its date of adoption or approval.

• Planning (10) - Planning efforts should also include and identify specific outreach 
goals and coordination activities conducted with employers (and other agencies and 
institutions) in the region to promote TDM principles. The projects or activity should also 
include the identification of entities approached, the types of efforts used to engage 
and coordinate with them, and the measure to determine program effectiveness.

• Regional Impact (10) – Note if the project or activity is located on or directly affects a 
facility designated on the National Highway System or is a Principal Arterial in CAMPO’s 
current RTP.



21

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part IV  CAMPO TDM Project Selection CriteriaPart IV  CAMPO TDM Project Selection Criteria

• Safety (10) – Describe safety enhancements that the project or activity will include to 
reduce the potential for crashes and create a safer, more secure experience for travelers. 

• Congestion and Mobility (10) – Provide detail and documentation on how the project 
or activity reduces vehicle miles traveled (VMT). For example, documentation detailing 
(actual or estimated) number of participants in the project or activity and/or anonymized 
origin-destination data to calculate the amount of VMT reduction. 

• Congestion and Mobility (5) – Provide detail and documentation on how the project 
or activity reduces congested peak period travel. For example, provide documentation 
detailing (actual or estimated) employers or travelers participating in the project or 
activity that altered departure times based on the project. 

• Congestion and Mobility (5) – Provide detail and documentation on how the 
project or activity includes operational improvements that improve traffic flow such 
as ITS implementation, signal optimization, real-time incident notifications, corridor 
improvements, managed lanes, or park and rides.

• Social and Environmental Impacts (5) – Provide documentation and analysis that 
demonstrates that the project or activity will directly benefit underserved populations. 
Refer to Environmental Justice analysis tools provided by the Environmental Protection 
Agency, Federal Highway Agency, and the Texas Department of Transportation 
Environmental Division. 

• Multimodal Elements (10) – Refer to CAMPO’s Regional Active Transportation Plan 
and note how the project or activity advances its goals. Alternatively, if a project or 
activity is not in regional plans (including transit, active transportation, and others) but 
is included in a locally-adopted transportation plan, provide the plan name and date of 
adoption or approval. Describe the ways the project or activity uses alternative modes, 
increases transit access, or includes active transportation modes. 

• Interagency Coordination (10) – Provide documentation, in the form of resolutions, 
inter-local agreements, or memoranda of understanding among local agencies that 
demonstrates a combined effort in the project or activity such as pooling resources and 
data sharing programs.

• Interagency Coordination (10) – Provide documentation, in the form of a signed 
agreement or other official documentation, demonstrating employer (or other traffic 
generators) commitment to the project or activity such as the provision of transit 
incentives, telework or flexible work schedule policies, carpool incentives, or other 
TDM strategies of project activities that will engage regional employers (or agencies) to 
impact commuting patterns.



22

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part IV  CAMPO TDM Project Selection Criteria

• Funding (5) – Describe how the project or activity’s local cost share goes beyond 
the funding match requirements. Provide documentation that identifies committed 
funding for the project.

Measuring Performance for Selected Projects

Projects selected for funding using the CAMPO criteria should have a level of accountability for 
reporting project results. Since projects will take many forms, there will be many forms of reporting 
qualitative and anecdotal results as well as technical analysis to report on a project’s return on 
investment. Mobility Lab is a resource for the TDM community to assist in assessing return on 
investment for TDM strategies, policies, and programs. Mobility Lab is a consortium of public 
agencies and a growing resource of contributors that help tell the story of TDM success. This 
resource provides a “cost savings calculator” to estimate TDM benefits and can be found at  
https://mobilitylab.org/calculators/. 

Research indicates there are two general approaches to estimating the impacts of TDM strategies 
– sketch planning and modeling. Currently, there are four TDM-specific models that have been 
developed in the United States:

• EPA COMMUTER Model

• TDM Effectiveness Evaluation Model (TEEM)

• Worksite Trip Reduction Model (WTRM)

• Trip Reduction Impacts of Mobility Management Strategies (TRIMMS)

As CAMPO enacts this TDM plan, additional criteria may be included in project selection and 
reporting. Understanding the return on investment from this project selection process will be 
important in advancing the TDM program. 



23

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

PART V
EXISTING CONDITIONS REPORT

TDM is not a new practice to the CAMPO region. This section describes the existing conditions, 
the current organization of TDM efforts, and the work already being done to implement TDM 
throughout the region.

The CAMPO Region

Agency Roles and Responsibilities 

Within the region, there are a variety of agencies and private sector service providers that perform 
a range of TDM activities. The majority of TDM activities are implemented at the local level and in 
partnership with the private sector. Multiple organizations, including employers, private service 
providers, and local agencies currently provide TDM services. Figure 5.1 on the next page illustrates 
“who is doing what” from a policy, service provision, programming, evaluation, and funding perspective 
within the region. As shown in the figure, the multiple agencies that do many of the same functions, 
like operate a park and ride, show the need for coordination to ensure an efficient use of resources. 

Planning and Policies – Traditionally, public agencies at the Local, State, and 
MPO level participate in the planning efforts and policy setting, as well as provide 
leadership within the existing regulatory framework of the region.

Service Provision – A host of programs are sponsored or provided by State, Local, 
and regional agencies, non-profit organizations, as well as the private sector. 
Movability, the region's Transportation Management Agency (TMA), is unique in that 
it has both public and private components.

Programs – Implementation of programs occurs primarily at the local level. Local 
ownership provides stakeholder accountability, matches funding to services, and 
allows implementation to better adapt services to specific markets they serve. In many 
cases, multiple agencies and organizations collaborate to provide a service provision 
such as park and ride service, but in other examples they may provide similar services 
to different or the same segments of the community such as trip planning.

Evaluation – Currently, evaluation of TDM services is done on an annual basis 
by local governments and agencies through their annual budget process, and by 
the MPO through periodic grant funding calls with performance-based project 
selection criteria. Discussion at the MPO level has gathered around cost-effective 
TDM implementation strategies and measures of effectiveness. 



24

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report

Figure 5.1

Funding – Partnerships between the public and private sectors have been critical for 
funding TDM activities in the region and have evolved between sources and levels 
of funds. Discussion at the MPO level leading into the development of this plan has 
centered on cost-effective TDM implementation strategies and appropriate funding 
responsibility sharing between Federal, State, and local governments, and the 
private sector. 

Public and Private sectors – partnerships and collaboration are universal 
components of transportation services and TDM activities, whether their bottom 
line is in the public or private realm. This plan recognizes the efforts and services that 
the private sector provides distinctly from the public agencies in the role of service 
provision, program implementation, and funding activities. 



25

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report

Agencies and organizations that provide services and programs in the region include: 

Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Capital Metro) – Austin’s regional 
public transportation provider.

Capital Area Rural Transit System (CARTS) – the rural/urban transit provider that 
services the non-urbanized areas of Bastrop, Blanco, Caldwell, Fayette, Hays, Lee, 
Travis and Williamson counties, and the San Marcos urbanized area.

Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) – government entity made up 
of over 90 members of governments and organizations, CAPCOG helps recognize 
opportunities for collaboration across Bastrop, Blanco, Burnet, Caldwell, Fayette, 
Hays, Lee, Llano, Travis, and Williamson Counties.

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (CTRMA) – an independent government 
agency dedicated to improving the transportation system in Williamson and Travis 
Counties using multimodal transportation solutions.

Local Governments – local governments develop transportation and mobility plans 
impacting transportation demand in the region. 

Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) – government agency responsible for 
the construction and maintenance of the state highway system and mobility in the 
state.

Transportation Network Companies – matching passengers with vehicles via 
websites and mobile applications, for example, Uber and Lyft.

Carshare companies – renting automobiles on-demand, typically for short one-way 
trips; for example, Car2Go.

Carpool applications – rideshare service that arranges on-demand rides through a 
mobile application. 

Linkages to Other Plans

Long-Range Transportation Plan

2 This Transportation Demand Management Plan will be incorporated into CAMPO’s 2045 Long-Range Transportation Plan.

CAMPO’s 2040 Regional Transportation Plan is the currently adopted long-range regional 
transportation plan which identifies needs, programs, and projects for regional transportation 
planning over a 20-year planning horizon2. The 2040 Plan addresses needs for transit planning and 



26

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

service expansion, incident management strategies, and integrated technology systems as methods 
for improving efficiency of the regional transportation system, as well as describing specific TDM 
measures and potential benefits of implementation.

The 2040 Plan outlines several TDM strategies that will be further explored in this TDM Plan, 
including teleworking and flexible work hours; alternate transportation modes such as bike sharing, 
carsharing, ridesharing, transportation network companies; and parking management strategies to 
disincentivize use of single occupancy vehicles. The 2040 Plan also includes recommendations for 
land use strategies to manage demand, such as encouraging development in clusters and promoting 
mixed-use areas that create housing, employment, and retail centers in close proximity and are 
accessible by a range of transportation options.

Local Plans

TDM is an included element in several of the region’s adopted transportation plans including; 
Austin’s Imagine Austin comprehensive plan, Climate Action Plan, and demand management 
elements of the Austin Strategic Mobility Plan, the City of San Marcos’ Transportation Master Plan, 
and the TxDOT Austin District Transportation System Management Plan. The Imagine Austin Plan’s 
priorities program calls for “investing in a compact and connected Austin.” TDM is listed as a strategy 
through increasing transportation options, managed lanes, and compact centers and corridors. The 
associated plan action (Land Use-Transportation (LUT), pg.19) states:

“Reduce traffic congestion, increase transit use, and encourage alternative 
transportation modes through such practices as Transportation Demand 
Management which includes carpooling, flex time work schedules, and subsidizing 
transit costs for employees.”

The 2015 Austin Climate Action Plan includes recommendations to support action on TDM for large 
employers and academic institutions to implement trip reduction programs, monitored by surveys, 
and provision of information about travel choices to encourage residents to limit single occupant 
trips. Austin Climate Action plan promotes commuter first and last mile solutions, circulator buses, 
collective zoned vanpool service, flex route systems, and bikeshare type strategies. Key actions 
highlighted includes seeking opportunities to prioritize public transit and increasing bike and 
pedestrian mode share for workers who live near work and school.

The Austin Strategic Mobility Plan (ASMP 2019) includes TDM among its top ten strategies to reach 
a 50/50 Mode share goal by 2039.

“Manage congestion by managing demand:  
Transportation demand management (TDM) is an approach to tackling congestion 
through strategies that more quickly reduce our impact on the transportation 
network rather than adding costly capacity.” 



27

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report

The ASMP also includes other non-SOV supportive multimodal and operational strategies that 
reinforce TDM, including: public transit, building active transportation access, right-sizing and 
managing parking supply as a strategy to manage demand, and developing shared mobility options. 
The ASMP includes 25 action items specific to TDM implementation ranging from creating a city-wide 
TDM specific plan and providing incentives to require trip-end facilities through the development 
process, to relocating City facilities to transit-rich environments.

In 2018 the City of San Marcos adopted a transportation master plan which includes “Consider 
travel demand management strategies prior to implementation of thoroughfare projects to reduce 
vehicular demand.” A parking implementation plan conducted simultaneously includes a demand 
management element.

Other plans within the region cover aspects of TDM but do not specifically note it; Capital Metro’s 
Connections 2025, and Project Connect, and CTRMA’s managed lane program.

The limited number of existing plans formally dedicated to TDM strategies and indicates that there is 
a need for additional regional coordination.

Population

The region is home to an estimated population of 2,216,000 (2018). As of the 2018 Census update, 
it was the 30th largest metropolitan area in the US and growing by an average of more than 55,000 
people every year. Average travel time to work by all modes is just under 25 minutes. The region is 
popular and growing, with the population currently projected to more than double over the next 25 
years. The region continues to grow annually at 3% with this trend forecasted to continue through 
2045. By 2045, forecasted population (Figure 5.2) and employment (Figure 5.4) are 4.5 million and 
2.25 million jobs, respectively. This growth trend will continue to pose challenges to accommodate 
commuters both within the current urbanized area and in future emerging areas.



28

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Figure 5.2

 CAMPO Region Population Distribution 

Source: 2045 Baseline demographics estimates, CAMPO

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

Estimated Total 
Population



29

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report

Figure 5.2 illustrates both the existing population density of the region in 2015 as well as the baseline 
population density growth projected by 2045. As has historically been the case for the region, 
population is loosely situated predominantly north-south along the IH-35 corridor, but also along 
the east-west corridors of SH 71 and US 290. Recent trends have shown expansion of residential 
development along SH 29 in Williamson County, SH 21 in Bastrop County, US 79 in Williamson 
County, and west of Ranch Road 12 in western Hays county. Over the plan horizon, this outward 
expanding development pattern will continue. Redevelopment and in-fill development is anticipated 
to continue in Austin and Travis County.

Employment

Similar to population, employment in the region is also generally situated along the IH-35 corridor 
both in quantity and density. Data from the 2018 Austin Chamber of Commerce reveal the largest 
major employers in the region are also geographically situated along the IH-35 corridor. Based on 
a 2019 Austin Chamber of Commerce database, Figure 5.3 illustrates the largest major employers 
with greater than 300 employees in the region. Figure 5.4 shows the projected employment for the 
region represented as blue clusters. Both figures show that employment growth will continue along 
the IH-35 corridor despite, as noted in the previous section, the continued population growth in 
other areas of the region. 



30

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

Figure 5.3

Major Employers with more than 300 employees 

Source: Austin Chamber of Commerce, Bastrop EDC



31

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report

Figure 5.4

CAMPO Region Employment Distribution 

Source: 2045 Baseline demographics estimates, CAMPO

Estimated Total Jobs



32

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

Network Usage

Roadways

Vehicle Miles Traveled

Vehicle miles traveled (VMT) is a long-standing metric for measuring the use of personal vehicles. 
It can also be a proxy measure for the overall intensity of usage of the transportation system. Over 
time, as shown in Figure 5.5, the CAMPO region has experienced growth in VMT as the region has 
experienced population and employment growth. VMT trends broken down by county are shown 
in Figure 5.6. Daily VMT (DVMT) has increased from 38.6 million in 2005 when the population of 
the region was approximately 1.5 million persons, to a current estimate of approximately 53.5 million 
DVMT with 2.2 million residents. 

Annual VMT can vary year by year, but generally, as referenced in Figure 5.7, the region has a current 
trend of reduction in per-capita vehicle miles traveled, echoing the trend across Texas. Overall, 
despite the decline in per capita DVMT, the strong population growth in the region will result in 
an overall increase in VMT in the system. This trend emphasizes the importance of fostering TDM 
practice, informing travelers of options, offering alternatives for users, and better managing the 
system across the various responsible agencies.

Figure 5.5



33

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Figure 5.6 

Figure 5.7

Congestion 

The CAMPO region currently contains 14 of the state’s most congested locations according to the 
Texas A&M Transportation Institute in their annual congestion report using Highway Performance 
Monitoring System and INRIX data. Long at the top within the region, and third in the state, the IH-35 
corridor between US 290 and Ben White Boulevard/SH71 alone results in more than 1.3 million hours 
of delay per mile, annually. 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report



34

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

The corridor serves more than 175,000 vehicles on an average day and its segments represent 
three of the top four most congested links in this region. Figure 5.8 illustrates the most congested 
segments of national highway system in Texas as measured by TTI annually.

Figure 5.8

Pedestrian and Bicycle Networks

As of 2017, the region contains more than 16,000 miles of road. Yet, there are approximately 2,000 
miles of sidewalks and 1,300 miles of bicycle lanes. Additionally, the region has approximately 64 
miles of guideways, such as a rail line or bus lane, dedicated to transit. 

Table 5.9 compares the CAMPO region with other Texas regions in terms of availability of non-
managed personal vehicle networks. While not all regions maintain an active inventory of sidewalks, 
the comparison illustrates that the CAMPO region significantly lags behind the Houston-Galveston 
(H-GAC) region when comparing active transportation and transit dedicated facilities as a percentage 
of road miles.



35

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Table 5.9

REGION SIDEWALKS BICYCLE DEDICATED 
GUIDEWAY TOTAL CENTERLINE 

MILES PERCENTAGE

H-GAC 19300 1478 44 20822 29639 70.25%

CAMPO 2000 1300 64 3364 16375 20.54%

AAMPO Unknown 308 0 308 10472 2.94%

NCTCOG Unknown 671 306 977 38008 2.57%

Existing non-managed personal vehicle networks in the CAMPO region are largely separated 
by the implementing and operating agencies but include the transit networks of Capital Metro 
service area and CARTS service areas, the regional bicycle network, and regional managed lanes 
network maintained by TxDOT and CTRMA separately. Sidewalk networks are maintained by local 
governments and/or TxDOT. Larger versions of summary maps shown in Figure 5.10 are included in 
the appendix.

Figure 5.10

Existing Regional Bicycle, Rural Transit,  
Park and Ride, Urban Transit, and Toll Facilities

Travel Mode Split

How people move about, described as their mode of travel, is important when considering the 
options and efficiencies of the transportation network. The primary mode of travel for journey to 
work is measured periodically by the US Census as part of their American Community Survey. 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report



36

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

As a measure of travel demand, any mode other than travel by a single occupant vehicle can be 
considered a non-SOV trip, including those who telecommute to work or work from home.3 Travel 
modes are considered by personal car or truck, carpooling, transit, bicycle, walk, work at home. The 
CAMPO region is aggregated into patterns or clusters of combined ways to work other than travel 
alone by car, and Figure 5.11 shows these combined non-drive alone modes by area. The graphic 
illustrates how combinations of multiple non-SOV modes can result in higher percentages of usage, 
even in areas where there are fewer transportation alternatives overall. The tracts in the figure have 
been aggregated into hexagons for ease of presentation. 

3  The American Community Survey simply asks for a respondent to provide their main 

mode of travel. Therefore, it does not capture residents who practice multiple modes of 

commuting such as taking transit or working from home once or twice a week.



37

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Figure 5.11

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report



38

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

Transit Mode Split

Transit is typically offered in urbanized areas along fixed routes of travel but also can be demand-
responsive for routine, scheduled trips in areas of the region not supported by fixed route transit. 
As a result, transit as a share of work commutes can be a smaller share across a broad region but is 
critical for providing services to populations that otherwise do not have access to needed services. 
Capital Metro and CARTS currently serve as the main line-haul transit service providers for the 
region and serve over 30 million passenger trips per year, and approximately 100,000 average 
weekday trips. In 2017,  Capital Metro operated 751 transit vehicles and CARTS operated 91 transit 
vehicles. 



39

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Figure 5.12

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report



40

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

Within the CAMPO region, the transit mode split illustrates the elevated use where clusters of 
development make transit as a travel mode more efficient and effective – in the core of the region in 
Austin and in San Marcos. Figure 5.12 illustrates the transit mode as a share of commute.

Existing Programs and Strategies

Several existing programs were identified through stakeholder interviews, including:

Fixed-Route and On-Demand Transit Services

The majority of the fixed-route and on-demand transit services are provided by Capital Metro 
and CARTS. GoGeo, a more recent fixed route and on-demand transit service, serves the City of 
Georgetown with four fixed-routes and paratransit services. Multiple employers in the region such 
as the City of Austin, Cirrus Logic, and Google provide shuttle services for their employees. School 
transportation is a critical component of the TDM system. School buses are generally managed by 
the School Districts of which there are approximately 39 within the CAMPO region.

Park-and-Ride Service

Another aspect of fixed-route transit service includes park-and-ride services, which are currently 
provided by Capital Metro and CARTS in conjunction with their Express, MetroRail, and regular 
route services. A current success case in TDM combines the express lane services from CTRMA and 
MetroExpress route services, which have seen significant increases in ridership and reductions in 
route travel time since completion of the MoPac express lanes. Park and ride facilities in the region 
are places dedicated to transit stations or other lots that are not normally used during work hours such 
as those of churches, theaters, or shopping malls. For example, Austin's New Life Church parking lot 
is used as a Park-and-Ride facility for Capital Metro's Express Bus Service.

Guaranteed Ride Home

Guaranteed Ride Home programs provide free emergency trip options for commuters using 
alternative transportation methods, reducing barriers for those who rely on single-occupancy vehicles 
for emergency trips. Capital Metro currently provides Guaranteed Ride Home services, and CAPCOG 
kicked off a Guaranteed Ride Home program in September 2018 through commutesolutions.com



41

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Commute Planning and Incentives

Smart Trips Austin is a partnership between the City of Austin and Capital Metro, offering personalized 
transportation solutions for an everyday commute. Smart Trips Austin hosts events throughout the 
year providing information on mobility options including riding the bus, carpooling, biking, and 
walking. Another regional program is Commute Solutions, which offers a “one stop” trip planning 
tool to support Central Texans in planning their commute. Commute Solutions works to encourage 
alternative travel options like carpool, vanpool, transit, bicycling, teleworking, and walking and to 
educate individuals throughout the region on their mobility choices. Capital Metro’s Trip Planner 
provides a tool for riders to plan a desired route from start to finish accounting for detours or stop 
closures. 

Commercial programs such as Google Waze, Apple Maps, and Ride Amigos also provide commute 
planning information such as the location of accidents, construction areas, and the different commute 
modes available to a traveler. Currently, CAPCOG and Travis County contract with service providers 
such as RideAmigos to provide online commute tracking and planning resources for employers. 
Private service providers such as RideAmigos allow organizations to create custom sub-networks on 
online platforms such as the CAPCOG MyCommuteSolutions.com platform tailored to serve specific 
needs of their employees. As of July 2019, Austin Commuters will be able to incorporate scooter trips 
into their commutes if they use public transportation and the Transit app. The Transit app will enable 
users to enter starting locations and destinations and get suggested routes that combine the use of 
a scooter operated by Spin and public transit.

Subsidized or Reduced Transit Fares and Shared Mobility Costs 

MetroWorks is a program offered by Capital Metro providing organizations a purchasing plan to offer 
employees and students transit passes at a discounted price. Key stakeholders including Google, 
Whole Foods Market, and Samsung offer employees free or discounted transit passes and reduced 
or reimbursed costs for shared mobility programs such as carpools or vanpools. In addition to 
MetroWorks, Capital Metro, in partnership with the Austin Community Foundation, has continued 
to invest in the Transit Empowerment Fund. Empowering people by increasing access to transit 
options, the Transit Empowerment Fund distributes transit passes to low-income individuals, funds 
demonstrative projects that expand service in underserved neighborhoods, and works to identify 
transportation challenges and opportunities in the region.

Shared Mobility and Dockless Vehicle Options

Transit services provided through Capital Metro and CARTS make up the bulk of shared mobility 
programs in the region. Additional shared mobility programs, such as Capital Metro MetroRideShare, 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report



42

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

myCommuteSolutions, Metropia, Waze Carpool, WeDriveU, RideScout, and community-based 
carpooling solutions exist in several areas of the region and are promoted by various employers, 
such as Google, Samsung, and Whole Foods. Dockless vehicle options are becoming increasingly 
popular, especially within employment centers such as downtown and the Domain. Shared bicycle 
programs have already seen tremendous growth in popularity, and B-cycle experienced the highest 
usage of any shared bicycle program in the country during Austin’s South by Southwest Festival in 
2014. B-cycle has continued to set new records for bike usage each year. Electric scooter companies, 
such as Lime and Bird, and car sharing programs, such as Car2Go and ZipCar, provide first/last mile 
commuting options and emergency trip vehicles within limited but expanding service areas.

4  Percentages do not equal 100 due to rounding. 

Parking Policies and Availability

Parking availability at the destination is one of the key determinants for a traveler choosing to travel 
alone by vehicle. Managing parking supply, either through cost, time or availability is a powerful, 
market-based incentive to influence traveler behavior. In the CAMPO region, there are two focused 
areas of managed parking, currently the central business district of Austin, and increasingly in San 
Marcos. Due to the limited availability of data related to parking policies throughout the region, it is 
recommended that a region-wide parking study be conducted to gather more data on other regional 
nodes. 

Parking Supply - Austin

There are currently 62,805 parking spaces in the downtown Austin vicinity. Approximately 43 
percent are open to the public, 25 percent are restricted to residents, employees, and customers, 
and 33 percent are either public parking, restricted parking, or dependent upon time of day as to 
their availability for public use. 4 

Parking Demand

Demand for parking in many off-street facilities is uneven throughout the weekdays, showing 
significant underutilization in the evenings on weekdays and weekends. Demand can vary by location 
and in at least one instance (Palmer Event Center), weekend parking demand exceeds weekday 
demand.

Since on-street parking is usually significantly less expensive than off-street parking, demand for 
on-street parking is consistently higher. Parking demand is unevenly distributed throughout the 
downtown core and existing parking facilities are not being used efficiently. 



43

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

A 2016 Downtown Austin Parking Strategy Study conducted by the Downtown Austin Alliance 
categorizes the public into two general groups of opinion regarding downtown parking: One group 
wishes to prioritize access by building more parking and making it “free” or otherwise subsidized by 
business developments; the second school of thought supports better management and coordination 
of parking supply and increased multimodal investment to serve the need that otherwise would go to 
increases in parking. The study concludes that in order to accommodate future, projected growth in 
the central business district, the City of Austin will need to balance increasing the parking supply with 
enhancements to current parking management. 5 One strategy used sporadically in the region is the 
deployment of a parking guidance system, which is a series of red and green lights that quickly alert 
drivers if a parking spot is available. These lights also feed information boards that notify drivers to the 
availability of parking within the garage or lot. This system can reduce the time spent on searching for 
parking, resulting in a more efficient movement of vehicles and fewer vehicle emissions.

5  Sources: 2016 Downtown Austin Parking Strategy, City of Austin, 2014 Parking Management Study.

Highway Emergency Response Operator (HERO) Patrol Service Program

TxDOT operates a free to the user roadside assistance program for stranded motorists in their service 
area, as well as a first responder support for local emergency response agencies to assist in crashes 
and reduce the clearance times for severe crashes that reduce travel time delay from incidents both 
large and small. Their service area currently covers US 183, IH-35, US 290, SH 71, and MoPac in Travis 
County, Williamson County, and Hays County.

Stakeholders and Partners

This section details the TDM steering committee and additional stakeholders and partners identified 
by the committee for involvement, and how each entity might better integrate, lead, and coordinate 
TDM program efforts.

Stakeholder Interviews

In-depth interviews were conducted with key stakeholders in the region to gather input on 
perspectives, resources, and priorities as they relate to TDM projects and strategies. The team 
coordinated with steering committee members, major employers in the region, and representatives 
from planning agencies to schedule and conduct 14 individual interviews between February 6 and 
February 19, 2019. Interviews took place in-person or via conference call and lasted approximately 
one hour.

Organizations from both the public and private sectors were represented in interviews and had 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report



44

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

varying levels of experience, resources, and involvement related to the implementation of TDM 
applications. Representatives from CAPCOG, TxDOT, Travis and Bastrop Counties, the Cities of San 
Marcos and Austin, CTRMA, Capital Metro, Movability, the Greater Austin Chamber of Commerce, 
Samsung Semiconductor, Google, and Whole Foods participated in the interview process. 

While the interview process was tailored to the organization’s level of expertise and involvement 
in implementing TDM practices, the interviews generally began with a brief introduction to TDM 
concepts, the planning process, and desired outcomes of the plan. Interviewees were asked to 
describe their organization’s impact on mobility in the region and their role in implementing existing 
TDM strategies, as well as their priorities and desired outcomes for potential TDM strategies that 
could be deployed in the region.

High-level themes emerged throughout the interview process as organizations identified TDM 
needs and priorities in the context of the region, including:

• Incorporation of transit features into future roadway projects 

• Expanded transit service 

• Addition of managed lanes

• Increased availability of micro mobility options 

• Improved data collection and sharing

• Strategies to mitigate transportation demand during construction 

• Outreach and education initiatives to motivate a mode shift

• Dedicated funding to support TDM strategies

Movability

Movability is a Transportation Management Association that coordinates mobility programs and 
services for public and private entities in Central Texas. The organization works with a variety of 
employers around Central Texas to help them develop customized mobility policies and programs, 
learn more about mobility options, network with service providers and other employers to learn best 
commuting practices, and implement existing mobility policies and plans. Currently, Movability’s 
focus is on the Austin central business district and large tech employers, with plans to expand to 
other partners.



45

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

CAPCOG

One of the 24 councils of governments in Texas, the Capital Area Council of Governments 
(CAPCOG), serves as voluntary organization of local governments. The organization serves as an 
advocate, planner, and coordinator on regional issues in the greater 10-county Austin Metropolitan 
Area, including Bastrop, Blanco, Burnet, Caldwell, Fayette, Hays, Lee, Llano, Travis, and Williamson 
counties. Their broad services include emergency communications, elderly assistance programs, law 
enforcement training, criminal justice planning, and air quality monitoring. CAPCOG currently houses 
the Commute Solutions program which promotes TDM activities through social media marketing, 
advertising and outreach, and the provision of services including the MyCommuteSolutions.com 
platform and an emergency ride-home program.

Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority (CMTA)  
Office of Mobility Management

Capital Metro is the primary fixed route public transit service provider for the CAMPO region. Their 
service area covers approximately 520 square miles of the 5,307 square mile CAMPO region. Capital 
Metro provides approximately 30 million trips by bus, rail, and vanpool and demand response services 
per year. The Office of Mobility Management (OMM) is a collaboration between Capital Metro and 
Capital Area Rural Transportation Systems (CARTS). The office has access to 26 community partners 
that are dedicated to meeting the transportation needs of senior adults, people with disabilities, and 
veterans. They offer services for coordinating accessible ride services for disadvantaged populations 
branded as mytxride.com. OMM also collaboratively develops transit service plans with suburban 
communities that are outside the Capital Metro service area.

Capital Area Rural Transportation Systems (CARTS)

Capital Area Rural Transportation Systems (CARTS) is responsible for transit services in the non-
urbanized areas of Bastrop, Blanco, Burnet, Caldwell, Fayette, Hays, Lee, Travis, and Williamson 
counties. CARTS also serves the San Marcos urbanized area. CARTS buses operate from eight transit 
stations located strategically throughout the CARTS District, which also house Greyhound stations. 
CARTS provides predictable connections between these communities to the national intercity bus 
network, to Capital Metro services, and to the metropolitan center of the region. CARTS primarily 
operates along three fixed routes but also provides a demand response service. These rural service 
lines operate on a pulse schedule, where fixed routes meet at a common location for riders to transfer 
between vehicles. In addition to its fixed route system, CARTS also operates the Country Bus service 
which provides door to door service for riders, who must schedule rides 24 hours in advance, within 
the rural service area. CARTS serves approximately 240,000 trips per year.

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report



46

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

City of Austin

The City of Austin provides many transportation planning and implementation functions, along with 
land-use authority, infrastructure development, and operations. The city’s Transportation Demand 
Management Program promotes alternative modes of travel through several initiatives and helps 
incorporate TDM strategies into the city’s development projects. Key initiatives of the TDM program 
include marketing and education, parking management, improved transportation options, land use, 
and incorporating TDM strategies into city plans. The program is expanding to core neighborhoods 
that have access to multiple travel modes to educate residents to their benefits. The city also manages 
a pilot TDM incentives program for its own employees to offer incentives for their travel alternatives.

Travis County

Travis County, which includes most of the City of Austin and surrounding areas, has the highest 
population in the CAMPO area and includes the region’s largest employment centers such as 
downtown Austin and the Domain. Travis County is responsible for transportation planning and 
implementation in unincorporated areas, as well as provision of emergency services. The county is 
developing a long-range Transportation Blueprint, which will enhance multimodal transportation 
options to manage current and future travel demand. The county partnered with Capital Metro 
and CARTS to create a Transit Development Plan that will improve TDM options in gap areas 
through mobility on demand pilot projects, community-based solutions that include free transit 
passes, telework programs, flexible work hours, bicycle facilities at County buildings, carpooling 
and vanpooling, and a Commuter Leave Incentive Program offering additional leave for using and 
recording sustainable commutes. As an employer, Travis County promotes TDM through an in-house 
employee commute program and provides in kind support for CAPCOG’s Commute Solutions 
Program.

Bastrop County

Located in the rapidly growing area east of Austin, Bastrop County is responsible for transportation 
planning and development services in the historically non-urbanized jurisdiction. As population 
and transportation demand increases in the County, TDM strategies are emerging as a method of 
promoting sustainable growth. Over half of the population within Bastrop County commutes daily 
to Travis County, and opportunities for shared mobility programs and potential transit options are 
becoming more realistic with newly forming pockets of dense development. The local government 
is currently promoting outreach and education opportunities to encourage mode shifts for residents 
where feasible.



47

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (CTRMA)

The Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (CTRMA) is one of the entities responsible for 
planning, funding mobility and safety improvements in Williamson and Travis Counties, partnering 
with various agencies to expand or establish programs that improve system efficiency. While CTRMA 
has funded and managed several toll road projects in the area, and the MoPac Managed Lanes, they 
are also increasing their focus on TDM practices to address congestion and considering the feasibility 
of demand-based pricing on existing toll roads, implementing managed express lanes on non-tolled 
facilities, and incorporating active transportation facilities on roadway projects where possible. 
CTRMA promotes TDM strategies for employees by encouraging teleworking and carpooling 
and has implemented a Green Roads Program to mitigate demand increases during construction 
projects. CTRMA, as a regional mobility authority, also designs, constructs, and implements multi-
modal, pedestrian and cyclist friendly facilities like Shared Use Paths, sidewalks, and cross-street 
connections as part of every project whenever feasible. More than 70 lane miles of sidewalks and 
shared use paths are planned or in place for their sponsored facilities.

Texas Department of Transportation

The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) is the agency responsible for transportation 
planning, implementation, and facilities maintenance at the state level. TxDOT’s facilities span across 
every jurisdiction in the region, and the agency works with planning partners and organizations on 
projects to improve system capacity, reliability, and resiliency. TxDOT partnered with CAMPO and 
the City of Austin on the Mobility35 program, which includes a series of projects to improve mobility 
on the Interstate 35 corridor that serves as the principal highway in the CAMPO region, including for 
commuters traveling to and from the downtown core. TxDOT proposes TDM strategies as a primary 
tool for improving mobility by decreasing single occupancy vehicle commuting during peak hours.

City of San Marcos

San Marcos, located in Hays County, is the second significant urbanized area in the CAMPO region. 
As host to Texas State University and with increasing levels of infill development, it is one of the 
fastest growing activity clusters in the region. The 2013 Hays County Transportation Plan, of which 
the city is a participating local government, recommends that congestion management strategies 
from CAMPO’s Congestion Management Process document be implemented as part of their 
project recommendation and selection process to improve the likelihood of project inclusion into 
the Transportation Improvement Program.

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report



48

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

Greater Austin Chamber of Commerce

The Greater Austin Chamber of Commerce is a membership-based organization comprised of 2,800 
businesses in and around the Austin area. The Chamber provides resources to businesses, employers, 
consumers, and the community at-large, advocating for various initiatives that support economic 
development and viability. The Chamber supports local TDM efforts by working with Movability, 
Capital Metro, CAPCOG, CTRMA, and various county governments during the development of 
transportation projects to advocate for multimodal facilities that promote efficient movement of 
people and goods. Internally, the Chamber encourages flex working schedules and continues to stay 
engaged in transportation and TDM planning.

Samsung Austin Semiconductor

Samsung Austin Semiconductor (SAS), located in Northeast Travis County on a 300-acre facility, 
continues to lead as one of the largest tech employers in the Central Texas region with more than 
8,700 direct and indirect employees. SAS, a member of Movability , has engaged employees in 
Commute Solutions and promoted TDM strategies through an internal survey and participation in 
the Mayor’s Mobility Challenge. The company’s mobility goals include providing shared mobility 
alternatives and incentives to use rideshare applications.

Google

Recently relocated from a campus in northern Travis County, Google has approximately 1,000 
employees working in their Downtown Austin office. As a member of Movability and a participant 
in the Mayor’s Mobility Challenge, Google has developed a robust TDM program for employees. 
They offer an employee shuttle program, free Capital Metro transit passes, reimbursed or cost-free 
carpooling and vanpooling, discounts on electric scooters, and active transportation amenities such 
as bike storage and showers onsite at their office. Google collects data on employee commute choices 
through a yearly survey, using data collected to improve internal TDM strategies, and recently began 
developing an app to offer employees incentives and resources for utilizing alternate transportation 
modes.

Whole Foods Market

Whole Foods Market employs over 2,500 people in the Central Texas region with corporate 
headquarters located Downtown Austin. Committed to sustainability and a member of Movability, 
Whole Foods released a survey to team members to understand commute choices. Focusing on 
TDM strategy, Whole Foods Market distributes discounted transit passes, incentivizes carpooling/
ridesharing, and is working to update facilities with bike lockers and showers for team members. The 
described in the previous discussion on Parking Demand. 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

49

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

TDM Opportunities 

As the previous section outlined, an array of TDM strategies are conducted in the region. However, 
there are multiple examples from peer agencies in other parts of the nation that offer potential 
strategies for this region to pursue. Additional opportunities not conducted by other MPOs are also 
identified as available strategies. This section identifies those strategies as they relate to the goals 
detailed in Part I. 

Regional Coordination

Coordination has many benefits, including promoting issue visibility, the potential for 
consistency in messaging, and promoting efficiency by reducing duplication of efforts. It also has 
the potential to provide accountability and performance monitoring. Highlighted opportunities 
include a regional coordinating committee within the MPO, corridor coordination, amending 
level of service standards, and guidance on traffic impact assessments and impact fees.

Regional Coordination

At the regional level, transportation coordination takes the primary form of the MPO dialogue 
platform, regional plans, and monthly coordination meetings. Examples of TDM coordination 
at the regional level include the Atlanta Regional Council (ARC) and Metropolitan Washington 
Council of Governments (MWCOG).

• ARC conducts coordination of seven different TMAs in the region, through a regularly 
meeting working group to coordinate actions and messaging. The MPO oversees the 
activity that was previously provided by the State of Georgia.

• MWCOG houses the region’s TMA and Commuter Connections program. The working 
group reports directly to the Policy Board, and is made up of the local representatives of 
the cities and counties that fund the region’s TDM program.

Corridor Construction Coordination

TDM and ITS solutions applied at the time of construction for a corridor can help mitigate effects 
of construction. Providing traveler information regarding construction activities, coordinating 
with businesses and employees in the corridor to develop travel or work alternatives, and 
working with transit service providers to adjust facilities and services – or provide additional 
temporary services – during the construction can provide some measure of relief. 

• WSDOT provides an employer-based program on the I-405 corridor in the Puget Sound 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report



50

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report

area, including services and information on teleworking, alternative work arrangements, 
available tax credits and parking cash-out incentives associated with their commute trip 
reduction program.

Regional Guidance for Traffic Impact Assessment

A traffic impact assessment is a study which assesses the traffic and safety implications relating to 
a specific development. The TIA study for a new development is undertaken to assess whether the 
road network surrounding the proposed development will be able to handle the additional traffic 
while maintaining an acceptable level of service. In the event that a new development triggers 
an unacceptable level of service, then a municipality can charge a fee to the developer to pay for 
needed improvements, such as modifying signal times, adding turn lanes, or other improvements. 
Cities adopt their own ordinances relating to TIAs and there is no regional coordination to determine 
its impact on the transportation network. Providing regional guidance on TIAs could result in a 
standardized approach towards the nexus between land use and transportation.

Incorporate TDM into the Transportation Planning Process

Within the long-range, regional transportation planning process, TDM can be incorporated to make 
the transportation system operate more efficiently. In addition to the personal mobility and access 
to opportunities to work, live and play nearby, benefits can compound for communities from better 
use of the existing public services and infrastructure. This stems from appropriate land use planning, 
urban planning, and parking management discussed in this section and multimodal transportation 
planning to improve the transportation system covered in a later section. Also address the addition 
of the level of service discussion in this paragraph 

Land Use Planning 

TDM strategies and land use planning most effectively intersect through the effects of destination 
proximities or the mixing of land use types and increasing intensity of development at trip-ends. 
Through density and a mix of uses in proximity to each other in a connected environment, the need 
to travel alone by automobile is reduced and trip lengths by all modes are reduced. As noted in this 
plan, operations program planning for services make networks operate more efficiently. 

Mobility options that combine multiple users on a route in a managed way – such as fixed route buses, 
or longer distances as managed lanes served by bus, or the highest transportation investment of rail, 
can be effective transportation investments - but only when land use intensity is enough to support 
the transportation investment. At the regional scale, efficiencies for travel by modes other than SOV 



51

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

increase as densities do, but densities also typically correlate with increased transportation service 
options. 

A useful example of the land-use component of the planning process – efficiency at large - compares 
average commute rates from driving alone to average densities in select major US and Texas cities, as 
shown in Figure 5.13. The emerging pattern illustrates the regional effect of densities overall, though 
rates in neighborhoods and commercial areas at the ground level will vary depending on options 
available for driving, parking, busing, riding, biking, walking, or scooting. 

Figure 5.13

Among similar major metropolitan areas in Texas, the CAMPO region has a comparatively lower 
commute by driving alone rate. As the opportunities nearby of where people live, work and play 
combine with transportation investments, TDM-minded programs, services and multimodal network 
improvement contribute positively to the overall efficiency of the transportation system. 

Increased densities, mix of uses, and walkable areas mean greater proximity to one’s destination 
which, in turn, result in shorter trips, less reliance on SOV, and consistently results in reduced SOV 
usage. Local governments can amend their land development code to incentivize density, mix of 
uses and shorter blocks through:  

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report



52

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

• Density bonus programs – density bonus programs allow developments to achieve 
greater height and density in exchange for providing a higher quality building, 
streetscape and community benefits.  

• Street network grid requirements – a street network grid with shorter blocks in an 
urban area, measured in hundreds of feet rather than 1/4 mile or half-mile increments, 
help shorten connections between destinations and make walking, biking or scooting 
a safer and more comfortable alternative to driving a car. For suburban areas, requiring 
that developments have more than one vehicular outlet allows for a more connected 
street grid and reduces bottlenecks for entering and exiting neighborhoods.  

• Eliminating minimum parking requirements – reducing or eliminating minimum 
parking requirements for developments results in discouraging SOV usage and 
reduces the amount a developer expends on parking facilities which, depending on the 
development, generates little to no revenue for the developer. The additional cost of 
parking results in higher costs to the developer who then passes it on to its customers 
through the form of higher rents or sale prices.  

Amending “Level of Service” Standards

Another option increasing the effectiveness of TDM strategies is to amend the definition of 
level of service (LOS) in traffic impact assessment and development review processes at the 
local level, to emphasis people movement, measurable internal trip capture, and site access 
instead of vehicular movement at major intersections. This can result in improvements such 
as more sidewalks and bike lanes which are traditionally less costly than adding lanes or more 
vehicular capacity to a roadway.

In January 2019, the Seattle City Council passed an LOS reform bill which changed its 
approach to LOS; for example, developments built within a half mile walking distance of a light 
rail station were not required to conduct transportation mitigation measures. Additionally, new 
developments are now required to reduce drive alone rates to a target set for the area in which 
they are built.



53

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Providing Education and Outreach

Highlighted practices to meet the goal of providing education and outreach include – effective 
outreach and education, expanding employer based TDM programs, efforts that benefit air quality.

Outreach & Education 

Outreach and educational are important components of a well-rounded TDM strategy. Concentrating 
on specific alternatives targeted to a local audience is more effective at changing travel behavior but 
relies on the specialized understanding of partnerships, information and monitoring, and available 
resources and incentives. 

In addition to targeted education and marketing, comprehensive outreach and education programs 
should consider the whole travel pattern of the household, which have become increasingly complex. 
This can raise awareness of alternative transportation options and TDM programs for all types of users. 

Examples of outreach and education programs on the importance of TDM include: 

• North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) offers a free educational 
program on employer trip reduction (ETR) to reduce single-occupant vehicle 
commute trips. They offer this program to public and private employers with more 
than 100 employees, and it can be tailored to a specific company. They also developed 
TryParkingit.com, a website to assist commuters with ride-matching for carpool, 
vanpool, biking, walking, and transit. This allows users to log their commute for reporting 
purposes and rewards. 

• Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) has two major annual promotional 
campaigns for alternative transportation. For messaging, SACOG found that consistency 
among outreach partners and having a unified message are key. The “May is Bike 
Month” campaign encourages bicycling for all types of trips. Resident riders log their 
bicycle miles on mayisbikemonth.com for a chance to win prizes. Similarly, “October 
is Smart Commute Month” promotes all alternative modes of transportation. Like the 
May event, residents are encouraged to log their trips in the online Commuter Club Trip 
Diary for a chance to win prizes. This gamification adds an element of challenge and fun 
to incentivize a shift in personal and community behavior.

• The Arlington County TDM plan Outreach and education efforts include focus groups 
and public workshops, a “Car-free Diet” plan. Similar to the SACOG efforts, the Arlington 
“Champions” Program appeals to employers’ public-recognition interests through 
its medal-based classification of participants (bronze, silver, gold, platinum) and uses 
recognition events and marketing as rewards for program participation, and separate 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report



54

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report

efforts to have employers incentivize TDM for employees. Arlington also has an app 
for ongoing TDM programs where users can get tips, updates, and a travel “score.” 
Supportive Marketing efforts include maintaining a presence on social media in addition 
to print or electronic media (e.g., paid advertisements, free articles, radio), branding for 
specific programs, and representation at festivals/events. 

• Atlanta Regional Council (ARC) TDM Stakeholder Engagement Plan includes Incentive 
programs for residential property managers (e.g., bike parking, keep transit pamphlets, 
shuttles to transit connections), and also has an element that targets universities, 
including distributing educational materials and providing commuter alternatives 
incentives.

Employer-Based TDM Strategies 

Employer-based TDM strategies are still growing in the CAMPO region, with TMA efforts expanding 
beyond the Austin Central Business District, and cities and counties primarily focusing on their 
own employees. Expanding employer-based strategies should continue to be a priority both for its 
localized emphasis at the point of use – clusters of employees, and cost effectiveness. In addition to 
the cost-sharing structure noted in the funding section of this plan, other best practices and lessons 
learned from summaries in this plan include: 

• The San Antonio District Office of the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) 
conducted an effort to educate major employers in the district about travel options and 
commute costs and encourage employees to consider travel options which decrease 
congestion throughout the region. For this effort all major San Antonio employers 
larger than 500 and 1,000 employees were requested to participate in a customized 
employee commuter survey. TxDOT found it difficult to interest commuters in 
alternative travel methods when the experience resulted in the same congestion times 
as single-occupant-vehicle drivers, and when low gas prices provide little incentive to 
using transit options. 

• Chicago Metropolitan Planning Council conducted a two-year pilot that engaged more 
than 6,200 employees at 16 companies in the region. The pilot program confirmed that 
commuters often are unaware of all transit options and identified barriers to employees 
using transit options. As part of MPC pilot program, a large suburban employer provided 
a dedicated shuttle to the nearest transit station and promoted pre-tax benefits and 
ridesharing. The results showed a 20% drop in drive-alone employees as transit use and 
ridesharing rates doubled for the employee base. On average, 68% of new transit users 
reported saving $151 on gas, tolls, and car maintenance every month. 

• Flexible work hours is another employer based strategy which can reduce the number 



55

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

of peak hour travels by encouraging employees to commute to work when the roads are 
less congested while still allowing typical office hours. Texas Instruments (TI) in Houston 
initiated their workplace flexibility program in 1993 as a result of an employee needs 
assessment survey. Houston’s mayor initiated the pilot project called Flex in the City in 
2006. Before and after travel time data indicated a travel time reduction as a result of 
the pilot program. 

Improving the Transportation System

Transportation Systems Management and Operations 

In the same manner of TDM, Transportation Systems Management and Operations (TSMO) 
describes a set of strategies developed around operational improvements that can maintain 
performance of the existing transportation system before added capacity is needed. This is done 
through the application of knowledge, skills, and techniques to implement solutions, typically 
at a low cost and with an emphasis on quick delivery. The intent of these strategies is to enable 
transportation agencies to achieve more using existing funding and serve more customers. TSMO 
also helps operational agencies balance supply and demand and develop flexible solutions that can 
more closely match changing conditions. Examples of TSMO include work zone management, traffic 
incident management, traffic signal coordination, and special event management.

Transit Centers 

Transit centers are another strategy to provide connection for the suburban area, for instance 
connecting CARTS services to Capital Metro in Austin. Transit centers serve as efficient hubs that 
gather transit riders from various locations at a central point to take advantage of express trips or 
other route-to-route transfers. In Dallas, DART’s downtown East and West Transfer Centers provide 
convenient locations to transfer between bus routes and rail stations. Capital Metro is also currently 
investigating the concept of Transit Hubs, where travelers can easily transfer between modes.

Parking Guidance Systems

In addition to site- or garage-specific applications, Parking Guidance and Information (PGI) Systems 
can be used at fixed points in a road network to provide dynamic, real-time information about location 
and/or availability of parking. Their main objective is to reduce the amount of time drivers spend 
searching for a parking space. This type of technology, one of the most long-established forms of 
driver information systems, was first utilized in Germany in the early 1970s and has become popular 
across Europe. The information provided by PGI can range from “empty” or “full” in the context of a 
single lot or facility, to precise location of individual spaces using sensors. When used effectively, PGI 
can result in more efficient movement of vehicles and fewer vehicle emissions. 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report



56

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report

Diamond Priority and Managed Lanes

Diamond priority is a type of managed lane, also known as high occupancy vehicle (HOV), and refers 
to strategies that give priority to HOVs. Diamond priority is a major component of many regional 
TDM programs, helping to reduce the number of vehicles on the network. These lanes are physically 
separated from main lanes by a structural separation or barriers. The efficiency of these types of 
strategies depend on maintaining an uncongested Level of Service (LOS) within the lane. The MoPac 
Express Lanes are an example of managed lanes within the CAMPO region. 

Prior to the 1990s, the CAMPO region has been interested in congestion IH-35 as a central need, 
as the predominant movement of people, goods and services is north-south, and the situating of 
the majority of homes and businesses is also along a north south axis. A near consensus of steering 
committee members also cited addressing congestion in the IH-35 as a need that TDM could help 
to address.

Congestion Pricing

Congestion pricing, or a congestion charge zone, is a TSMO strategy for charging a fee for entering 
a supply constrained zone, lane, or facility such as a bridge to add a strong incentive to use other 
methods for travel within the zone. Successful local examples include the MoPac lanes noted above. 
Other Texas examples include Houston, Dallas and Fort Worth, and El Paso. The Puget Sound HOT 
lane and tolling network has provided successful management on 4 regional facilities for over 10 
years. One example measurement included 38 percent ridership increases in transit ridership along 
the SR 520 corridor and 99-100 percent occupancy of park and ride facilities within the period. 
Key to the success of the Puget Sound examples were the conditions of the network at the time 
the charge was implemented, limits to the ability to expand supply in a developed corridor, and an 
increased support after concerns with equity impacts were informed of the 50-75 percent project 
support across all income groups by survey.

Comparable to the individual facilities or corridors, successful congestion charge zones for activity 
areas, such as a central business district, are currently controversial in the US. New York is the first 
major city in the US to begin considering a zone charge for lower Manhattan. Successful, established 
congestion zones for personal automobiles have long existed in London, Singapore, Stockholm, 
Milan, Gothenburg, Rome, Milan, Durham, Oslo, Trondheim, Bergen, and others.

Increasing Mobility Choices for Travelers

First and Last Mile Partnerships with Transit Agencies 

People traveling to and from low density urban areas often face first mile-last mile challenges when 



57

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

taking transit. Strategies that link express bus service, local transit, vanpools, managed lanes, bike path, 
and park and ride lots can enhance network connectivity and increase transit utilization to cover these 
service gaps through added, managed service expansion. Steering committee members expressed a 
need to address transit resources and accessibility and additional managed capacity to the roadway 
network. 

Public transit would be included in people's travel choice more often if their first and last mile service 
gap is addressed. As a result, transit agencies started partnership with Transportation Network 
Companies (TNCs) such as Lyft, Uber, and RideCO to deal with “first mile/last mile” connections 
to transit in a low density. In 2018, the City of Monrovia, CA, partnered with Lyft and Lime to launch 
a new multi-modal transportation program, called GoMonrovia, for suburban mobility to provide 
fast and affordable transportation ($0.50 Shared Rides to Old Town and the LA Metro Gold Line 
Station). Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART) and the Metropolitan Atlanta Rapid Transit Authority 
(MARTA) entered into a partnership with Uber known as the “Last Mile Campaign,” which allows 
their passengers to link directly to Uber using the DART GoPass app or MARTA On The Go app. King 
County Metro conducted a pilot project in Bellevue that offers on-demand shuttle service to and 
from transit hubs throughout the region using mobile apps called Ride2. The service was offered free 
for the first few months and later cost the same as a standard Metro bus ride. 

Bike and Transit Integration 

Bike access to transit stations and terminals is another strategy that provides a high level of mobility 
and fill the first and last mile gap which can be improved by providing paths and road improvements. 
Mobile apps that recommend the best cycling routes between terminals and common destinations 
can be helpful. A combination of paid lockers and free racks for all day storage can offer commuters 
options with different levels of security. 

Carpool and Vanpool Programs 

Vanpools, either formal or informal, can be used by smaller groups of people (5-15) who need to travel 
to a common destination. Transit agencies, regional/community organizations, or employers may 
organize or subsidize vanpools, or employers may choose to offer discounts to employees who use 
them. Other forms of ridesharing/vehicle-sharing or more informal carpooling can be coordinated 
between individuals. Vanpools can save an individual rider thousands of dollars per year, when 
considering tolls, gas, vehicle maintenance costs and depreciation. 

Vanpools and carpooling are a particularly effective TDM strategy for rural areas, but care needs to 
be taken to provide safe parking locations for gathering of those sharing rides. Vanpools, ridesharing, 
connector services, and shuttles are all the more useful when all passengers can meet the ride at 
one designated location. These can be formal or informal, organized by the community or another 
responsible agency. These may include: church lots, community centers, etc., and can be paid or 
cost-free depending upon the service and location.

Part V  Existing Conditions ReportPart V  Existing Conditions Report



58

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

• The North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG) vanpool program is 
operated by three transit agencies and offer lower monthly cost to the users. Vanpools 
operated by these transit agencies are eligible to receive 50% discount on tolled 
managed lane facilities. This delivers shorter travel time at lower cost to users.

• The State of Wisconsin and City of Bellevue, WA have examples of successful carpool 
programs. The State of Wisconsin provides a carpool match program through a mobile 
application called Rideshare. This program finds matches based on similar origin and 
destination. It allows the users to meet and decide who they want to carpool with. It 
brings commuters together and leaves it up to them to form their own commutes. 
Bellevue City Hall in Washington State offers a ridesharing program supported by 
discounted carpool parking and subsidized vanpooling to its employees. Through this 
program, they decreased their vehicle trip rate by 30% across 650 employees. 

• King County Metro in Washington provides a best-practice example of vanpools, hosting 
the largest publicly-owned vanpool network in the nation as of 2017, with approximately 
1,600 vehicles. Their efforts include branding and marketing materials promoting 
transit, posters, events, incentives, focus groups, direct mail. Through their programs 
they achieved a reduction of 31,522 VMT in the first year. Through vanpooling alone, 
King County Metro served 66 million passenger miles in 2017. By comparison, Capital 
Metro served 16.7 million passenger miles in 2017 with 217 vehicles. The population of 
each region is similar.

Funding Partnerships

In all regional programs, successful TDM requires partnerships for both funding leveraging and 
knowledge share. In most referenced cases, multiple agencies and organizations collaborate to 
provide service provision, or provide services to different segments of the community. Currently, 
partnerships between the public and private sectors have been critical for funding TDM activities 
in the region and have evolved over time in sources and levels of funds, though when compared to 
other regions such as Puget Sound and Metropolitan Washington, DC, the resource contributions 
in the CAMPO area rely more heavily on public-sector resources. Regardless of funding source, 
discussion at the MPO level leading into the development of this plan included significant focus on 
the desire for cost-effective TDM implementation strategies and appropriate funding responsibility 
sharing between Federal, State, and local governments, and private funding. 

Major MPOs typically fund TDM programs with Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 
funds, City and County Government funds, and private foundation funding; Referenced Major 
MPOs have been known to use between 3% and 25% of their allocated CMAQ funds for TDM-style 
programs focused on information, marketing, coordination, and last mile programs. The rate of 
funding increases sharply when adding consideration for TDM and TSMO functioning projects that 

Part V  Existing Conditions Report



59

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

include all of the programs, services, and managed infrastructure strategies described in this plan. 

The CAMPO region is unique in that it represents one of the largest metropolitan areas in the nation 
that is within attainment of the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). Therefore, the 
CAMPO region does not have access to CMAQ funds and instead relies on Surface Transportation 
Block Grant (STBG, also known as Category 7 funds within TxDOT) funds in order to fund most TDM 
activities in the region. STBG funds are the most flexible of transportation funds but the total amount 
is small compared to the funds available for solely for roadway projects.

Guidelines for TDM and TMA-type programs typically advise having a diversified revenue base, with 
healthy and mature organizations having a share of the following four: membership dues, public 
grants or ongoing public funding of some sort, fees-for-service, and assessments such as a business 
improvement district or common area agreement. Overreliance on one-off revenue sources such 
as grants can increase risk for the implementing organization for service disruption. For example, 
Movability currently successfully utilizes four of the revenue sources, and has a diverse and more 
resilient funding structure from which to base existing programs on, and therefore expand or 
enhance services if more resources are available. 

Part VI  Next StepsPart V  Existing Conditions Report



60

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

PART VI
NEXT STEPS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Recommendations

The creation of this plan is a first regionally coordinated step in institutionalizing TDM principles in 
the CAMPO region. This plan details the high-level vision, goals, objectives, and project selection 
process in advancing TDM strategies. 

Primary recommendations resulting from this plan include:

• Establish a TDM Subcommittee within CAMPO’s Technical Advisory Committee to 
advance TDM in the region across the full spectrum of applications and processes. 

• Continue the development and monitoring the advancement of TDM in the region, led 
by CAMPO.

• Develop a listing of TDM projects and needs the region should address and include in 
the CAMPO 2045 Plan update.

• Update the revised project selection criteria contained in this report, as needed, to 
accurately reflect the region’s advancing TDM programs.

• Investigate additional TDM concepts to include in the project scoring criteria in 
CAMPO’s call for projects as the region advances TDM.

• Continue exploring advances in TDM strategies for the region and update the TDM plan 
to document progress of TDM principles in the region.

• Establish a cost-benefit analysis based on data collected and provided by TDM 
implementing agencies.

• Continue and strengthen the regional platform that conducts targeted outreach and 
education to individuals, employers and other trip generators, gathers and measures 
data from all agencies in the region, provides ride-matching services for formal and 
informal carpools and vanpools, and serves as the place where all progress on TDM 
solutions are monitored and displayed. 

• Update the project scoring criteria for non-TDM categories before the next call for 

Part VI  Next StepsPart V  Existing Conditions Report



61

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

projects to award additional points to projects that incorporate TDM measures either 
during construction or after completion.

• Establish a targeted amount or percentage of funding for the Transportation 
Improvement Program and Regional Transportation Plan to TDM measures.

Part VI  Next Steps



62

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 



63

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND  
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

APPENDIX

Appendix



Table of Contents

BASICS OF TDM .................................................................................................... 65 

Shared Mobility and Employer Programs........................................................................................ 66 
Transit Incentives ......................................................................................................................... 66 
Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) ............................................................................................................... 66 
Vanpooling .................................................................................................................................... 67 
Expanded Transit Service ............................................................................................................ 67 
Shared Mobility and TNCs (Uber, Lyft, taxis) ............................................................................ 67 
Carpools ........................................................................................................................................ 68 
Teleworking ................................................................................................................................... 68 
Bicycle Facilities ........................................................................................................................... 68 
Traveler Information .................................................................................................................... 69 
Pedestrian Programs ................................................................................................................... 69 
Electric Vehicles ........................................................................................................................... 70 
Flexible Emergency/Guaranteed Ride Home Programs ........................................................ 70 
Parking Management .................................................................................................................. 70 
Autonomous/Self-Driving Vehicles ........................................................................................... 71 
Flex Work Hours (peak spreading, 4/10 or 9/9s) ..................................................................... 72 
Managed Lanes ............................................................................................................................ 72 
Toll-Managed, or Express Lanes ................................................................................................ 74 
Hard Shoulder Running ............................................................................................................... 74 
Transit on Shoulder ...................................................................................................................... 74 

STAKEHOLDER INTERVIEWS ...................................................................................... 75 

Interview Questions ..................................................................................................................... 75 
Interview Minutes ......................................................................................................................... 77 

FHWA TDM WORKSHOP – AUGUST 2018 ................................................................... 118 

Executive Summary ................................................................................................................... 118 
Full Workshop Report – Published by FHWA ........................................................................ 120 

NATIONAL BEST PRACTICES ................................................................................... 136 

Atlanta Regional Commission  2013 ........................................................................................ 136 
DRCOG/ Colorado DOT ........................................................................................................... 138 
San Antonio ................................................................................................................................. 139 
San Francisco .............................................................................................................................. 140 
Puget Sound ............................................................................................................................... 142 

NON-ARTERIAL NETWORKS ....................................................................................... 144 



Appendix 

Basics of TDM 
Transportation Demand Management is a combination of strategies and tools to reduce single-occupant 

vehicles on the road, primarily during peak travel hours. These strategies are made up of commuter 

choices and technology, which are shaped by individual behavior choices, employer options, and 

government entities.  

Example TDM strategies can include:  

 Shared Mobility and Employer Programs 

Transit Incentives 

Bus Rapid Transit 

Carpooling 

Expanded Transit Service 

Shared Mobility and Transportation Network Companies (Uber, Lyft, Waze Carpool App) 

Teleworking 

Flexible work hours, travel peak spreading 

 Multimodal Last Mile Solutions, and Active Transportation Networks 

Bicycle and Ped infrastructure, networks 

Bike to Work – Showers, lockers, etc. 

Bike Share/E-scooters 

Pedestrian Programs 

 Traveler Information 

 Dynamic Travel and Trip Planning Tools 

 Flexible Emergency/guaranteed ride home programs 

Outreach and education 

 Land Use Management  

Parking Management 

Zoning, mixes of uses, and transit supportive densities for live work and play nearby 

 Transportation Systems Management and Operations 

Managed lanes, including Diamond Lanes 

Hard Shoulder Running 

Transit on Shoulder 

Intelligent Transportation Systems 

Autonomous and connected vehicles, and electric vehicles 

These strategies are referenced throughout this plan as both existing programs, recommendations, and 

referenced in the plan appendix. 

65



Appendix 

Shared Mobility and Employer Programs 
Employer-sponsored programs are designed to incentivize employees to practice transportation demand 

management and reduce single-occupancy vehicle trips to and from the workplace. Strategies including 

transit pass subsidies, rideshare matching services, preferential parking for carpools or vanpools, parking 

cash-out programs, bike lockers and showers, flexible work schedules, and telecommuting are developed 

to support a travel mode shift. Sometimes employers are supported through membership in a local 

transportation management association (TMA) like Movability, to help meet local goals to reduce 

environmental impacts of single occupancy vehicle trips and traffic congestion and to improve employee 

retention and quality of life. 1 

Transit Incentives 
Transit is a common low-cost form of shared mobility, usually provided by a government agency within 

defined service areas. Transit is often provided through a system of publicly owned and maintained bus 

and train fleets that can operate along fixed routes or on-demand in areas with lower density and usage. In 

the CAMPO region, Capital Metro is the main provider of fixed-route transit service within urbanized 

areas in and around Austin, while some services such as GoGeo in Georgetown provide local transit 

outside of the Capital Metro service area. The Capital Area Rural Transit System (CARTS) is a major 

provider of transit service between non-urbanized communities in the region and urbanized areas 

serviced by Capital Metro or other transit providers.   

Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) 
Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) is a transit system that utilizes specific operational procedures to ensure high-

quality, reliable bus service that is faster than traditional bus service. Some common features of BRT 

include dedicated transit lanes that reduce reliance on congested general purpose lanes; bus stations 

located in the center of the road to avoid conflicts with parking and turning vehicles; off-board fare 

collection to reduce wait times and boarding delays; platform boarding that is level with bus entrances to 

improve ease of boarding and accessibility for passengers with disabilities; and intersection treatments 

that prohibit vehicles from turning across dedicated transit lanes. Through a combination of these 

measures, BRT systems offer faster, more frequent, and more reliable transit service. 2 

  

 
1 Oregon DOT - 2012 
2 Institute for Transportation Policy Development - 2019 

66

https://www.itdp.org/library/standards-and-guides/the-bus-rapid-transit-standard/what-is-brt/


Appendix 

Vanpooling 
Vanpooling, a type of rideshare program, is generally coordinated by a governmental authority and 

consists of 5-15 individuals with a similar commute trip where the participants share their own driving 

responsibilities, thereby covering the primary “cost” of operation. Some vanpool programs receive 

subsidies and others pay for themselves. The Capital Metro MetroRideShare program provides people 

with a month-to-month lease including insurance, maintenance, 24-hour roadside assistance, and an 

optional fuel purchasing program. Vanpool fares are shared by riders and vary depending on vehicle size, 

commute distance, fuel and tolls. 3 Vanpools provide the opportunity to use a pre-tax employee benefit, 

high-occupancy vehicle lanes, and reduce driving and parking costs. 4 

Expanded Transit Service 
As populations grow outside of urban areas with existing transit service, expanded transit service is often 

needed to support travel demand. Areas in transition from rural to more urbanized contexts are often 

considered in service expansion efforts, as the population density and travel demand become significant 

enough to warrant shared mobility services. Expanded service can be provided through additional public 

transportation routes, park-and-ride facilities in developing areas, and through additional connections to 

existing service routes and facilities. 

Shared Mobility and TNCs (Uber, Lyft, taxis) 
Shared mobility options are services that allow multiple travelers to share the same vehicle and include 

carpools, vanpools, transit services, taxis, and transportation network companies (TNCs) such as Uber and 

Lyft. Shared mobility options improve efficiency of the transportation network by reducing single 

occupancy vehicle trips and can reduce transportation costs through low fares or cost-splitting. Shared 

mobility services can also provide safety benefits by reducing potential for traffic incidents and offering 

alternatives to driving while impaired. 5 In the CAMPO region, shared mobility services are provided by 

transit agencies such as Capital Metro and CARTS, on-demand ride hailing TNCs, various taxi services, 

and several vehicle and bicycle sharing services such as ZipCar, Car2Go, and B-cycle. One challenge of 

implementing shared mobility services is providing access in rural and suburban areas with lower density 

and demand than urban settings, but whose development patterns have given rise to a need for 

alternatives to single occupancy vehicle commuting. 

 
3 CAMPO 2040 Regional Transportation Plan – 2015 
4 TTI Transportation Policy Center – 2014 
5 Victoria Transport Policy Institute - 2019 

67



Appendix 

Carpools 
Carpooling is a shared mobility option in which travelers share a vehicle with at least one additional person. 

Carpooling reduces individual travel and fuel costs, reduces congestion by reducing vehicles on the road, 

reduces emissions and improves air quality, and provides faster travel with access to managed lanes that 

track vehicle occupancy. Many carpooling programs operate through ride matching, which uses 

technology to connect commuters to nearby carpool routes based on common origins and destinations. In 

the CAMPO region, several employers offer carpool matching services and incentives for carpooling 

employees, and companies like Uber and Lyft also offer shared-ride options for a reduced fare. Waze 

Carpool and RideAmigos are other popular options for carpool matching technology in the CAMPO 

region. In some instances, carpoolers can go to specified locations without prior arrangement and meet 

other riders with a common destination. This type of casual carpooling allows travelers to choose their 

mode of travel in real-time. 6 

Teleworking 
Telecommuting or teleworking allows employees to regularly work from home or some alternate location. 7 

Telework is now employed as a recruitment and retention strategy by employers and has developed with 

technological advances such as high-speed internet and teleconferencing capabilities. 8 Committed to 

reducing environmental impacts and traffic congestion generated by single occupancy vehicles, the City 

of Austin, has implemented a telework policy allowing employees to work remotely if their department 

manager and department director conclude the employee’s job content is appropriate for a telework 

schedule. The city has employed outreach programs such as Work from Home Day to assure that 

employees are aware of the telework policy and the benefits of telecommuting. 9 

Bicycle Facilities 

Bike to Work  

Bike to Work programs are amenities provided by employers or transit services to encourage active 

transportation usage for commuters by reducing barriers to using bike travel. Common bike to work 

amenities include options for transporting bicycles on buses and trains and employer-based amenities for 

cyclists, including onsite bike storage, showers and lockers to help accommodate cyclists. Capital Metro 

 
6 RideAmigos - 2018 
7 TTI Transportation Policy Center – 2014 
8 CAMPO 2040 Regional Transportation Plan – 2015 
9 Austin City Council Resolution No. 20121206-072 CIUR 910 – 2013 

68



Appendix 

buses offer bike racks on the front of buses to allow long-distance riders to switch from bike to transit 

easily, and many employers (especially those in the tech industry) offer the described amenities on their 

campuses.  

Bike Share 

Bike share programs provide rental of a shared bike for a nominal fee and are typically located in dense or 

urban areas. Many bike share programs include several automated docking locations for rental and return 

of bicycles, allowing users to choose docking locations most convenient to their origin and destination. 

Other programs utilize app technology to unlock shared bicycles or provide a bank of bicycles to be used 

without charges or unlocking within a specified service area. Bike share programs provide access to 

travelers who would like to utilize active transportation but do not want to pay to own, store, and maintain 

a personal bike. Several bikeshare programs exist in the CAMPO region, including B-cycle in Austin and a 

new bicycle sharing program in Georgetown.  

Traveler Information 
Dynamic travel and trip planning tools provide real-time information to travelers to help find and select 

convenient routes and travel times. These tools are often provided through websites and smart phone 

apps, and offer up-to-date information about customized routes, wait times for various modes, and 

potential route variations and barriers. While some tools such as Capital Metro’s Trip Planner specifically 

provide information about transit service, some tools combine information about transit, last mile options, 

and other shared mobility services in one spot. CAPCOG’s myCommuteSolutions.com provides a range of 

resources for trip planning, including trip matching options for regular or one-time commutes, trip logging, 

and incentives for members who utilize alternative modes. 10 

Pedestrian Programs 
Pedestrian programs refer to strategies that improve walkability and encourage use of active 

transportation. Safe and convenient sidewalks, paths, and crosswalks with connectivity to a developed 

network of pedestrian facilities are the basis for many pedestrian programs, and various land use and traffic 

calming strategies can be implemented to complement and encourage use of pedestrian 

accommodations. Concentrating activity into dense mixed-use centers is a strategy of some pedestrian 

programs, and various education and inventive initiatives can be implemented to encourage travelers to 

choose active transportation over single occupancy vehicle use.  

 
10 myCommuteSolutions.com - 2019 

69



Appendix 

Electric Vehicles 
Electric vehicles are low-carbon, sometimes low-speed, vehicles that can be used to support short-

distance trips and last-mile connections. These can include electric cars, buses, shuttles, and other small 

vehicles. Many carsharing companies such as Car2Go utilize a fleet of electric vehicles to offer emergency 

and short-distance trip options at a low cost to the individual. Electric shuttles are small vehicles or carts 

that can transport travelers to and from transit stations or other shared mobility hubs and are often offered 

by employers or organizers of major traffic generating events. In the CAMPO region, electric vehicles are 

available through several carsharing companies, and through a partnership between Capital Metro and 

the Department of Energy, a year-long pilot took place from late 2017 to 2018 to explore on-demand, low-

cost electric shuttles between select Capital Metro stops and surrounding neighborhoods. 11 

Flexible Emergency/Guaranteed Ride Home Programs 
Guaranteed Ride Home (GRH) programs provide free rides home in case of emergency, illness, or 

unexpected circumstances, including unplanned overtime, for regular users of alternative modes of 

transportation. Providing access to emergency transportation reduces barriers for those interested in 

switching transportation modes or utilizing shared mobility services but choose to use personal vehicles in 

case of emergency. In the CAMPO region, Capital Metro operates a GRH program for regular users of 

carpool, vanpool, or transit service, and CAPCOG offers emergency ride services for registered users of 

their Commute Solutions program. 12 

Parking Management 
Ownership of parking supply in parking managed areas is typically highly fragmented amongst numerous 

owners, for example, with the City of Austin only controlling about 14 percent of the overall parking supply 

for its downtown.  Parking enforcement can also be an issue as an analysis of parking sessions showed 

several exceeding posted time limits and parking not being enforced on Sundays by policy. There is also 

some concern that facilities at some referenced parking facilities needing improvement or better 

management presence and maintenance. 

The DAA analysis also found that parking payment systems are not consistent between public and private 

lots and there is no comprehensive online parking information system, wayfinding, or real time signage 

available. Austin does have a mobile parking app beginning to be used, called Park ATX, which allows 

customers to pay for parking on their mobile phone wherever Park ATX is accepted, including public 

maintained spots and some private-managed facilities.  

 
11 Capital Metro, Pecan Street - 2018 
12 Victoria Transport Policy Institute - 2018 

70



Appendix 

Current Parking Ordinances 

Parking ordinances for the City of Austin are based upon specific land uses and parking ratios. This type of 

ordinance does not provide lower-end flexibility in accommodating shared parking or fluctuations in 

parking demand amongst users, nor does it lend itself to innovations in parking management. Current 

discussions at the City of Austin regarding changes to parking supply minimums are split between a policy 

revision required from Land Development Code revisions in development, and a policy direction to 

support transit-corridors by reducing or eliminating parking minimums. Policies to restrict parking, or 

better manage through properly pricing parking in areas where transit is encouraged, are mutually 

beneficial – dedicating more active space to activities and less to storage. The City of San Marcos is 

currently developing a parking management program and has begun with a plan completed in 2018. The 

plan consists of managed lots at the periphery of activity centers and the Texas State University campus, 

with shuttles providing service between lots and activity points.  

Parking Subsidies 

Employers in Austin play an integral role in sustaining the high demand for downtown parking. The DAA 

study found that approximately 75 percent of downtown employees are provided free or subsidized 

parking for employees and businesses. As of the study’s completion in 2016, few employers offered 

mobility programs or other incentives to encourage travel to downtown by other modes. By contrast, the 

region’s TMA is increasingly focused on working with companies leading travel demand management 

practices to incorporate conscious parking payment, or ‘parking payout’ programs to make employees 

aware of the subsidy. 

As of 2019, the City of Austin also operates an affordable parking program through its partnerships that 

offers reduced monthly rates for selected service and entertainment industry employees at over 20 

garages in downtown Austin, in some cases to support service industry employees that typically travel in 

non-peak travel times or when transit  and other modes are not in operation or generally available. While 

this does not promote use of alternative modes of transport, it does promote equity in transportation and 

supports environment justice initiatives. 

Autonomous/Self-Driving Vehicles 
The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration defines autonomous vehicles as, “those in which 

operation of the vehicle occurs without direct driver input to control the steering. Acceleration, and 

braking and are designed so that the driver is not expected to constantly monitor the roadway while 

operating in self-driving mode.” 

Autonomous vehicles can be classified into six different levels of automation from zero to six where zero 

represented the driver being responsible for all aspects of driving the vehicle, to level six represents full 

71



Appendix 

automation and no steering controls are in the vehicle. Most current vehicle models fall under the zero 

category, with some vehicles exhibiting Level 2, or partial automation characteristics. Under level 2, the 

driver must always monitor the driving environment. For travel demand management, autonomous 

vehicles represent a distant practice due to the pace of technology adoption and relative cost and 

generally long timeframes of vehicle turnover. At the time of this plan, the TDM view of autonomous 

vehicles is that they could provide much promise to reducing the need for parking at the destination as 

well as increased shared-vehicle ownership which could reduce VMT. However, at this time, studies are 

somewhat mixed in outlook, with some also projecting slight increases in VMT as then-driverless vehicles 

pace blocks in waiting for riders or travel from one user to another on potentially limited roadway space. 

Safety also continues to be a question for autonomous vehicles, based on hard to control variables such as 

weather and others traveling on the roadway. 13 

Flex Work Hours (peak spreading, 4/10 or 9/9s) 
Flexible work schedules vary across employers and help to reduce commute time and cost as well as traffic 

congestion by avoiding peak hours of traffic. Some employers shift the start and end time of the traditional 

workday to earlier or later times and some offer compressed work schedules. Compressed work schedule 

programs typically alternate between groups of employees. The consecutive four-day work weeks allow 

employees to work four days-per-week, ten hour-per-day, Monday through Thursday or Tuesday through 

Friday and nonconsecutive four-day work weeks allow for days off other than Friday or Monday. The 

biweekly 9/80 work schedule allows employees to work eight 9-hour days, one 8-hour day, and one day 

off in a 2-week work period, totaling 80 hours. 14 As a method of recruitment and retention and to maintain 

productivity, it is popular among Austin tech start-ups to deploy flexible work schedules.  

Managed Lanes  
The Texas Department of Transportation defines managed lanes as highway lanes whose operation is 

proactively designed in response to changing conditions within the facility by time of day. Managed lanes 

are usually physically separated from the main lanes by a structural separation or barriers. The main goal of 

managed lanes is to continuously achieve an optimal condition (such as speed or reliability) to improve 

mobility. 

  

 
13 SAE, APA, US News and World Report, and California PATH. 
14 CAMPO 2040 Regional Transportation Plan - 2015 

72



Appendix 

Managed lanes have three central components: 

Component Examples 

Access Control • Express Lanes (through traffic lanes with limited access) 

• Reversible Lanes 

Vehicle Eligibility • High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) lanes 

• Lanes with restrictions for trucks 

• Bus only lanes 

• HOV lanes whose use by non-HOV users is permitted during off-peak 
hours 

Pricing • Value-priced lanes 

• Toll lanes 

 

Non-tolled managed lanes are those types of managed lanes which do not have a pricing component. 

Examples of such lanes are HOV lanes, lanes restricted to specific vehicles (e.g. bus lanes and lanes with 

truck restrictions), and express lanes. 

 
 

The benefits of managed lanes are that they increase travel options and choice for travelers, improve travel 

time reliability, create safer roadways, make more efficient use of existing system capacity, provide more 

flexibility in emergency situations, and improve overall traffic flow throughout the entire facility.  

Source: 
TxDOT 

73



Appendix 

Toll-Managed, or Express Lanes 
In addition, express lanes or toll managed lanes are special, managed lanes that can be separated from 

existing non-tolled lanes by special striping and/or physical barriers. They utilize variable tolls to manage 

the amount of traffic in the lane. This is accomplished by increasing the toll when traffic is heavy and 

lowering it when traffic is light.  Express lanes can provide public transit buses, registered van pools, and 

emergency vehicles with a reliable toll-free route to their destination, while SOVs can elect to use the lane 

by paying a toll. Express lanes are designed to remain congestion free. The MoPac Express Lanes 

encourage people to carpool because they have the option to split the cost of the trip among each 

occupant in the vehicle. Historically, express buses and vanpools sat in traffic with all other vehicles on 

MoPac, but now with the express lanes, these transit vehicles are able to bypass congestion and get to 

their destination faster, making public transit more appealing.  

Hard Shoulder Running  
Hard shoulder running is the temporary conversion of a paved shoulder into a travel lane during peak 

travel periods. Utilizing roadside shoulders on a part-time basis improves efficiency and operations during 

periods of high-demand and increased congestion, while still providing the safety benefits of a roadside 

shoulder outside of peak hours. This strategy is often used on limited access roadways that support high 

volumes of commuting traffic during AM and PM peak periods. Hard shoulder running allows 

transportation agencies to address increased travel demand by providing additional capacity during 

specific timeframes, without requiring an expensive and lengthy roadway expansion project.15 

Applications of hard shoulder running are limited in Texas, as policies and guidelines for appropriate usage 

are still being researched and developed.  

Transit on Shoulder  
Transit on Shoulder is a common form of hard shoulder running, during which the paved roadside shoulder 

is converted into a dedicated transit lane rather than a general-purpose lane. This type of temporary 

shoulder usage provides reliability for transit systems during periods of high demand, providing an 

incentive for commuters to switch from single-occupancy vehicles to transit during their daily commutes. 

In some cases, narrow shoulders that do not have sufficient width to provide safe travel for personal 

vehicles are suitable for transit only use, due to the limited number of vehicles using the lane, professional 

drivers, and high visibility for transit vehicles. 16, 17 

 
15 FHWA - 2016 
16 Minnesota DOT 
17 FHWA 2016 

74

https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/Publications/fhwahop15023/index.htm
https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/Publications/fhwahop15023/index.htm


Appendix 

Stakeholder Interviews 
Interview Questions 
The Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) is developing a Transportation Demand 

Management (TDM) plan for the 6-county region. The purpose of the plan is to provide a framework for 

developing and integrating regional TDM strategies into the planning, project development, investment, 

and regional decision-making processes. The plan will allow CAMPO to better incorporate TDM into 

project prioritization processes and explore potential TDM projects for future calls-for-projects. 

TDM often involves changing commuters’ traveling behavior. Providing programs and information that 

encourage ridesharing, telecommuting, walking and biking, off-peak travel, and flexible work hours are key 

factors in offering a range of options for commuters. Regional TDM programs are already well established 

through the City of Austin, Movability, Capital Metro, and others, and this plan will seek to build on what’s 

been working here and how these programs can be enhanced and expanded with greater collaboration 

throughout the region.  

The TDM plan team would like to gather input from key stakeholders to determine their perspectives, 

resources, and priorities as they relate to TDM projects and strategies that are or could be deployed in the 

region. 

• What mobility area (transportation mode, safety, corridor planning, etc.) does your agency most 
impact? 

• Were you able to attend the August 2018 workshop on TDM? 

• What TDM programs does your agency currently support? 

• From 1 to ten (where ten is the best/ most important) rank the importance to your agency of the 
below TDM functions: 

o Improving mobility and accessibility 

o Reducing congestion/improving travel reliability 

o Improving air quality 

o Impacting economic development 

o Integrating land use with transportation 

o Freight and goods movement 

o Improving quality of life/ livability  

• What TDM approaches do you believe would be most impactful in the region? 

o For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-tolled managed lanes, 
transit enhancements, and active demand management? 

o For shared mobility programs? 

o For operational strategies to be applied? 

• What regions or corridors do you believe will most benefit from TDM approaches? 

75



Appendix 

o For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-tolled managed lanes, 
transit enhancements, and active demand management? 

o For shared mobility programs? 

o For operational strategies to be applied? 

• What resources can your agency provide in solving the TDM puzzle? 

• What resources does your agency need to practice TDM strategies? 

• What other stakeholders does your agency most closely work with?  Have you ever collaborated on 
a project together? 

• Based on your understanding of TDM and flexible work schedules, what are the top 5 employers 
that would benefit from TDM programs? 

• What are your agency’s top priorities in supporting or leading TDM projects or strategies? 

 

  

76



Appendix 

Interview Minutes  

Planner at Bastrop County 

February 6, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 
 

What mobility area (transportation mode, safety, corridor planning, etc.) does your agency most impact? 
• Bastrop County affects 2 aspects: 

o Transportation planning as a whole for the county 
 Experiencing rapid growth, making sure that we grow in the most optimal way  
 Providing cost effective and efficient infrastructure improvements 

o Development services 
 Permitting and regulatory agency for developers in the unincorporated areas 

• Working within a framework that is defined by the state, have some limitations 

Were you able to attend the August 2018 workshop on TDM? 
• Yes 

What TDM programs does your agency currently support? 
• Working with CapCOG and city council to identify outreach and education opportunities 

o Example – Mobility Council came to town on a Saturday to promote TDM strategies 
 3-4 similar events have taken place in the last few months 

• Emphasizing importance of representation and access for outer areas of the region 
o Potential for Capital Metro representative to give presentation on Vanpool program to 

local HOAs 
o High percentage of residential neighborhoods along US 71 and US 290 with the density to 

make up carpool groups 
• Have not implemented rideshare programs for county employees yet 
• Member of Regional Air Quality program, but local distribution of population and employment 

isn’t the most conducive to shared mobility options 
o Fewer options for trips within Bastrop than centers like downtown 

• Over half of the population commutes from Bastrop to Travis – key cause of local congestion 
o Team will follow up for supporting data 

From 1 to ten (where ten is the best/ most important) rank the importance to your agency of the below 
TDM functions: 

• Improving mobility and accessibility: 9 
• Reducing congestion/improving travel reliability: 10 
• Improving air quality: 7 
• Impacting economic development: 6 
• Integrating land use with transportation – n/a 

o Realistically ranks low, but aspirationally it would be at the top (9-10) 
o County doesn’t have authority to regulate land use, would help with a lot of transportation 

problems in unincorporated areas 
• Freight and goods movement: 7 

o Not as important for this agency, but impacts the transportation system as a whole 
o Probably applies more to TxDOT 

77



Appendix 

o Adjacent county rounds are generally not constructed to withstand large amounts of 
freight traffic  

• Improving quality of life/ livability: 8  

What TDM approaches do you believe would be most impactful in the region? 
• For roadway projects including elements such as flex lanes or non-tolled managed lane, transit 

enhancements, and active demand management?  
o Flex lanes would be a huge benefit on key corridors, complements vanpool programs 
o Pedestrian infrastructure 

 Adding sidewalks in design can be easy, but need to consider actual walkability 
• Lack of regional standards for incorporating pedestrian infrastructure 

along roads that do not include curb and gutter 
 Example: peds won’t use sidewalk next to a 4-lane highway unless they have to  
 Hwy 71 for example, we’ve dealt with pedestrians walking along that corridor 

• For shared mobility programs? 
o Target advertising and education to promote awareness 

• For operational strategies to be applied? 
o Non-tolled managed lanes 
o Education and outreach component 
o Park and Rides that connect into the eastern part of the Capital Metro system 

What regions or corridors do you believe will most benefit from TDM approaches? 
• For roadway projects including elements such as HOV lanes, transit enhancements, and active 

demand management? 
o Regional perspective - IH 35  
o Bastrop County - US 290 (from Elgin to 35) and SH 71 (from Bastrop to Austin)  

 Congested corridors, also evacuation routes 
• For shared mobility programs? 

o SH 21 
o SH 71 
o East and west, particularly southwest 

 Lots of development planned 
o 812 to 535 - TxDOT road in Travis/Bastrop  

 Potential to add bus route 
o SH 95 between Bastrop and Elgin  

 Key corridor, no connectivity between Bastrop and Elgin 
• For operational strategies to be applied? 

o SH 71 and US 290 - flex shoulder use  
 TxDOT plans to expand roadway and construct in several overpasses to bypass 

lights 

What resources can your agency provide in solving the TDM puzzle?  
• Facilitating connections between regional organizations and smaller communities, involving rural 

areas in decision making 
• Mental health resiliency study with non-profit 

o Looking at community indicators of health, bringing together different interest groups 
(many of them NPOs) to share information 

o Could help with to get people involved in the planning process and explain local impacts 
of planning efforts 

78



Appendix 

What resources does your agency need to practice TDM strategies? 
• Funding – Bastrop County can’t afford dedicated TDM staff-person to implement/manage 

employee commute program. 
o Compare to Travis County, who has dedicated TDM and Air Quality personnel 

• Much lower tax base than adjacent urban counties so it is difficult to find capital funding (match) 
for bike/pedestrian infrastructure. 

• Community outreach – CapCOG has been doing some of that, but always want more 

What other stakeholders does your agency most closely work with?  Have you ever collaborated on a 
project together? 

• CARTS – Commissioner on the Board of Directors 
o Main transit provider in the area, but less access to funds than Capital Metro 
o CARTS generally focuses on social equity, providing transit to people who have mobility 

issues or limited access  
 Separate issue of motivating people who can drive to choose alternate mode 
 Air quality is another issue to be undertaken separately from social equity piece  

• County hasn’t worked on project for this one 

Based on your understanding of TDM and flexible work schedules, what are the top 5 employers that 
would benefit from TDM programs? 

• Counties and cities 
o Identified as targets during Regional Air Quality Plan 
o County hesitant to implement flex working programs as some positions require 

employees to be onsite 
• ISDs 

o Might not be viable with school schedules, but schools are a major traffic generator 
o Julia can connect team with Dr. Kristi Lee (Bastrop ISD)   
o Suggest reaching out to Elgin ISD 
o ISDs could also benefit from “School Pools” 

What are your agency’s top priorities in supporting or leading TDM projects or strategies? 
• Increasing options for those commuting into Travis County 
• Internal transportation within the county is not as high of a priority,  
• Considering shared mobility options for key corridors (SH 71, US 290) in long-range planning 

Do you know of any areas where TDM strategies could be integrated into the development review 
process, or would your role as the county be too restrictive? 

• Experience elsewhere - developers are required to provide transportation management measures 
when proposing development  

o Doesn’t have to be new roads, could be working with local transit providers to get 
additional stop; For commercial properties it could be more of an internal carpooling 
program  

• County doesn’t necessarily have authority to require TIA and system improvements if developers 
meet minimum standards to internal roadways 

o Usually a lot of resistance from developers when they have to build costly turn lanes, etc. 
o Travis, Hays, and Caldwell have TIA requirements for development, gray area as to 

whether this is an option 

What was the response like at the events hosted with CapCOG? 
• Mostly positive, general sense that people would like to see more options like transit 

79



Appendix 

• Some apprehension about government involvement in transportation choices  

Anything else we didn’t cover?  
• Expanding ride share services to combat drunk driving 
• Promoting ride share programs can be helpful - people in numbers is the key 

o More popular in denser areas but have opportunity to promote in growing rural areas 

 

  

80



Appendix 

Mobility Innovation Manager at Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 

February 6, 2019 – 11:00 a.m. 

What mobility area (transportation mode, safety, corridor planning, etc.) does your agency most impact? 
• Current focus on corridor planning; Not much emphasis on mode, more on capacity 
• Primarily works on building new capacity and enhancing existing capacity and tolled projects, but 

have authority to cover much more expansive efforts 
o Incorporating congestion management – managed lanes, express lanes 

o Example of Hwy 183 North express lanes with dynamic pricing 
o Trying to incorporate shared-use paths in designs where feasible 

• Policy that transit rides free, complementing Capital Metro efforts and other modes 
• Exploring park & ride feasibility through Project Connect, moving forward with at least one 
• Sometimes moves faster than other entities due to funding availability 

Were you able to attend the August 2018 workshop on TDM? 
• Not at FHWA workshop; team will provide notes 

What TDM programs does your agency currently support? 
• Discontinued pilot program offering discounts for carpooling on US 183 and US 290 

o Example – Atlanta carpool pilot showed improvements waned after incentives were 
removed 

• Promoting managed lanes/toll usage during off-peak shows more sustained change when 
incentives are removed  

o Challenge of difficult and complicated verification process 
• Free tolls for transit have increased ridership on toll routes by about 64% 

o Working with CAPCOG to monitor and report benefits, looking at impacts to air quality 
and travel times 

• Sponsored Metropia app, which targets drivers and promotes mode shift, provides real-time 
updates 

o Carpool rate among Metropia users increased dramatically 
o Collects data and offers personalized incentives– incorporates TSMO 
o Mobility-on-Demand - Fully integrated, high priority information-sharing with users 

 Example - Mopac toll widget showing demand pricing schedule 
• TDM Plan could lay groundwork for developing Mobility as a Service app 
• Internal TDM program includes telework policies, encourage carpools, green roads program for 

construction sites 

From 1 to ten (where ten is the best/ most important) rank the importance to your agency of the below 
TDM functions: 

• Note that several of these are in CTRMA’s strategic plan and mission statements  
• Improving mobility and accessibility: 9-10 
• Reducing congestion/improving travel reliability: 9-10 
• Improving air quality: 6-7 

o Important, in strategic plan but not as much of a focus 
• Impacting economic development: 9-10 
• Integrating land use with transportation: 7 

o Ties in with economic development,  
• Freight and goods movement: 5 
• Improving quality of life/ livability: 9-10 

What TDM approaches do you believe would be most impactful in the region? 
• For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-enhancements, and active 

demand management? -tolled managed lanes, transit  
o Roadway projects (flex lanes), managed lanes, active transportation facilities 

81



Appendix 

o TSMO - operational, but goes hand-in-hand 
o Shifting travel times 

• For shared mobility programs? 
o Mobility as service, micro-mobility, dockless vehicles, especially for last mile/short trips 

 Need infrastructure for dockless vehicles 
o Regional connectivity for bike accommodations  

 Struggle to provide connectivity in areas without existing paths/trails/lanes 
suitable for non-recreational trips 

 Example - Violet Crown can’t be paved due to environmental concerns, doesn’t 
serve all cyclists 

• For operational strategies to be applied? 
o Education Incentive Programs 

 TSMO, shoulder use during peak 
 ITS - bigger umbrella of influence, includes PCMS, signals, apps; Want to 

proactively anticipate impacts of autonomous vehicles and connect with ITS 
o Scenario planning – agency stakeholders create policies 
o Want to work collectively with other entities, minimize redundant efforts 

 Pooling resources and data for app planning, consolidating incentives from 
various TDM apps 

What regions or corridors do you believe will most benefit from TDM approaches? 
• For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-tolled managed lanes, transit 

enhancements, and active demand management? 
o  Mokan, IH 35 

• For shared mobility programs?  
o Works well in the city, where there are dense pockets, or as last mile options 
o Parmer lane, Apple campus and other employment centers. 
o Eventually connected autonomous vehicles can provide additional opportunities 
o Plans to develop mobility hubs with access to several shared mobility options 

• For operational strategies to be applied?  
o TSMO integrated on all roads throughout the region 
o Data sharing – need to see bigger picture to get a handle on needs 

What resources can your agency provide in solving the TDM puzzle?  
• Provide more pilot programs 
• Funding and building managed lanes 
• Feasibility of developing mobility hubs 
• Complement and extend the reach of current programs 

o Partner with Movability to promote employer-based programs and share benefits and 
travel time savings (riding transit, shifting travel time, and using toll roads to save time if 
driving) 

What resources does your agency need to practice TDM strategies? 
• Shared data sources between agencies - collaborating raises the potential to negotiate deals with 

data hubs to allow shared licenses of third party data (e.g., Inrix), create standards to facilitate 
sharing, assess external user needs, etc.  

What other stakeholders does your agency most closely work with?  Have you ever collaborated on a 
project together? 

• TxDOT, CoA, CapCOG (through Commute Solutions) 
• Movability - want to act as a coordinator within the organization, connect collaborative planning 

efforts 
• Combined survey/data collection - shared data is priority; starting on projects with ITS 

incorporated and need to think through data needs 

 

82



Appendix 

Based on your understanding of TDM and flexible work schedules, what are the top 5 employers that 
would benefit from TDM programs? 

• Movability member list is a good place to start 
• Dell, hospital systems, Apple 

o Also looking at nearby small businesses that are impact by big campuses 
• WeWork and co-working spaces 

o Potential shared bikes to be used by employees working in the building  

What are your agency’s top priorities in supporting or leading TDM projects or strategies? 
• Park and Ride feasibility 

o Is there an opportunity to make these “mobility hubs” or “centers” 
 Difficulty defining “centers” - hubs might be more inclusive  
 Could we somehow encourage slugging practices at Park-and-Rides like those 

observed in D.C. and Houston? 
• Congestion pricing and potential to implement occupancy charges, especially with connected 

autonomous vehicles 
o Not sure if CTRMA would support something like this  

• Unified transportation pass (or Mobility as a Service app) 
o Paying for toll, transit, shared mobility programs, etc. on one card 

 
  

83



Appendix 

Director of Engineering & CIP and Senior Engineer at City of San Marcos 

February 11, 2019 – 10 a.m. 

What mobility area (transportation mode, safety, corridor planning, etc.) does your agency most impact? 

• City of San Marcos impacts all of the above areas 
o Defining safety – intended to capture agency perspective on what they affect in terms of 

safety (engineering, design, enforcement, behavioral issues) 

Were you able to attend the August 2018 workshop on TDM? 

• Yes, Rohit attended  

What TDM programs does your agency currently support? 

• TDM is more of an infrastructure focus rather than behavioral focus 
• City of San Marcos has yet to have a formal discussion on TDM, but there are two programs in 

particular that relate 
o The incorporation of alternative modes in infrastructure design, influence of the Complete 

Streets Ordinance  
o Improving transit and combining transit with Texas State University to expand service 
o Transportation Master Plan has specific goals in alternative modes (bike and pedestrian) 
o Multimodal transportation is one of the Council’s strategic initiatives this year  

From 1 to ten (where ten is the best/ most important) rank the importance to your agency of the below 

TDM functions: 

• Improving mobility and accessibility: 9  
• Reducing congestion/improving travel reliability: 7  
• Improving air quality: 4/5  

o City of San Marcos participates in CAPCOG CLEAN AIR Force, but not a focus right now 
• Impacting economic development: 5/6  
• Integrating land use with transportation: 7  
• Freight and goods movement: 4/5  
• Improving quality of life/ livability: 9   

What TDM approaches do you believe would be most impactful in the region? 

• For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-tolled managed lanes, transit 
enhancements, and active demand management? 

o Alternative routes to I-35, alternative intersection design, managed lanes, and transit 
would be most impactful to the region 

• For shared mobility programs? 
o Improved inter-city programs and encouraging people who work outside of San Marcos to 

make convenient transportation choices 
o Currently don’t have anything to promote alternative modes of transportation 
o City Council has brought up commuter rail discussion  

• For operation strategies to be applied? 
o ITS could be expanded 

 With ITS alternate routes are needed (I-35/ arterials) 
 Need a more cohesive system so people know what alternate mode they can take  

o Dynamic information  
 City of San Marcos has heard from the community that people utilize multiple apps 

(Google Maps, Waze, etc.)  
 People utilize TxDOT message board with routes/timing  
 HERO roadside assistance program  

84



Appendix 

What regions or corridors do you believe will most benefit from TDM approaches? 

• For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-tolled managed lanes, transit 
enhancements, and active demand management? 

o I-35 and alternate arterials  
• For shared mobility programs? 

o Recognizing CAMPO’s Regional Arterials Plan, inner-city travel in a megaregion, and the 
limited alternatives to vehicular strategies 

• For operational strategies to be applied? 
o I-35 and key arterials  
o Key arterials that would benefit from TDM strategies  
o Guadalupe Street and other key corridors 

What resources can your agency provide in solving the TDM puzzle? 

• Limited resources in terms of education in San Marcos 
o Need help with preparation of materials, marketing, etc.  

• Participate and work on transit system  
o CARTS, inter-urban bus, city/university transit system 

What resources does your agency need to practice TDM strategies? 

• In terms of educational/ behavioral strategy – the City of San Marcos needs support of materials/ 
app development 

o Successful example of paid parking app to avoid people driving around unnecessarily  
o Cost effective TDM strategy to manage available parking 

What other stakeholders does your agency most closely work with?  Have you ever collaborated on a 

project together? 

• CARTS – manage transit funds 
• CAMPO – pedestrian improvements 
• Projects with Texas State – transit and bike/pedestrian improvements 

o Major stakeholder in the area 
• TxDOT – improvements to sidewalks, bike lanes, and bike signals 

o Guadalupe St 
o 10 ft shared use path on SH 123 and I-35 
o Hunter Road and Wonder World  

• County – alternative modes, bike facilities 
o Posey Road 

Based on your understanding of TDM and flexible work schedules, what are the top 5 employers that 

would benefit from TDM programs? 

• Texas State  
• Amazon 
• City of San Marcos  

o Not a top 5 employer but there has been discussion with CAPCOG about the City as an 
example for the region  

o There are no strategies in place for city employees now 
o The City is fairly centralized 

What are your agency’s top priorities in supporting or leading TDM projects or strategies? 

• Transit and infrastructure to promote alternate modes of transportation – bike and pedestrian  
• City Council’s initiative of improving parking for visitors downtown 

Discussion: 

85



Appendix 

• Laurie Moyer to add to presentation and meeting notes  
o Discussed the TDM plan as part of a process to identify metrics – building on already 

existing metrics, local plans, ordinances, and policies 
o Discussed the TDM Plan to serve as a regional plan considering political realities and to set 

up the scoring criteria of proposed projects for the next project call 
o Goal of creating a methodical and collaborative system considering some sub-regions 

have been working on their own plans  
• Texas State University  

o Discussions between the City and University take place when projects are in close 
proximity to the University 

o The University is focused on safety and ability of students and faculty to get to and from 
campus 

o Bike and pedestrian improvements (shared-use path), intersection projects, joining transit 
systems 

o Working on formal inter-local agreements like remote University parking to facilitate 
faculty and staff to be closer in and students farther out 

o Getting students to think differently about how they come into campus – starting TDM 
discussion in San Marcos 

• San Marcos is not formally talking about TDM strategy but is focused on safety and mobility 
improvement  

o Discussed CAMPO’s Regional Arterials Plan – looking at key corridors in San Marcos and 
integrating transit services in those corridors is a priority 

o Planning for a multi-modal hub/ where a joint transit system would be located similar to 
CARTS transit facility 

 

  

86



Appendix 

Assistant Director of Transportation Operations at TxDOT Austin District 

February 12, 2019 – 9:30 a.m.  

Focus: TSMO; Where do they see their agency stepping in and helping? What are the priority 

areas/strategies? Where does demand management come into their planning and their funding? 

What’s the TxDOT Perspective? Where can you assist CAMPO moving forward? What would be priority 

areas? 

• Focusing on ITS infrastructure – urban, rural, and suburban 
• Managing the systems in our region 

o IH-35 and other major roadways 
o Urban, rural, and freeway master plans 

• Looking at the whole district, measuring travel times and tracking origin/destination flows 
o Where the growth is happening and where centers are located  

• Currently utilizing ITS system and DMS messaging (Dynamic Message Signs)  
• Integrated corridor management (ICM)  

o Project in Downtown Austin, primarily along I-35 corridor 
o Working on this for 2-3 years, getting close to deploying “ICM lite” 
o Multimodal approach to managing travel time 
o First step would be to utilize the frontage road, other partners would eventually assist  

• Information systems influence transportation decision making  
o Information comparing travel times between IH 35 and SH 130, giving people the option to 

take different routes for North/South travel 
o Example: Oct. 18 presentation; travel times to San Marcos showed huge difference 

• HERO Roadside Assistance Program – incident management/operational strategy 
o Patrolling I-35 to perform various incident management tasks 

• HOV/Carpooling – Mobility35 program is looking at this, as well as park and rides 
• Emerging technologies like connected vehicles 

o Looking at a greater context, more vehicles in one lane 
o Counterintuitive for TDM, but could show improvements to travel times, efficiency, and 

safety 
• Flexible work schedules for Downtown Austin and Domain employees  

o TxDOT has the technology and capability to give employees flex work hours, satellite office, 
and opportunities to work from home  

Movability is a big player in this planning effort, and they might take the lead in reaching out to employers. 

What is TxDOT’s role in reaching out to employers? 

• TxDOT to set an example with Austin District employees; Employees work from home a few days a 
week, 4-10-hour days  

• Don’t see themselves reaching out to mobilize other employers 
• Texas Connected Freight Corridor Project 
• Austin District has a large part in considering trucks and freight, which have huge impact on 

mobility, especially along I-35 corridor  

Priority Areas throughout Six-County Region 

• I-35 and MoPac 

Austin is in attainment, but close to the line of being in non-attainment; reducing gridlock during peak 

periods improves air quality.  Air quality is an important issue, and want to make sure that we are capturing 

this 

87



Appendix 

• Pilot programs and discussion of having air quality sensors near schools, hospitals, etc. that would 
coordinate with connected vehicles to reroute with the interest of maintaining air quality 

Economic development considerations? 

• Looking at economic development when approving driveway locations, try to do everything we can 
to allow for development 

• Considering economic development when coordinating with businesses to minimize impacts 
during construction 

What about overall access management? 

• Standard to evaluate roadway adjacent to developments and do a TIA  
• Look at traffic generation, turning options, etc.; Falls under the umbrella of safety and operations 

Falls into land use category too; developments can add trips to an area that the existing network cannot 

handle  

• Real time data collection is important to monitor travel times, demonstrate how development 
impacts the system 

• Need to preemptively place data collection devices in areas where we expect development to 
monitor changes over time 

• Mentioned TIA, which only affects one development, but if you have sensors out there you can 
apply information from multiple TIAs to get a regional assessment  

Where do Park-and-Rides fall within TxDOT’s jurisdiction? Does TxDOT design or fund these 

improvements? 

• Capital Metro reaches out to TxDOT to coordinate on Park-and-Rides  

One of the drivers of our schedule is call for projects. Does TxDOT interface with CAMPO during that 

process? 

• Last year TxDOT was awarded almost 70 million towards projects  
o A lot of budget allocated to HERO, some standalone ITS projects 

• Plan on submitting additional projects this go around, has had success hiring consultant for 
applications 

Mixed reaction about Austin’s ability to add capacity. What type of linkages exist or might need to be 

introduced so that TDM principles can be considered during design? Example: including bus on shoulder 

use in the future; if you don’t incorporate into design, you’re setting up for construction later 

• Riding the shoulder is a great example and a good strategy, but not in place  
• Once TSMO kicks off (have a plan for the district, want to take it to the region), look at some TDM 

elements from a regional standpoint during design to promote preclude those strategies  
• ITS, HERO, and similar programs focus on operations - Need to be able to monitor the roadway, 

clear incidents quickly and have other strategies to keep traffic moving 
• Should consider operations in any infrastructure project - can add lanes but they fill up again 

If Austin District started to include checks for TDM strategies on construction projects, would that be 

going outside of the statewide TxDOT procedure? Are they free to change those processes as a 

standalone district? 

• Districts can look at anything during design; Show the benefits through data to provide best facility 

SH 161 in Dallas District is a good example where they have shoulder running, but only during AM/PM peak 

periods. They have a lot of before and after data on how that works 

88



Appendix 

• Looking at 290 West toward Manor where there’s a bridge, only chokes up during rush hour 
o 290 it was a full buildout of shoulders, sticking point was the daily maintenance of the 

shoulder 
o Looking at having DMS to direct when open 

FM 620 ITS project received funding in last project call – they are in design right now, and how will that 

dovetail with potential widening that could be submitting in the next project call? 

• FM 620 has multiple interchanges, working very closely with planners as projects are proposed to 
reduce conflicts 

• There’s going to be a lot of fiber in the ground, coordinating with CoA to share fiber; Full cameras, 
DMS on 620; during the design process looking at how we can get full coverage 

• Making combinations as much as we can with our design process, identifying all conflicts ahead of 
time, minimize downtime when projects get moving on 620 

Overall this will be a combination of adding capacity as well as improving operations; to the point where we 

are fully built out on major roadways like IH 35 and MoPac, going to have to come down to TDM to move 

traffic. 

 
  

89



Appendix 

Planner Senior, Planner, and Environmental Project Manager at Travis County  

February 12, 2019 
 

What mobility area (transportation mode, safety, corridor planning, etc.) does your agency most impact? 

• Travis County TNR - corridor planning with a multimodal focus, especially in unincorporated areas; 
dabbling in transit planning 

• Including bike and ped facilities on every new facility, retrofitted a few 
• Travis County as a whole - impacts safety through emergency services 

Were you able to attend the August 2018 workshop on TDM? 

• Cathy attended, Shannon/Adele did not; Cathy will share materials 

What TDM programs does your agency currently support? 

• In-house employee commute program, encourage employees to use alternate commute modes, 
telework; Proposing incentive options for employees who use eco friendly transportation, gain 
points to redeem toward  

o Recently won designation as top 300 place to work for commuters  
o Lockers and showers are a part of every new-build facilities for employees who bike, etc. 

• Provide in kind support to Commute Solutions, joined the 2020 challenge 
• Working on Mobility on Demand in Austin’s Colony/Hornsby Bend, Manor; Bringing transit to 

urbanized but unincorporated areas eligible for 5307 funding, but not in Capital Metro service 
area  

• County is redeveloping property on Airport Blvd. to include affordable housing near transit 
• County is negotiating several public improvement districts (PIDs) that incorporate TDM strategies 

– a tool that provides for the financing of public improvements or services that benefit a definable 
part of Travis County 

From 1 to ten (where ten is the best/ most important) rank the importance to your agency of the below 

TDM functions: 

a. Improving mobility and accessibility: 9-10 
b. Reducing congestion/improving travel reliability: 9-10 
c. Improving air quality: 9-10 
d. Impacting economic development: 8-9 
e. Integrating land use with transportation: 8 
f. Freight and goods movement: 5 
g. Improving quality of life/ livability: 9-10 

i. Included in Travis County mission statement 

What TDM approaches do you believe would be most impactful in the region? 

• For roadway expansion (managed elements like diamond/flex lanes, transit enhancements)? 
o Diamond lanes - Express lanes and HOV lanes, transit priority lanes, transit improvements 
o Better bike facilities – not necessarily bike lanes but can be SUP; seeing scooters and need 

to have requirements for where they should run 
 Hub and Spoke plan – including this in our transportation plan 
 Scooters are an urban thing, but they’ve had some issues around Georgetown, 

etc.; creating a huge problem with parking, etc. 
o Low speed network – scooters, low speed electric vehicles 

• For shared mobility programs? 
o Hub and Spoke Plan taken on by bike safety task force 
o Fixed route transit service is helpful, but mobility on demand programs would also be 

useful as a transit service.  

90



Appendix 

 Partnering with CARTS and Capital Metro on geofenced mobility on demand 
program that picks up on important locations such as grocery stores, nearby 
transit stops 

 First couple of vehicles will be CARTS branded, smaller than buses, and hailed 
using app technology and call center 

o Capital Metro van pools 
o Limited availability of uber/lyft drivers in rural areas – Julia Cleary gave example of people 

who go to bars in rural areas and don’t have access to TNCs or transit services 
• For operational strategies to be applied? 

o Flex uses – would love to convert shoulder during peak times, but have had difficulty 
pushing that through legislature in the past 

o Turn lanes, flex lanes, and HOV/diamond lanes  
o Incorporating TDM planning into construction process – want to see that we’re thinking 

through impacts 
 Example used in FHWA workshop: Colorado DOT requires a TDM piece for 

construction plans, and have reduced VMT in construction zones for one express 
lane project by 12,500 

What regions or corridors do you believe will most benefit from TDM approaches? 

• Answers are the same for all three categories, generally: IH 35, RM 620, SH 71W, FM 
685/Dessau/Cameron, FM 812, FM 973, FM 969/MLK 

What resources can your agency provide in solving the TDM puzzle? 

• In-house commuter program 
• Providing bike/ped infrastructure and being sensitive to vehicle movements 
• Interlocal Transit Demand Plan (TDP) 

o Not enough demand for transit-only lanes 
o Working with CARTs, Capital Metro, and NPOs to get transit service in approx. 10 

urbanized but unincorporated gap areas 
o TNR is considering funding a portion of bus stop and service to mobile home 

development of approx. 500 homes that was not annexed with surrounding areas; Capital 
Metro route passes by, but did not stop due to jurisdictional boundary 

o TNR funds route to Community First and surrounding area as service to 
homeless/previously homeless community 

• Will provide team with copy of the full TDP, which also includes component about medical routes 

What resources does your agency need to practice TDM strategies? 

• Funding and public support 
o Commissioners Court less likely to fund programs without public support 

• Example – won’t fund TDM programs for county employees, could be remedied with outreach 
program to describe benefits to overall efficiency of system 

• Need education about gap areas, which are expected to grow in the next census, and needs for 
TDM strategies in those areas 

What other stakeholders does your agency most closely work with?  Have you ever collaborated on a 

project together? 

• TxDOT, City of Austin, and other jurisdictions – consistently work together on roadway projects 
• Works with several entities through funding and planning partnerships 

Based on your understanding of TDM and flexible work schedules, what are the top 5 employers that 

would benefit from TDM programs? 

• State of Texas employees, IRS 

91



Appendix 

• Seton/St. David’s 
• Keller Williams – realtors cover a lot of miles 
• Federal Government  

What are your agency’s top priorities in supporting or leading TDM projects or strategies? 

• TDM policies and incentives determined through CAMPO planning 
• Funding streams for TDM programs 
• Infrastructure improvements 
• Outreach campaigns to engage and educate public 

 

  

92



Appendix 

Regional Coordination Manager, Regional Coordination Planner, and 
Sustainability Officer at Capital Metro 

February 12, 2019 – 1 p.m. 

What mobility area (transportation mode, safety, corridor planning, etc.) does your agency most impact? 

• Partnership between CARTS and Capital Metro 
• Mission to help people navigate the transit system 
• Implementing new transit solutions 

o Vehicle giveaway program – retired vans  
o Non-profits providing service where Capital Metro does not 

• Submitting application to CAMPO for subsidy to fund out pilot outside of service area 

Were you able to attend the August 2018 workshop on TDM? 

• Yes – all conference call attendees attended workshop 
• Team to send summary materials 

What TDM programs does your agency currently support? 

• Commuter rail, red line, metro rideshare, transit, van pool, rail 
• Partnership with Mobility on Demand 

o Pecan Street project 
• Support B cycle  
• Strong partnership with Commute Solutions 

o Funding support with Movability Austin  
o Board and committee support 
o Role in Regional Commute Solutions Program 

• Vehicle partnership with COA 

From 1 to ten (where ten is the best/ most important) rank the importance to your agency of the below 

TDM functions: 

• Improving mobility and accessibility: 10 
• Reducing congestion/improving travel reliability: 10  
• Improving air quality: 10  
• Impacting economic development: 9  
• Integrating land use with transportation: 10 

o Key land use promotion is dedicated right of way and TOD development  
o Importance of development along corridors where there are transportation services 

• Freight and goods movement: 5 
o 10% of business model includes freight and goods movement by rail 

• Improving quality of life/ livability: 9  
o More qualitative, but don’t manage as a separate entity  

What TDM approaches do you believe would be most impactful in the region? 

• For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-tolled managed lanes, transit 
enhancements, and active demand management? 

o Continued use of new or existing managed lanes 
 Success of MoPac managed lanes 

o Dedicated lanes for transit  
o Project Connect and implementation of dedicated lanes is an important factor, so transit is 

more accessible and convenient  
o Cut-in features (pull in pull out for bus) 

 Example of CARTS services for Capital Metro in Georgetown 

93



Appendix 

o During improvements looking at transit access while improving corridors (cut-in, etc. in 
design) 

 Along SH 29 
o Enhanced transit amenities – sidewalks, parking lots, transit stations, integrated way of 

enhancing transit system 
o Park and Ride Study 

 Michelle Meaux to send park and ride study to Chad, Nirav, or David 
o Mobility hubs/ transit stations – Starbucks, Whole Foods, etc.  

• For shared mobility programs? 
o Coordination of agencies, providers, technology, and services (Uber, etc.) in the region  

• For operational strategies to be applied? 
o Improve existing facilities to increase transit and coordinate with other entities 

 COA bus only lanes 
 Bus only lane from Lavaca onto MLK  
 Timing of lights 

o Innovative improvements like island stations and flex lanes – good for corridors with strong 
inbound/ out bound  

 801 and 803  
o Universal fare system and integrative app for all multimodal forms 

 For example – coordinating with CARTS (two fare systems)  
o Education awareness, trip planning, business participation, school participation 
o Parking adjustments that encourage transit ridership 

What regions or corridors do you believe will most benefit from TDM approaches? 

• For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-tolled managed lanes, transit 
enhancements, and active demand management? 

o Project Connect 
o I-35 expansion 
o CTRMA is working on expansion of 183-S and use of those managed lanes would be very 

helpful  
• For shared mobility programs? 

o Programs into/out of Downtown Austin 
o Lamar Blvd 
o Areas with high vehicle/pedestrian interaction 

 Lower Guadalupe (“The Drag”) 
o Areas without Project Connect – high priority for alternative rideshare 

 Westgate and Oakhill 
• For operational strategies to be applied? 

What resources can your agency provide in solving the TDM puzzle? 

• Vanpool 
• Office of Mobility Management as a resource for Capital Metro and CARTS in the region  
• Staff contributes to Commute Solutions 
• Ride planning, Trip Planning, Smart Trips with COA, Transit Adventures, Metro works, Service 

expansion program (required to do a TDP) 

What resources does your agency need to practice TDM strategies? 

• Currently working with Commute Solutions and Movability Austin to enhance TDM practices 
amongst own employees 

o First phase – working with staff to use TDM strategies 
o Second phase – service providers (primarily contractors) using TDM strategy  
o Third phase – staff as ambassadors to the community  

• Training, awareness, incentives 
o Example: We’re On It Program  

94



Appendix 

What other stakeholders does your agency most closely work with?  Have you ever collaborated on a 

project together? 

• City of Austin, CAPCOG, CARTS, Movability, Counties within CAPCOG region  
• Bastrop, Williamson, Hays, Travis 

o Williamson – increasing vanpool participation in Round Rock and Georgetown 
• Health providers through Community Health Assessment/ Community Health Improvement Plan  
• Faith community 
• Transit Empowerment Fund – distributing bus passes to non-profits 
• Demonstration grants to non-profits 
• AISD and Universities - Free ridership for students under 18 
• Partnerships with the CLEAN AIR Coalition with CAPCOG 

Based on your understanding of TDM and flexible work schedules, what are the top 5 employers that 

would benefit from TDM programs? 

• Dell, Samsung, State of Texas – capitol complex development 

What are your agency’s top priorities in supporting or leading TDM projects or strategies? 

• Implement Connections 2025 Plan 
• Project Connect Plan 
• Internal park-and-ride working group to develop short term vision 

o Part of park-and-ride annual report 
o Staff works with CTRMA to make sure goals align  

• Regional service through service expansion program 
• Increasing use of metro rideshare program 
• Integrating efforts with other multimodal providers  

  

95



Appendix 

Regional Planning and Services Assistant Director at CapCOG 

February 12, 2019 – 3:30 p.m.  
What mobility area (transportation mode, safety, corridor planning, etc.) does your agency most impact? 

• Commute Solutions program which addresses regional demand management focused on 
transportation mode and congestion mitigation 

• Impact program areas from air quality to rural transportation planning 
o Linkages in terms of general planning  

Were you able to attend the August 2018 workshop on TDM? 

• Yes 

What TDM programs does your agency currently support? 

• Commute Solutions Program – direct operational control 
o Established 20 years ago, the regional umbrella TDM program that provides one stop-

shop information resource for available transportation options 
o Incentive programs 

 Mycommutesolutions.com platform - helps find carpool/vanpool matches and 
manage incentive platforms 

 Local employers can update their own platform within  
o Established a Regional TDM Coordinating Committee with intent to coordinate 

information related to TDM in the region  
o Conduct outreach to employers, school districts, presentations to community groups, 

attend events, monthly newsletters, social media posts, and paid advertising 
 Regional scientific survey among the public to understand impact of the effort 

o Two CAPCOG staff members working on the program 
 Andrew Hoekzema and Anton Cox 

o Geographic representation from Travis County, COA, Pflugerville, Round Rock, Marbles, 
Hays County, Bastrop, CTRMA, CAMPO, TxDOT, Capital Metro, and CARTS 

From 1 to ten (where ten is the best/ most important) rank the importance to your agency of the below 

TDM functions: 

• Improving mobility and accessibility  
• Reducing congestion/improving travel reliability  
• Improving quality of life/livability 

o Primary importance 
• Improving air quality  
• Impacting economic development  
• Integrating land use with transportation  
• Freight and goods movement  

o Secondary importance 

What TDM approaches do you believe would be most impactful in the region? 

• For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-tolled managed lanes, transit 
enhancements, and active demand management? 

o Incorporating transit features into roadway projects 
o CAPCOG project analyzing impact on fuel consumption and emissions on the MoPac 

managed lanes – clear impact to improvement in Capital Metro ridership  
 Improving efficiency in assets we already have  
 Report should be available in the next month 
 Better reliability with dedicated ROW 

96



Appendix 

• For shared mobility programs? 
o Limiting factor of available transit services/ TDM strategies people are unaware of 

 Increased outreach is key to TDM effort 
 Marketing as a TDM measure 

o Incentivizing people to use TDM 
o TDM as an important growth management strategy 

 CAMPO is not a regulatory agency but can be supportive of these broad goals  
 Making sure everybody’s interests are aligned  

What regions or corridors do you believe will most benefit from TDM approaches? 

• For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-tolled managed lanes, transit 
enhancements, and active demand management? 

o Urbanized Austin area not in the Capital Metro service area 
 New census next year will change the boundary of the Austin urbanized areas 
 Areas with the fewest alternatives but have the most to gain in these services 

• For shared mobility programs? 
o Carpooling, vanpooling, telecommuting and flex scheduling  

 Telecommuting has large potential in the Austin area because of the workforce 
profile – Low cost, high impact 

 Currently no agency within the region who has telecommuting as their mission  
o Being aware of agency diversity and resources with TDM interest  

What resources can your agency provide in solving the TDM puzzle? 

• Commute Solutions program  
• Relationships with local governments, communities in the CAMPO Plan 
• Funding from the air quality program to help support programs 

o Expertise, relationships, program, brand 

What resources does your agency need to practice TDM strategies? 

• Funding support for ongoing programs 
• Hope that the policy board awards funding so these programs don’t lose momentum 
• Adequate staff resources and advertising to gain input from the region 
• Funding application as indication on what growth and financial resources will be needed for a 

regional TDM program 

What other stakeholders does your agency most closely work with?  Have you ever collaborated on a 

project together? 

• Capital Metro, CTRMA, CoA, Travis County 
• Coordinating Committee – bringing in new actors like Waze carpool, etc. 

Based on your understanding of TDM and flexible work schedules, what are the top 5 employers that 

would benefit from TDM programs? 

• Local governments – employees have the highest single occupancy vehicle rate; helps agencies 
set an example for other employers and improves credibility when encouraging private companies 
to implement TDM efforts 

What are your agency’s top priorities in supporting or leading TDM projects or strategies? 

• Top priorities should be increasing awareness of alternatives to single-occupancy vehicles, then 
persuading people to utilize those alternatives 

• Short term impact/improvements with the money we already have 
• Long term priority to make sure work is well coordinated and regional in scope 
• Communicate idea that TDM projects aren’t a threat in funding to other projects 

97



Appendix 

General Discussion: 

• Discussed timing of the TIP amendment process this Spring 
o Possible interim set of recommendations to allocate funding while not foreclosing any 

possibilities of the plan  
• Important to distinguish between programs that encourage behavior change for using existing 

system and efforts that modify the system itself  
o Different evaluation measures for programs and capital improvements 

 

  

98



Appendix 

TDM Program Manager at the City of Austin  

February 12, 2019 – 4:45 p.m. 

What mobility area (transportation mode, safety, corridor planning, etc.) does your agency most impact? 

• Tien-Tien’s role specifically is to manage the City’s TDM program, which includes three broad 
topics (policy, planning, and programing): 

• Policy – looking at City and regional policies; coordinating with other entities that aren’t 
strictly transportation related, such as economic development and land use 

o Land use and development – looking at updating land development code, including 
TDM/TIA requirements  

Anything we could use from CodeNEXT to share as best practices or as an example for other entities doing 

reform to their land use code? 

• Could look CodeNEXT materials; controversial, might not be the best example 
• Helpful to look at early work on high-level vision summaries (20-30 pages); give broad 

overview of direction we’re moving in terms of parking (inefficient land use), etc.  

Negotiation with developers – Example: if they want two extra floors, they will be permitted only if they 

implement TDM; Any plans in the city to develop scheme for this? Who initiates these conversations? 

• City is developing updated TIA guidelines, which will have more transparency on 
recommended TDM strategies and estimated trip reductions 

• Every PUD is a broad conversation, doesn’t have specific guidelines 
o Example: San Francisco TDM ordinance passed 3 years ago - guiding document is 

clear and developer friendly, walks through steps; Eventually had to pass ordinance 
that said they were generally TDM friendly, vs relying on tying TDM strategies to trip 
reduction.  

Is the City of Austin looking at a new definition of Level of Service? 

• Discussed it during CodeNEXT; General direction we’re moving is to incorporate multimodal 
impacts, rather than doing away with LOS entirely 

• Incentive policies – working to see how this is framed for companies that are looking to branch 
into Austin area or expand existing  

• Special events – worked with special events office to create ordinance 
o Sustainability – must adhere to composting, recycling, energy regulations 

• Education, outreach, and programming 
o Smart Trips program focusing on residents in specific neighborhoods 

• Internal strategies for employers 
o Commuter programs with incentives/disincentives, as well as programs such as flex 

working 

Were you able to attend the August 2018 workshop on TDM? 

• Yes 

What TDM programs does your agency currently support? 

• Support programs that they don’t lead – Movability 
• Mayor’s Mobility Challenge 
• Commute Solutions through CapCOG, try to provide funding when possible  

From 1 to ten (where ten is the best/ most important) rank the importance to your agency of the below 

TDM functions: 

• Improving mobility and accessibility 

99



Appendix 

• Reducing congestion/improving travel reliability – reduction is not a goal, managing congestion/ 
improving travel reliability is a goal 

• Improving air quality: 8 
o One year ago, would have been 10, but now AQ function is included in sustainability 

department 
• Impacting economic development: 9 
• Integrating land use with transportation:10 
• Freight and goods movement: 5 

o Not a focus, although our department is studying non-radioactive HazMat  
• Improving quality of life/ livability: 10 

 What is the driver, helping to attract employers or maintain overall attractiveness as region? 

• Economic development and livability go hand in hand 
• Looking at where TDM is already happening that we can improve and focus on 
• Trying to incentivize large companies, acknowledging that there will always be impacts; ensuring 

net positive impact 
• Parking and Transportation Management District – looking at areas like the east side or Mueller to 

manage congestion by using metered parking and putting money back into the community 

What TDM approaches do you believe would be most impactful in the region? 

• For roadway projects including elements such as flex lanes/diamond lanes, transit enhancements, 
and active demand management? 

o HOV lanes on major highways – specifically the benefit it provides to public transit, BRT, 
show time-savings  

• For shared mobility programs? 
o Carpooling and vanpooling, comes down to ability to show time-savings 
o Last mile options and midday trip solutions  

 Car2Go, scooters, etc. break down barriers for people committing to transit or 
shared mobility (need to run errands, etc.) 

• For operational strategies to be applied? 
o Signal timing and preemption - Allow transit to queue jump or pre-empt a signal 
o Not sure if using shoulder for transit is permitted in Texas 
o Technology, mobility as a service – customer facing and accessible for the layman to 

understand how to use different options 

What regions or corridors do you believe will most benefit from TDM approaches? 

• Need to look at O/D, employment hubs that serve on a regional level 

What resources can your agency provide in solving the TDM puzzle? 

• Allocating funding to TDM through mobility bond, aspirational 
• Dedicated TDM department; working with CAMPO, CapCOG, and Capital Metro 
• Provide public-facing education and outreach to the layperson who doesn’t understand options  

What resources does your agency need to practice TDM strategies? CM: What are the things you would 

like to do more of? 

• Need additional funding and staff; policy guidance and directives that would help gain funding  
o Example: took three years to develop public facing website, now they are looking into 

ways to keep this useful – need staff, marketing etc. 
o Example: policy guidance on parking; encourage employers to act on TDM strategies; 

looking to commuter benefit ordinances in other areas 
 90% is incentive based 

• Directed funding – Judge Eckhart’s 5% funding allocation, helpful for CoA to implement TDM 

100



Appendix 

What other stakeholders does your agency most closely work with?  Have you ever collaborated on a 

project together? 

• CAMPO, Movability, and CapCOG 
• Haven’t worked much with TxDOT in the past, currently partnered with TxDOT and Travis County 

to share best practices and develop internal commute programs 
• Regional TDM Coordination Committee – meeting to discuss broad topics and share ideas; at the 

point of collaborating on big items, related to lack of policy/mandates/directive 

Based on your understanding of TDM and flexible work schedules, what are the top 5 employers that 

would benefit from TDM programs? 

• State, UT, AISD, City of Austin 
• Look to chamber for largest employers 

What are your agency’s top priorities in supporting or leading TDM projects or strategies? 

• Policy – updates to land development code, or update parking policy within existing structure 
• Parking – one of the biggest issues Austin needs to tackle 

o Managing parking downtown and working on new developments 
o Getting rid of parking requirements at low-income housing developments 

• Education and information for residents  
o Supporting web usage (GetThereATX.com); focusing on segments due to limited funding 

• Looking at ways to influence new movers – targeting those more likely to shift 
• Interested in learning about and supporting programs that aren’t within the City’s purview 

• Example of construction mitigation – looking at ways that TxDOT, and other entities, can 
implement strategies to make sure that TDM practices continue to be used beyond the 
construction project 

• Considering how we can be more thoughtful about investing in projects that reduce vehicle 
trips 

City Council adopted incentives program in December 

• Resolution led by Mayor Pro Tem Garza to increase transit usage through incentives 
o ATD put together group of internal stakeholders and solutions to increase use of public 

transit 
o Asking City Manager to direct and report back to City Council on recommendations and 

budgetary priorities 
o Bloomberg can provide support, not giving money but connecting with experts 

 Commuter incentives 
 Promoting shared mobility 
 Parking policies 

o Bloomberg can take a look at Movability, Smart Trips, etc. and provide guidance and 
expertise on enhancing efforts or starting pilots 

 City Lab – Bloomberg funded the City of Durham program to reduce parking 
demand; behavior experts developed series of pilot programs to see if behavior 
science application to transportation issue would yield different results 

• 4 staff members on TDM program  

  

101



Appendix 

Executive Director at Movability  

February 13, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 
 
Can you provide an overview of Movability and your role in implementing TDM programs and strategies? 

• Only TMA in the region; Member-based organization (about 60 members) 

• Working directly with employers, connecting them and their employees with mobility options 

o Employers ranging from University Federal Credit Union to Google, Samsung, state 

agencies and City of Austin 

o Partner members - service providers including Car2Go, scooters, R&R Limos 

• Provide members with education opportunities, through writing and facilitating strategic mobility 

plans, developing lunch and learns, and connecting employers with service providers 

• No federal assistance, because Austin is in attainment 
 
How many employees does Movability have? 

• 3 full time employees and one communications contractor  

• Managing contract with Downtown Austin Alliance - access to their research, good partner for 

connections with employers and potential members 
 
How many members are required due to TDM policies written into development agreements and how 
many are voluntary? 

• All membership is voluntary 
 
What is your method of outreach to employers? 

• Connecting with employers through gateway programs such as the Mayor’s Mobility Challenge  

• 4th year of the Mayor’s Mobility Challenge - Challenge to reach out to employers to develop TDM 

strategies and plans 

o 1.0 (1st three years) - $5k each for up to 20 companies to help write TDM plan 

 Few Central Texas companies have anyone dedicated to TDM; worked with HR, 

facilities, etc. to help with strategic mobility plan  

o 2.0 (2019)  

 Reengage with previous Mobility Challenge employers to evaluate progress and 

help them move forward with implementing TDM plans 

• Movability gets referrals through companies who have worked with them  

• Board of directors actively engage employers/companies and connect them with Movability 
 
How many of your member organizations are in Downtown Austin vs other centers? 

• About half of Movability members are located in Downtown Austin  
 
CapCOG conducts outreach to employers about alternative transportation services, but they aren’t a 
membership organization and might not work as hands on with these companies as Movability. Can you 
compare your role with the CapCOG’s role? 

• CapCOG connects individuals directly through Commute Solutions 

• Commute Solutions is funded through government agencies. 

102



Appendix 

• Movability’s model reaches more individuals through the support of their employers 

• Movability works with organizations to help them develop programs and benefits that support 

TDM options for employees/members 

o With buy in from employers, more likely to get participation from employees 
 
Can you describe some of the strategies/outcomes of your work with employers? 

• Mayor’s Mobility Challenge 1.0 focused on developing a strategic mobility plan 

• Most groups working with Movability look at desired outcomes and create customized approach  

o Example: Merck wasn’t prepared for limited parking in downtown – consider 

implementing teleworking policies to reduce those needs 

• Focus on employee retention – getting and keeping good employees, especially with employees 

that value work-life balance 

o Help develop benefit packages for employees that want to reduce time spent in vehicles  

o Cash out parking for transit passes, b cycle passes, flex time, and teleworking programs 
 
Something we’ve heard from other stakeholders – construction can bring about lasting change that goes 
beyond the timeline of construction.  

• Example: construction around capitol complex, working with Senator Watson and Representative 

Israel’s offices to develop a flex time pilot program for state employees 

• Construction has historically resulted in lasting behavior change - Employment profile of Austin is 

helpful in terms of teleworking and other similar programs 

• We are currently working with a couple of State agencies.  One of our efforts is to work with 

Capital Metro to implement a pilot program for them to take advantage of Metrowork passes 
 
What type of linkages might be introduced so that TDM principles can be considered during design? 

• Dedicated transit lanes downtown (rail or bus), protected bike and scooter lanes 

• Emerging technology that would be helpful outside of the downtown core for making 

connections in more rural areas 

• Park-and-rides associated with major developments  

o Requires coordination with Capital Metro and other service providers, opportunity for 

people to come together for collaborative planning efforts 

o Need to have enough remote parking (park & rides) to make convenient and easy for 

riders 
 
Shared Mobility options? 

• Expanded transit service – Cap Remap was a good improvement, want to see network extended 

o Need dedicated transit lanes to keep comparable travel times so people will take transit 

• Building facilities that support buses and other modes – electric vehicles, etc.  

• One-stop shop for information about shared mobility programs, help plan trips end-to-end 

o Could be implemented at the CAMPO level or by service providers 

• Regional, inward and outward facing communication with shared mobility programs  

103



Appendix 

o Example: Downtown Station Redevelopment began in April – Movability to help share 

information about construction delays and closures 
 
What would be the advantages/disadvantages of different agencies taking the lead? 

• Something to be determined by the TDM Plan 

• Keep regional focus in mind, helpful for CAMPO or RMA as regional organizations to sponsor or 

take some ownership of these programs 

• Movability would be a candidate because of strong partnerships with agencies and implementers, 

board members who are working to help get us connected  

• CapCOG and Commute Solutions have federal money, where it would be more difficult for 

Movability to tap into those funds 
 
Different agencies are working in silos, but there’s also the coordinating committee trying to pull things 
together. Do you think there has been a turning point in getting people on board with coordinating? 

• Working to facilitate cross planning, regional TDM coordination committee spun off from 

Commute Solutions committee  

o Communication has improved, still building trust 
 
Operational Improvements? 

• Robust Commute Solutions program or equivalent 

o Redesigning website, hope they gain traction in rural areas that feed into downtown  
 
Are there particular areas that Movability focuses on or should? 

• Started out as Movability Austin, dropped the “Austin” to focus on the region as a whole  

o Office with Downtown Austin Alliance, naturally they are plugged in  

• Parmer Lane - location of Samsung, Apple, and other large tech employers who generate traffic  

• Cedar Park - large number commute from this area to employment centers 

• Universities, University of Texas at Austin, Texas State University, and St. Edwards University 

should be more engaged in how they handle the traffic they generate 
 
Anything else we should know about Movability? 

• We have diversified funding sources and are working hard to increase our budget and our reach.  

Because the area is in attainment our members are all voluntary.  They participate because they 

want to participate. 

• We produce a lot work given our small budget.   

• Currently focusing on the needs of Parmer Lane and options beyond personal vehicles 

o Continuous bike lanes, sidewalks, and bus line to Samsung campus 

o Coordinating solutions with TxDOT and other agencies, waiting for estimated cost  

 If this project is successful it could hit all three of the categories listed (roadway 

projects, shared mobility, operations improvements) 
 
What are your agency’s top priorities in supporting or leading TDM projects or strategies? 

• Data collection  

104



Appendix 

o Mode split is very important to Movability 

o Hoping to develop an employment center survey to get information about mode splits for 

commuters, considering door-to-door travel 

o Develop a data gathering method that can be expanded to other areas in the region 

 Testing out methodology and metrics in Central Business District 

• Funding - currently funded by CoA, Capital Metro, DAA and membership 
 

Where is the region in terms of scaling these employer-based efforts? At what point do you reach 
saturation? 

• Being the only TMA in the region, Movability has to decide how to approach regional needs 

o Focus on downtown and how commuters reach this area from different population 

centers in the region 

o Focus on the large employment centers (downtown, domain, etc.) and work within the 

region from the perspective of the individual commuters 
 
Worked in areas where there are seven regional TMAs. Is there anything that prevents another TMA from 
coming into the region? 

• Nothing is keeping another TMA from coming into the region, just have to get 501(c) designation 

• Would see them as colleagues and peers, and another extension of who could help solve this 

problem 

 
  

105



Appendix 

Vice President of Regional Infrastructure and Mobility at the Greater Austin 
Chamber of Commerce 

February 13, 2019, 11 a.m. 
 

What mobility area (transportation mode, safety, corridor planning, etc.) does your agency most impact? 
• Corridor and long-range planning- advocating for creating multimodal corridors 
• Advocacy - Members help define areas of interest 
• Collaboration - Making sure members, organizations, and agencies are working together 

Were you able to attend the August 2018 workshop on TDM? 
• No; Team will share summary for Matt to share with members 

What TDM programs does your agency currently support? 
• Don’t currently have developed policies, but encourage flex schedules 
• Support local efforts to manage demand - Emphasis on priority bus lanes, light synchronization, 

anything that helps people get around more efficiently 

From 1 to ten (where ten is the best/ most important) rank the importance to your agency of the below 
TDM functions: 

• Sees these functions as interconnected, impact one another 
• Improving mobility and accessibility: 10 

o Top priority/overarching theme for the chamber 
• Reducing congestion/improving travel reliability: 9 

o Improving reliability for individuals, as well as freight and companies moving to the area 
• Improving air quality:  
• Impacting economic development: 9 

o Balancing this consideration and congestion/reliability improvements with quality of life 
o Considering access to and from new businesses that employ residents of the region 

• Integrating land use with transportation: 
• Freight and goods movement:  

o Large freight volumes impact air quality, need to consider in order to stay in attainment  
• Improving quality of life/ livability:  

o Major theme at the Chamber 

What TDM approaches do you believe would be most impactful in the region? 
• For roadway projects including elements such as flex lanes or non-tolled managed lane, transit 

enhancements, and active demand management?  
o Adding multimodal options, especially when expanding/repairing existing roadways; think 

about connections to trails and public transit 
o Thinking beyond added capacity, more emphasis on HOV/transit lanes 

 Think about these features during new construction projects – don’t want to 
cause impacts twice by adding in later 

• For shared mobility programs? 
o Scooters and TNCs as first/last mile options, especially important for those without 

vehicle access 
 Not just thinking about Point A (home) to Point B (work), but Point A1 (home) to 

A2 (transit) and so on 

106



Appendix 

• For operational strategies to be applied? 
o Signal timing improvements 

 Example: Arlington, TX uses modified signal timing after games/special events 
o Flex shoulders for transit use, especially where there are not dedicated transit lanes 
o Queue jumping for buses maintains route reliability 

 Consider for buses that need to merge across lanes for turning movements (6th 
street) 

What regions or corridors do you believe will most benefit from TDM approaches? 
• For roadway projects including elements such as diamond lanes, transit enhancements, and active 

demand management? 
o IH 35 needs diamond or express lane, especially through downtown core 

 Could be difficult from a technical and political standpoint 
 Construction companies could use these managed lanes 

o Example: MoPac express lane for buses – added Lakeline route due to popularity and 
reliability of routes using express lane 

• For shared mobility programs? 
o Domain - needs last mile options, connections to MoPac routes or to Kramer Station 

 Identify arterial needs for ingress and egress to major employers 
o East Side - well connected with bike lanes, scooter availability 

 Needs protected bike and pedestrian paths 
• For operational strategies to be applied? 

o Queue jumper needed in and out of downtown Austin (between 5th and MLK) during 
peak to access MoPac or IH 35 

o Consider ways to improve flow where ROW constrains expansion 

What resources can your agency provide in solving the TDM puzzle?  
• Advocacy and collaboration 

o Act as a sounding board for agencies, engineers, and planners on several areas of policy 
o Provide information and collect feedback from member businesses that aren’t involved in 

transportation but who rely upon ingress/egress 
o Membership will advocate for Chamber’s official position through oral and written 

testimonies 
• Transportation committee meets 1st Wednesday of every month 

o Can have TDM-focused meeting to look at commute patterns, identify routes to work and 
potential transit passes, etc. 

What resources does your agency need to practice TDM strategies? 
• Facilitating connections between members and agencies to discuss initiatives 
• Mobility audit to look at business clusters that want more options 
• Want to partner with Movability on several initiatives 

What other stakeholders does your agency most closely work with?  Have you ever collaborated on a 
project together? 

• CTRMA  
o Collaborated on planning for 183A and MoPac 

• Counties (esp. Travis, WilCo, and Hays), CapCOG (CARTPO) 
• Capital Metro (Impact Advisory Board) 

o Planning Mobility Summit, staying engaged with Project Connect  

107



Appendix 

Based on your understanding of TDM and flexible work schedules, what are the top 5 employers that 
would benefit from TDM programs? 

• State of Texas – especially offices in the capitol area, but others as well 
• Tech industry – Samsung, Apple, Dell, Oracle, IDM 
• HomeAway at the Domain 

What are your agency’s top priorities in supporting or leading TDM projects or strategies? 
• Advocating for flex time, shoulder riding 
• ProjectConnect 
• Getting information to the business sector  

o Example: ASMP team will be giving presentations to Chamber in April 
• Connecting downtown, Domain, Williamson County – need to work together to create solutions 

General Discussion 
• Looking at the impacts of TDM programs as a whole – one strategy might not make a big change, 

but all of these collectively have an impact 

 

  

108



Appendix 

Facilities Manager at Google 

February 13, 2019 – 1 p.m. 

What mobility area (transportation mode, safety, corridor planning, etc.) does your agency most impact? 
• Answering from a current perspective as well as what we are hoping to accomplish 
• Austin office opened around 2007, moved to downtown from north campus in 2017 

o Transitioning to downtown affected commute for several hundred employees 
• Thinking about what modes employees are using and impacting, providing as many options as 

possible 
o Experience in Bay Area office – similarly auto-focused; employees choose to drive 

personal vehicles to work 
o Not sustainable from an employer/facilities perspective 

• Impacting community through transportation – going to keep investing in alternative forms of 
transportation and disincentivizing single occupancy vehicle trips 

• Want to contribute to traffic solution, not just traffic problem 

Were you able to attend the August 2018 workshop on TDM? 
• No – previous experience in service and real estate departments, never had primary focus on 

transportation until recently 
• Inherited most existing employee TDM programs, getting involved in transportation to 

acknowledge bigger picture during continued implementation 
o Went to several transportation workshops and joined Movability, but wants to get more 

involved in future workshops 
• Team will share summary information 

What TDM programs does your agency currently support?  
• Employee incentives and subsidies 

o Free shuttle program for employees; not intended to compete with public transportation 
options, but to provide alternative  

o Monthly Capital Metro passes – popular option for employees 
o Capital Metro Vanpool – Employees organize and google will reimburse 

 Have about 7 vanpools now, grew from about 4 a year ago 
o Waze Carpool- Google-owned company, free for employees 
o Lime scooters – discounts and passes 
o Private bike storage, showers, and other amenities onsite at Google office 

What other stakeholders does your agency most closely work with?  Have you ever collaborated on a 
project together? 

• Movability - seen significant impact since joining last Fall 
o Seeing work Mobility has done with other organizations provides a good “blueprint” for 

TDM programs 
o Communication is critical – developing key messaging helps get more buy in 
o Leaning on Movability as much as possible and hoping they lean back on us as leaders in 

the community 
• Mayor’s Mobility Challenge  

o Won the 2018 participant award for the mobility challenge; Joined the 2019 challenge, 
entered “300 Best Workplaces for Commuters” 

109



Appendix 

o Opportunity to work with other companies, routinely work with Facebook in downtown 
and domain 

o Balancing internal demands of the company with external transportation needs 
• Public policy team worked with City in the past, Chris would like to get more involved and gain 

experience with the City 

How many employees do you have in Austin?  
2. Currently about 1000 working in downtown 

Do you do your own internal surveying of how people are getting to work? 
3. Yes, commute survey sent to 10-20 random employees every month; each employee fills out once 

per year 
o How did you get to work this week? Is this an average week or is there something special 

that changed your commute patterns this week? What is a normal week? 
• Shows results over time, used in Bay area office for years and has proven to be a great data source 
4. Part of Mobility Challenge is to take baseline survey, haven’t gone back to do second round yet 
5. Strong analytics team, data driven in all programs – using anonymized home location data to 

identify hot spots for commuters, focusing efforts there 
a. Shuttles in northwest, northeast (near previous campus) and south where many 

employees live 
6. Tabling events - Shuttle provider sets up in cafeteria to gather input  

a. Conversational interactions – can collect more nuanced, qualitative input  

Downtown is one of the only areas that doesn’t have a minimum parking requirement for buildings – how 
do you view this policy? Positive, negative, influential when choosing space? 

7. Parking is always going to be a challenge; we will never have 1:1 parking  
8. Northern California office used remote parking with shuttles until recently 
9. As a facilities manager, would prefer useful amenities in the space taken up by parking spots 
10. Want to move away from providing free employee parking, incentivizes driving personal vehicles 

a. Another organization downtown started charging for parking, made a big impact but 
required a lot of buy-in ahead of time 

b. Already a wait list for parking garages, brings scarcity problem into view 

What do you see as the next step to try to make TDM more of a reality for your company? More services?  
11. Eager to explore different opportunities through collaboration with Movability 
12. Waze team based out of Austin is part of Movability, would like to be involved in this plan  
13. Launched community shuttle years ago, but it was more from marketing perspective of employee 

morale than TDM perspective 

When surveying employees, do you end up with specific figures or performance measures such as 
percentage who drive personal vehicles to work?  

14. No central repository for this information, various data sources from employee commute program 
can be used to estimate 

15. Roughly half of the office drives themselves, want to reduce to 30-40% in the next few years 
a. Expect this to be a challenge, want to set an ambitious goal 

General Discussion 
16. Focus has been incentivizing other modes rather than disincentivizing driving 
17. Potential to provide daily payout for people who don’t drive and park 

a. Successfully implemented in CO office  
b. Company saves money in parking rent 

110



Appendix 

18. Direct payout could be a good case study for Movability; usually done through net cost/payout 
a. Easier from change management perspective to pay instead of charging, maintain 

employee morale 
19. Recent partnership with Luum to provide software for employees to manage commutes, provide 

central location for information about commute options 
a. Gamifies commuting - awards points for alternative transportation to compare with co-

workers or redeem for prizes 
b. Already successful implemented in Boulder and Seattle offices 

 
  

111



Appendix 

EHS and Sustainability Professional at Samsung 

February 15, 2019 – 2:00 p.m. 

What mobility area (transportation mode, safety, corridor planning, etc.) does your organization most 

impact? 

• Currently working with Capital Metro to coordinate bus stop on site at Samsung facility near Parmer 
Lane 

o Have provided Capital Metro with data including an employee survey 
o Capital Metro currently reviewing viability of an additional bus stop, might not have enough 

ridership to warrant new stop 
• Priority to increase access to public transportation and to provide a platform for employees to 

connect with rideshare/carpooling partners 
o Looking at external providers like Scoop 

 Platform to location rideshare partners among coworkers 
 Samsung currently reviewing feasibility  

Were you able to attend the August 2018 workshop on TDM? 

• No, not familiar; Team to share summary information 

What TDM programs does your agency currently support? 

• Capital Metro, bus stop 
• Scoop - rideshare app 
• Currently working with TxDOT and CAMPO on Parmer Lane Expansion Study 

o Potential bike lane/sidewalks around facility 
o Began when Samsung entered in Mayor’s Mobility Challenge, Movability helped facilitate 

conversation  

From 1 to ten (where ten is the best/ most important) rank the importance to your agency of the below 

TDM functions: 

• Improving mobility and accessibility: 9 
• Reducing congestion/improving travel reliability: 9 

o Federal/ State/ MPO goal to manage traffic so commuters have a more consistent 
experience 

• Improving air quality: 8 
• Impacting economic development: 8 
• Integrating land use with transportation: 7 

o Idea that transportation serves land-use and vice versa 
• Freight and goods movement: 8 
• Improving quality of life/ livability: 9 

What TDM approaches do you believe would be most impactful in the region?  

• Part of the plan is to develop a TDM framework to share with large employers 
o For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-tolled managed lanes, 

transit enhancements, and active demand management? 
 Additional bus stops, bike lane, and/or shuttle bus from transportation hub 1-mile 

away from site 
 Basic infrastructure promoting alternative transportation, moving away from single 

occupancy vehicles 
o For shared mobility programs? 

 Scoop service 

112



Appendix 

 Between 5-12% employee participation rate at other Samsung sites 
 3,000 employees on site in Austin 
 Plan to indirectly subsidize, discount for employees if Samsung subscribes  
 Currently in funding justification process at Austin site  

What resources can your agency provide in solving the TDM puzzle? 

• Provide closer parking lots to employees who use rideshare 
o Currently one carpooling group on site  

• Electric charging station on site 

What resources does your agency need to practice TDM strategies? 

• Continue working with Capital Metro to better chance of additional service 
o Issue of sufficient ridership  
o Working with companies on Parmer Lane to gather more data 

• Waiting on TxDOT for their scope and feedback on Parmer Lane Expansion Study 

What other stakeholders does your agency most closely work with?  Have you ever collaborated on a 

project together? 

• Capital Metro, Movability, TxDOT, CAMPO, Scoop 
• COA Transportation Management Program, focus on commuting to and from downtown  
• Movability, regional transportation management  

o Broadening interaction with large companies like Samsung 

What are your agency’s top priorities in supporting or leading TDM projects or strategies? 

• Bike lanes/ sidewalks 
o Shuttle bus is most cost-effective 

• Capital Metro service  
o Note that millennial generation employees are more inclined to use public transit 
o Opportunity to be proactive 

 East Village across from Samsung site and Pecan development in Pflugerville, both 
growing  

  

113



Appendix 

Program Manager at Whole Foods Market 

February 15, 2019 – 3:00 p.m. 

Purpose/background of the TDM Plan: 

• Plan led by Cambridge Systematics, currently leading TDM effort for FHWA 
• Purpose is a unified TDM structure across the CAMPO region  
• Coordinating with agencies and organizations to come up with a project wish list 
• CAMPO to consider framework for projects in an upcoming project call  

What mobility area (transportation mode, safety, corridor planning, etc.) does your organization most 

impact? 

• Elizabeth Wiggins, Program Manager of Global Headquarters Whole Foods Market 
o Position developed from Green Mission, grass roots organization led by Whole Foods team 

members interested in the environment and sustainability 
o Started as discounted transit passes, rideshare buddies, etc. 

• Whole Foods committed to sustainability and commute of employees 
o Worked with Movability to put out a survey to employees about what they want and how 

they feel about their commute 
 40% of team members don’t use alternative transit because it takes longer than 

driving 
 30% of team members said transit options are too hard to figure out 
 Team members expressed there are limited options to those living in suburbs of 

Austin 

Were you able to attend the August 2018 workshop on TDM? 

• No, not familiar  
• Team to share copy of meeting summary 

From 1 to ten (where ten is the best/ most important) rank the importance to your agency of the below 

TDM functions: 

• Improving mobility and accessibility: 9/10 
o Common feedback from Survey among Whole Foods team members 
o 20% of team is using alternative transportation unincentivized  
o Survey showed frustration over access to transit 

• Reducing congestion/improving travel reliability: 8/9 
o Whole Foods footprint (2,000 employees at Downtown location), strive to be a good 

community member 
• Improving air quality: 7/8 

o Core company value of sustainability 
• Impacting economic development: lower priority 
• Integrating land use with transportation: lower priority 

o Limitations of lower regulatory state  
o Transportation is linked to land-use, people move about where they live, work, and play 
o Example of Whole Foods campus, Downtown Austin  

• Freight and goods movement: 1 
o Been in contact with Amazon TDM contact  
o Corporate perspective  

• Improving quality of life/ livability: high priority 

What TDM approaches do you believe would be most impactful in the region? 

114



Appendix 

• For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-tolled managed lanes, transit 
enhancements, and active demand management? 

o Managed supply solutions  
• For shared mobility programs? 

o Apps like Scoop, Waze carpool, Car to Go, Uber, Lyft, etc.  
o Using information and technology to affect how people make transportation decisions  

• For operational strategies to be applied? 
o Example of buses riding the shoulder when speeds are lower  
o Example of a parking pay out program 

 Option to use after/before peak period  
o Interest in Amazon model of TDM – 50% covered by company, 50% by employee 
o Idea of limited parking spaces 

 4 offices Downtown Austin, 1 in Westlake  
 Interested in how managed parking can be used as an incentive  
 Information technology of red light/green light in flagship store parking lot  
 An effective policy decision 

• Current movement of Austin City Council  

What resources can your agency provide in solving the TDM puzzle? 

o 2019 priorities 
o Offer half price Capital Metro transit passes 
o Coordinate events/ programs for Capital Metro to help with commute planning 
o Continue designating prime carpool spots in parking garage 
o Implementing Waze Carpool promotion 

 Not a subsidy 
o Discount programs with car to go, Zip Car, Guaranteed Ride Home 
o Bike Locker and construction of additional showers 

 Majority of Whole Foods team members live within 1-5 miles  
o Continue with help of Movability through survey analysis to develop cohesive TDM strategy 
o Offered shuttle services through Chariot  

o Free for team members with guaranteed spot  
 Lamar Bullet – the most utilized corridor  
 Market District Corridor was flagship route  

o No longer available  
o Looking into another shuttle service option 

What other stakeholders does your agency most closely work with?  Have you ever collaborated on a 

project together? 

• Capital Metro 
• Movability 

o Participated in Mobility Challenge 
o Looking forward to consulting from Movability  

• Hired private TDM consultant to administer survey  

What are your agency’s top priorities in supporting or leading TDM projects or strategies? 

• Marking/communication of TDM strategies 
• Centralized hub of transportation information  

o Help influence behavior and change  
o Identified as a need through survey administered 

115



Appendix 

Project Delivery Supervisor at TxDOT Austin District 

February 19, 2019 – 3:00 p.m. 

What mobility area (transportation mode, safety, corridor planning, etc.) does your agency most impact? 

• Mobility35 
• Infrastructure – increasing capacity and operational improvements  

Were you able to attend the August 2018 workshop on TDM? 

• No, but member from Mobility35 team was present  
• Team to share summary materials  

What TDM programs does your agency currently support? 

• Teleworking, carpooling, flex scheduling 
o Varies across district 

• Advanced notifications for road closures, detours, etc.  
• Real time traffic alerts  

o Changeable message boards and social media  

DP: Are you familiar with the RM 620 projects? 

• Brandon not familiar with details, will gather additional details  
• Ongoing discussion about start of schematic and environmental process 
• Policy board member interest in RM 620 projects  

From 1 to ten (where ten is the best/ most important) rank the importance to your agency of the below 

TDM functions: 

o Taking approach of mobility35 team 
• Improving mobility and accessibility: 10 
• Reducing congestion/improving travel reliability: 10 
• Improving air quality: 7 

o Part of ongoing NEPA process 
• Impacting economic development: 7 
• Integrating land use with transportation: 5 
• Freight and goods movement: 9 
• Improving quality of life/ livability: 10 

o A key goal of the department  

What TDM approaches do you believe would be most impactful in the region? 

• For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-tolled managed lanes, transit 
enhancements, and active demand management? 

o Additional capacity when possible and applicable 
o Non-tolled managed lanes, HOV lanes 

 Priority of reliable route for transit and emergency vehicles 
• For shared mobility programs? 

o Working with transit partners on park and ride facilities 
o Working with local partners on public involvement push – messaging a switch from single 

occupancy to multiple occupancy vehicles  
• For operational strategies to be applied? 

o Structural operation improvements implemented across corridors – ramp reversals, etc.  

What regions or corridors do you believe will most benefit from TDM approaches? 

116



Appendix 

• For roadway projects including elements such as diamond or non-tolled managed lanes, transit 
enhancements, and active demand management? 

o I-35, US 183, US 290, US 281, SH 71, MoPac, Loop 360  
 All priority corridors on the district  

o Looking where to provide operational improvements along these corridors  
o I-35 as a major priority in urban core, US 281 and SH 71 a suburban/rural priority 

• For shared mobility programs? 
o Downtown Austin  

• For operational strategies to be applied? 
o Highly constrained corridors where expansion is not an option because of development, 

etc.  

What resources can your agency provide in solving the TDM puzzle? 

• Continue efforts in planning and implementing TDM in new projects 
• Continue and improve upon TDM strategies like teleworking and flex scheduling  

What resources does your agency need to practice TDM strategies? 

• Funding 
• Assistance, coordination, and support of local planning partners 

What other stakeholders does your agency most closely work with?  Have you ever collaborated on a  

project together? 

• CAMPO, RMA, CapCOG, 11 counties in the region, Capital Metro, COA 

Based on your understanding of TDM and flexible work schedules, what are the top 5 employers that 

would benefit from TDM programs? 

• State of Texas and University of Texas 
• Seton and St. David’s, major hospitals 
• Dell and major tech companies 
• Federal Government  

What are your agency’s top priorities in supporting or leading TDM projects or strategies? 

• Projects 
o Mobility35 (Travis, Williamson, Hays County) 
o Other priority corridors 

• Implementation on the road 
o Reducing construction delay  
o Improving safety, in particular during construction  
o TDM critical to long-term goal given the protracted and prolonged goal of the region  

• TxDOT Staff 
o Teleworking, flex scheduling, carpooling  
o Looking to expand district level  

  

117



Appendix 

FHWA TDM Workshop – August 2018 
Executive Summary 
Participants discussed existing TDM efforts and future considerations for the region. Some existing efforts 

including parking mitigation strategies, TDM strategies for special events, shared mobility programs and 

incentives, information and data sharing, and various planning initiatives related to transit and on-call 

mobility services, active transportation facilities, air quality assurance, and incident management. Future 

considerations include planning for autonomous vehicles, improving multimodal connectivity and arterial 

network (to reduce freeway trips for short distances), and setting goals for funding and promoting shared 

mobility options throughout the entire region. 

Overall, participants noted a lack of consistency across the region in TDM planning and implementation 

capabilities in several categories. Shared mobility planning in the region was described as generally 

reactive rather than proactive and focused within the downtown core. Data availability and privacy 

concerns related to commute tracking, as well as varying transportation needs, levels of community 

interest in shared mobility, and access to technology, are some challenges for implementing unified TDM 

strategies across the region.  

Collaborative TDM efforts in the CAMPO region include developing a TSMO plan, the Highway 

Emergency Response Operator (HERO) program, City of Austin’s bond program, and CAPCOG’s region-

wide Guaranteed Ride Program. 

Self-Assessment Findings 

Participants were placed in three evenly sized groups based on planning area (City, County 1, County 2). 

Each group included representatives from each regional agency (CAMPO, Movability, CAPCOG). Groups 

were asked to provide a self-assessment of demand management capabilities and rate various aspects of 

their TDM strategies as Ad-Hoc (Level 1), Defined (Level 2), or Optimized (Level 3), on a + / - system 

with unique described criteria for each category. The most common rating for all categories was Defined 

(Level 2), and none of the agencies rated TDM strategies as Optimized (Level 3).  

Regional Vision and Goals 

A lack of consistency was noted between TDM vision and goals as defined by different entities throughout 

the region. Groups rated their Vision and Goals as Defined (2 or 2-), meaning that TDM is acknowledged as 

part of the regional vision and treated as a substantial goal, with growing political support and potential for 

policy implementation by CAMPO. One group rated themselves as Ad-Hoc (1+), meaning TDM is 

acknowledged as part of the vision, but with limited understanding, political support, and funding for 

implementation of TDM strategies and steps.  

118



Appendix 

Setting Objectives for TDM 

Ratings ranged from Ad-Hoc (1+) to Defined (2- and 2). Objectives were generally not developed with a 

“SMART” approach, and a disconnect between objectives and strategy identification exists. Participants 

noted a dichotomy in TDM objectives at the regional level, with significant variances in TDM objectives 

between rural and more urbanized counties.  

Definition of Performance Measures 

Participants rated their capabilities as Ad-Hoc (1+) and Defined (2- and 2). Participants noted that 

performance measures are more developed in some parts of the region than others, and potential 

performance measures are just becoming a topic of discussion in the region.  

Assessment and Selection of Strategies and Programs to Support Objectives 

County groups gave a rating of Ad-Hoc (1+). Compared to other alternatives, TDM assessment is not 

based on rigorous modeling, does not drive alternatives analysis, and is inhibited by lack of data. Strategies 

do not address all broader objectives and are limited to existing approaches. City rated this category as 

Defined (2-), indicating that TDM strategies are integral to many alternatives but are not fully integrated 

with other projects.  

Integration of Strategies into Plans and Funding Programs 

Participants rated their capabilities as Defined (2- or 2+), meaning TDM is integrated into larger and capital 

projects, with detailed TDM projects, pilot programs, and dedicated funding identified. In terms of transit 

priorities, it was noted that TDM capabilities in this area could be considered Optimized (3). 

Monitoring Evaluation of Progress toward objectives 

County groups rated their evaluation methods as Ad-Hoc (1), having minimal TDM evaluation methods 

that do not follow other operational standards, and planners are monitoring awareness. City rated as 

Defined (2), having formal methodology to evaluate and TDM performance at regional, city, and local 

levels.  

 

 

119



Planning for Transportation Demand Management: A Contemporary Approach – MPO Workshop 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization   

Prepared by Haley Partin for ICF 
Under contract to Leidos for FHWA Office of Operations 

Planning for Transportation Demand 
Management: A Contemporary Approach 
–Capital Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization  
WORKSHOP SUMMARY AND LIST OF ACTIONS 

AUGUST 16, 2018 

 

 

Full Workshop Report – Published by FHWA 

120



Planning for Transportation Demand Management: A Contemporary Approach – MPO Workshop 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

In 2013, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Office of Operations and the FHWA Office of 
Planning produced a document titled “Integrating Demand Management into the Transportation Planning 
Process: A Desk Reference.” The purpose of the desk reference is to provide a better understanding of 
where, how and when to integrate Travel Demand Management (TDM) into transportation planning. 
The desk reference complements and supports other FHWA guidance documents on the transportation 
planning process, including guidance that includes discussion on the role of TDM in: 

• Objectives-Driven, Performance-Based Approach to Integrating Operations into Transportation
Planning,

• Congestion Management Process (CMP), and
• Opportunities for including operations in Statewide and Nonmetropolitan Transportation Planning.

The document includes resources for evaluating TDM measures and information on known effectiveness 
of implemented strategies. The reference can help users better define the role of TDM in meeting specific 
needs they face in their planning efforts. 
As a follow-up to this document, FHWA is conducting a series of workshops, aimed at bringing together 
transportation planners, traffic management professionals, transit operations staff, and TDM professionals 
and helping them gain an understanding of contemporary approaches for influencing travel behavior and 
planning for demand management. Today, transportation agencies are faced with a rapidly evolving 
landscape of technological innovation, public-private partnerships, and new business models for providing 
mobility choices to transportation system users. In these workshops, participants will discuss: 

• The role of demand management in this rapidly changing urban transportation landscape,
including ways to support a full array of choices – location, time of travel, mode, and route – and
new shared mobility options.

• The relationship of demand management to traffic management – including concepts such as
integrated corridor management (ICM) and active transportation and demand management
(ATDM).

• The role of TDM in supporting regional goals for mobility, reliability, and enhanced transportation
system performance.

• Actions and institutional structures for integrating demand management into regional planning.

As the workshop host representative, Ashby Johnson (Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(CAMPO)) welcomed the group. He said this workshop is important because the Austin region needs to 
get people out of their cars, not just from a mobility standpoint, but from an equity and accessibility 
standpoint. Austin is growing by leaps and bounds, so now is the time to figure out how to handle the 
transportation impacts, alongside the housing and economic impacts from the growth.

121



Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Workshop Overview 
The purpose of the workshop was to: 

• Identify opportunities to broaden the scope of demand management beyond traditional alternative
commute mode programs and to address emerging issues such as shared mobility.

• Identify how to build institutional capability to support effective demand management.
• Develop an action plan for improving integration of demand management into existing and future

planning activities.

The workshop agenda was as follows: 
Time Session 
8:30 AM Introduction 
9:00 AM Demand Management Overview 
9:40 AM A Contemporary Approach for TDM in the Region: Strengths, Weaknesses, and 

Opportunities 
10:05 AM Break 
10:15 AM Emerging Approaches, Strategies and New Directions for Demand Management: 

Integrating Shared Mobility into Planning, Integrating TDM and Traffic Operations 
11:40 AM Presentation from DRCOG on their TDM efforts 
12:00 PM Lunch (on your own) 
1:00 PM TDM and Planning Integration – Self Assessment Exercise 
2:15 PM Break 
2:45 PM Discussion: Opportunities to Integrate Demand Management into Regional Planning 
4:00 PM Moving Towards Integration – Action Plan Development 
4:30 PM Wrap-Up 

1. TSMO AND TDM OVERVIEW
The facilitators provided an overview of Transportation Systems Management and Operations (TSMO) 
and Contemporary TDM. At the end of the discussion, the workshop participants shared TDM efforts 
going on in the region and asked questions they had. 

• City of Austin is trying parking pricing
• How do you deal with connected vehicles and automated vehicles and integrating the

technology?
• Ralph mentioned the Smart Cities grant and Advanced Transportation and Congestion

Management Technologies Deployment Program (ATCMTD) grant as opportunities to pursue
TDM activities. Ralph also mentioned the FHWA Mobility on Demand (MOD) Sandbox program

• Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) has a Connected Freight Project to help shippers
navigate through Austin in anticipation of the construction related to I-35

• Texas has Texas-wide autonomous proving grounds.
• Austin’s Smart City Challenge proposal included 7 projects.

o There is an autonomous demonstration along Riverside.
o High capacity transit along some corridors.
o Focused on Austin Central Texas Corridor project and enhancing multimodal options

along major corridors.

122



Planning for Transportation Demand Management: A Contemporary Approach – MPO Workshop 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

o Some was data rodeo (aka data warehouse) that brought into the project Texas A&M
Transportation Institute (TTI).

o There was an equity piece.
o Maybe 200 people involved in the development.
o Actively working on it with funding through city and state – morphed into Texas

Innovation Alliance.
• Austin Region’s current long-range plan (LRP) addresses bike/pedestrian and TDM, but more in

the traditional sense (e.g., employer outreach, carpooling). Goals of current plan address
reduction of SOV over time. In the process of developing the 2045 LRP. The goal is to have a
draft document ready for technical advisor committee no later than January of 2020, after an
extensive outreach campaign. In preparation, CAMPO has been conducting corridor and sub-
area studies and completed a regional active transportation plan on the 6 counties and with San
Antonio MPO and other MPOs that talks about connecting bike paths between those regions.
Austin has to find the best options to create mobility and accessible throughout the region without
having to go on the freeway – there are a lot of short, local trips that shouldn’t need to go on the
freeway. Strategies they could look into are dedicated guideway for transit, wide sidewalks,
helping local governments of doing development.

• CAMPO is doing a regional transit study and incorporating Capital Metro’s (Capital Metro) study.
• CAMPO is finishing up a regional incident management plan where they are trying to improve

responses to incidents and how to improve reliability and safety with incident management.
• The regional TDM program is also in air quality program. Austin is currently largest metro region

that is in attainment of air quality, but that may change next year. TDM has a benefit of not just
addressing congestion in one point, but for the system overall. The way TDM is situated in the
Austin region’s long-range plan, there are measures associated with expanding capacity (road
building and bike/ped) but transportation management is another category. The challenge is
anything that isn’t about building roads, people think about it differently.

• Travis County and Capital Metro have partnered to develop a transit plan for transit gap areas –
the areas outside of Capital Metro’s regular service area but that do not have coverage from rural
providers. It’s a MOD pilot project where people within a specified zone can use an app or call to
get a ride. The ride can be taken anywhere within the zone and the zones include links to the
transit system. Another program includes partnering faith-based and social service vehicles for
vanpool program. An agreement will allow Capital Metro to run service outside their service area.

• City of Austin’s SmartCommute Rewards program – the group of employers in Austin that have
the highest single occupancy vehicle (SOV) commute is local government. The city got a grant to
run pilot project to purchase a platform that has website and app and asked employees to log
trips to- from work and incentivized non-SOV trips with vacation hours, incentives given of four to
16 vacation hours, depending on number of days carpool. From the implementation of this
program, over 50% of people reduced their drive alone trips from before. Since City of Austin
does not manage their parking, they cannot charge their employees for parking.

• TDM is built into the Connected 2025 bus plan, where there are seven innovation corridors where
there’s not enough transit density to provide full-range services. They will be contracting directing
with a transportation network company (TNC) to provide service.

• Austin City Council passed a TDM ordinance whereby Tier 4 events must implement TDM
strategies, including bike, multimodal access. In order to make sure this is successful, the city
needs to grapple with how to set reasonable goals, getting data, etc.

• During South by Southwest, BCycle (bikeshare) sees the highest daily usage of any bikeshare
program. South by Southwest annual event in March brings in an additional 250 – 400k people
for 10 days

• How do special events affect funding sources (aka, is special funding received to help the transit
agency deal with needs for increased capacity during special events)? Capital Metro does not get

123



Planning for Transportation Demand Management: A Contemporary Approach – MPO Workshop 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

special funding for events, beyond charging extra fares. Ashby suggested maybe looking into 
getting a cut of the revenue from hotels. 

• Movability is looking into parking mitigation for construction workers in downtown.
• City of Austin contracts with Waze where Waze is getting road closure and event information.
• A broad challenge in the region is that there’s an increase in SOV rate. The peak period is

increasing but congestion is not abating at any time.
• Is there guidance on if public agencies can promote private transit services? It would be a benefit

for Bastrop County to be able to promote a private service. In Austin, Waze Carpool made a pitch
and asked Austin to promote them and their $2 campaign. The city’s legal team said it was ok to
promote as long as the city promoted all options.

• There is a perception that it’s only City of Austin and Travis County when it comes to TDM. Need
to make sure that the reality is at a regional scale. The people most constrained by options are
not within the core.

2. WORKSHOP FINDINGS
The facilitators asked the participants if Shared Mobility is something the region plans for. The following 
are responses to the question. 

• It’s not planned for, it’s a reaction
• Mostly a central city phenomenon
• Round Rock is doing a pilot with TNCs
• In Bastrop, there isn’t enough interest to gain momentum
• Being able to have cellular service is a limiting factor
• There are some studies that show that vehicle miles traveled (VMT) for certain demographics

have dropped
• Some demographics want to call in vs using an app
• Capital Metro has a call center and acts sort of like a TNC

A participant asked how the San Francisco example of giving a permit for taxis/vans to pull over into the 
bike lane is beneficial and asked where the revenues went. The contractor will find out. 
The workshop facilitator asked where the region is regarding planning for shared mobility. 

• CommuteSolutions is going through issues of self-reporting data. They are wondering how to get
better data.

o DRCOG said they have connected with Strava
o People can express data privacy and tracking concerns
o Maybe NCHRP can look at how streetlight funding can be utilized

• It is important to consider the downstream effects of TDM strategies
• Some strategies may not work in certain regions

The workshop facilitator asked if the region has combined any efforts. 
• TxDOT Austin is creating a TSMO plan for Austin.
• During the TDM Coordination meeting, they talked about reaching out to employers
• Austin District is gearing up in operations. The Highway Emergency Response Operator (HERO)

program is being ramped up with the MPO’s assistance. In initial stages, most closures are
localized. It’s hard to ramp up for short-term event. But when we get into the heavy-duty
construction, there was a coordinated effort between the public information office (PIO) and local
municipalities.

• City of Austin has a bond program for major arterial roadways
• The Capital Area Council of Governments (CapCOG) is about to launch a region-wide

Guaranteed Ride Program.

124



Planning for Transportation Demand Management: A Contemporary Approach – MPO Workshop 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

DRCOG Presentation 
DRCOG presented an overview of several of their TDM programs. 

2.1 Self-Assessment Findings 
The participants split into three groups. The representatives from each of the regional agencies, CAMPO, 
CapCOG, and Movability split up between the three groups. One group consisted of the cities and the 
other two groups consisted of the counties. The counties were split into two groups so that each group 
would have no more than 6 participants. The participants conducted a self-assessment on the region’s 
overall capability to integrate TDM into planning processes using the Self-Assessment Matrix provided in 
the desk reference (and provided in Appendix B). The following table presents their self-assessment 
results. Self-assessments with a “+” indicate capabilities were assessed at slightly higher than the level, 
but not quite meeting the next level. Self-assessments with a “-“ indicates the assessment found the 
capability mostly met the level. 
Sometimes, a group could not decide on one assessment level, so they provided two assessment levels. 
This happened when members of a group were strongly divided on the assessment because different 
members were at different capabilities and did not want to necessarily downplay their own capability. 

Process Area Ad-Hoc (Level 1) Defined (Level 2) Optimized 
(Level 3) 

Regional Vision and Goals County 2 (1+) County 1 (2) 
City (2-) 
County 2 (2-) 

Setting Objectives for TDM County 1 (1+) 
County 2 (1+) 

City (2) 
County 2 (2-) 

Definition of Performance Measures County 2 (1+) County 1 (2-) 
City (2) 
County 2 (2-) 

Assessment and Selection of Programs 
to Support Objectives 

County 1 (1+) 
County 2 (1+) 

City (2-) 

Integration of Strategies into Plans and 
Funding Programs 

County 1 (2-) 
City (2+) 
County 2 (2-) 

Monitoring and Evaluation of Progress 
toward Objectives 

County 1 (1) 
County 2 (1) 

City (2) 

Regional Vision and Goals 
The groups rated themselves Level 1+, Level 2-, and Level 2, so the capability varied at the different 
levels. The following are general characteristics of regions at Level 1 and Level 2. 

Level 1 
Ad-Hoc 

Level 2 
Defined 

TDM is acknowledged as part of the vision in the 
state but no true commitment in terms of remaining 
steps 

TDM is a part of the vision statement for the 
metropolitan region 

Enhanced understanding of TDM concepts and 
strategies at staff levels 

125



Planning for Transportation Demand Management: A Contemporary Approach – MPO Workshop 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Level 1 
Ad-Hoc 

Level 2 
Defined 

Varied understanding of the concept of demand 
management as a policy option 

Limited high-level political or decision-maker 
support for the idea 

Primary role of MPOs is to fund limited TDM 
activities 

Treated as a substantial goal of the planning 
efforts 

Political support emerging on this topic 

Many roles (funding, coalition building, 
operations) becoming realistic for MPOs in the 
area of demand management 

The following comment was identified during the discussion: 
• Participants noted that, the vision and goals currently seem to range depending on the agency or

municipality, so there is no consistent regional vision or goals.

Setting Objectives for TDM 
The groups rated themselves Level 1+, Level 2-, and Level 2, so the capability varied at the different 
levels. The following are the general characteristics of regions at Level 1 and Level 2. 

Level 1 
Ad-Hoc 

Level 2 
Defined 

Minimal role for TDM in planning objectives or in 
the CMP  

Primarily linked to one or two objectives such as 
conformity 

Not developed using a "SMART" approach 

No linkage to strategies identification and 
selection 

Multiple objectives for TDM identified for a 
diverse set of needs including congestion, air 
quality, and land-use strategy 

Some objectives are "SMART" 

Still a strong disconnect between objectives and 
strategies identification 

CMP includes specific TDM objectives 

The following comments were identified during the discussion: 
• In rural counties, there are no TDM objectives. Some counties may have TDM efforts in place but

may not label them TDM.
• The objectives are fairly well set at the county level, but there is dichotomy set at the region level.
• Capital Metro internally highly supports TDM but does not necessarily outwardly communicate

these objectives extensively.

Definition of Performance Measures 
The groups rated themselves Level 1+, Level 2-, and Level 2, so the capability assessments varied at 
the different levels.  The following are the general characteristics of regions at Level 1 and Level 2. 

Level 1 
Ad-Hoc 

Level 2 
Defined 

TDM not linked to MPO efforts at performance-
based planning and management 

Outcome measures for TDM limited to Trip and 
VMT reductions 

TDM is linked to performance-based planning 
and management 

Performance measures begin to define TDM 
"outcomes," at a metro level including: mode 
splits, vehicle throughput, rideshare rates 

126



Planning for Transportation Demand Management: A Contemporary Approach – MPO Workshop 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

The following comments were identified during the discussion: 
• Capital Metro is working on TDM as a concept but does not know how to measure a concept.
• Places that are up to speed on TDM have the full gamut of measures, but other parts of the

region are not doing anything.
• Defining potential performance measures to use are starting to become part of the discussion.

Assessment and Selection of Programs to Support 
Objectives 
The groups rated themselves Level 1+ and Level 2-. The following are the general characteristics of 
regions at Level 1 and Level 2. 

Level 1 
Ad-Hoc 

Level 2 
Defined 

TDM Assessment not based on rigorous 
modeling/evaluation especially when compared to 
other alternatives 

TDM does not drive any of the alternative analysis 
scenarios 

Specific strategies for TDM do not completely 
address broader TDM objectives and goals 

Selection of any TDM strategy is ad-hoc and 
limited to existing approaches or constituencies. 
Public transit or traditional ridesharing is seen as 
the primary alternative 

TDM is an integral part of many alternatives 

Assess some TDM strategies by incorporating 
cost and time impacts into traditional travel 
demand models 

Also perform off-model analysis/modeling of 
TDM strategies as necessary 

All travel choices are assessed including active 
transportation, ridesharing etc. 

TDM strategies typically still are stand-alone and 
not fully integrated with other 
programs/projects/strategies 

The following comments were identified during the discussion: 
• It is hard to assess TDM if the data for it is not collected.
• The HERO program has extensive data, but other programs are hard to assess from a TDM

standpoint.
• Some TDM projects did just get selected for funding in the upcoming TIP; at the beginning of the

selection process, TDM was not even a category to guide the selection process, so that is
progress.

Integration of Strategies into Plans and Funding 
Programs 
The three groups assessed their capability at Level 2- or Level 2+. The following are the general 
characteristics of regions at Level 2. 

Level 2 
Defined 

TDM is better integrated into larger and capital 
projects 

Greater level of detail for TDM projects 

Pilot programs or experimental approaches 
included for TDM 

127



Planning for Transportation Demand Management: A Contemporary Approach – MPO Workshop 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Level 2 
Defined 

Dedicated program/funding identified 

The following comments were identified during the discussion: 
• If the discussion was only about transit priorities, the region would be a 3, but if it’s everything

else, it’s not a 3.

Monitoring and Evaluation of Progress toward 
Objectives 
The three groups assessed their capability at Level 1 or Level 2. The following are the general 
characteristics of regions at Level 1 and Level 2. 

Level 1 
Ad-Hoc 

Level 2 
Defined 

Evaluation methods for TDM are minimal and 
significantly different from other operational 
strategies 

Planners are monitoring awareness levels through 
surveys, focus groups, and workshops, among 
relevant stakeholders and the public 

Formal methodology is in place to evaluate 
performance metrics 

TDM and system performance are reported in a 
similar way (e.g., delay) 

MPOs start to perform evaluation of TDM 
effectiveness at regional, city and local levels. 

The following comment was identified during the discussion: 
• Participants are trying to define how other TDM methods can be incorporated into what they are

doing.

3. IDENTIFIED ACTIONS
Based on the results of the capability self-assessment, the workshop participants identified actions that 
the region could undertake at one of the three lowest-scored process area to move the planning process 
from the current level to the next level. The participants used the actions listed in the desk reference (and 
provided in Appendix C) as a resource but largely identified their own specific actions. The three areas 
that were assessed at the lowest level (on average) were: 1) Objectives for TDM, 2) Assessment and 
Selection of Programs, and 3) Monitoring and Evaluation. The groups were asked to develop some 
actions for their category. 

Action Steps – Setting Objectives for TDM 
When funding projects, commit some kind of TDM strategy to the process. Understand how TDM can 
mitigate impacts 
Ask localities to commit to a menu of TDM strategies to set their own objectives 

• The workshop participants discussed that it would be important to identify consistent vision and
goals. It was unclear if it would be a tough process to get everyone on the same page and get
political leadership to understand what TDM means, much less getting buy-in to implement TDM
strategies.

128



Planning for Transportation Demand Management: A Contemporary Approach – MPO Workshop 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Action Steps – Assessment and Selection of Strategies and Programs to Support Objectives 
Based on established vision, goals, objectives, and PMs, build a clear and standard evaluation method 
to assess TDM strategies and programs using best practices. Consider, if CAMPO did the Surface 
Transportation Block Grant (STBG) process again, how would it incorporate TDM? 

• The participants discussed the recent CAMPO STBG process, which was a pretty ad-hoc process
where the assessment methodology asked more generic questions related to TDM. When
CAMPO is developing the next STBG process, there should be discussion about integrating more
specific TDM questions.

• The Regional TDM Coordinating Committee may be leading the development of a regional TDM
plan. At the policy board meeting, the outcome could be a fleshed out TDM policy.

• If the TDM plan is not already in the Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP), perhaps the TDM
plan could come first.

Action Steps – Monitoring and Evaluation of Progress toward Objectives 
Conduct regional surveys 
Conduct modeling scenarios 
Create universal reporting tools 
Collect stories and case studies (qualitative information) 
Resiliency modeling 
Ensure self-reporting that is existing is consistent across programs 
Ensure there is a consistent definition of what’s in and what’s out of TDM and be able to define what 
actions are considered TDM (e.g. is the marketing budget for Capital Metro considered a TDM 
strategy? Is building a recreation trail considered a TDM strategy?) 

4. NEXT STEPS
The participants identified that immediate next step would be to make a concerted effort to focus on 
developing a TDM policy or vision and goals at the upcoming TDM Coordinating Committee meeting. It 
would also be important to identify additional stakeholders to the next meeting who had not been invited 
or present at the first meeting. The Coordinating Committee was seen as an important element in moving 
TDM policy forward in the Austin region, as it could and should bring together all the stakeholders.  
Some other next steps identified in the workshop evaluation feedback included the following: 

• requirements of all future construction projects to incorporate TDM,
• Mobility35 as a key project to include TDM,
• the need for CAMPO to hire a staff member fully or partially dedicated to TDM,
• require all STPMM/STBG project applications to include TDM if applicable,
• the need for the region to better identify vision/goals/objectives/performance measures, and
• the need to create a TDM evaluation framework for CAMPO’s next STBG call for projects.

129



Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization  

List of Attendees 
Name Organization Email 
Julia Cleary Bastrop County Julia.cleary@co.bastrop.tx.us 
Dan Hennessey Big Red Dog & University 

Leadership Initiative Transportation 
Council 

Dan.hennessey@bigreddog.com 

Andrés Junca Capital Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (CAMPO) 

Andres.junca@campotexas.org 

Ashby Johnson CAMPO ashby.johnson@wilco.org 
Joyce Myers CAMPO 
Kelly Porter CAMPO kelly.porter@wilco.org 
Nick Samuel CAMPO Nicholas.samuel@campotexas.org 
Nirav Ved CAMPO Nirav.ved@campotexas.org 
Andrew Hoekzema Capital Area COG (CAPCOG) and 

CommuteSolutions 
ahoekzema@capcog.org 

Julie Mazur Capital Metro (Capital Metro) Julie.mazur@Capital Metro.org 
Michelle Meaux Capital Metro Michelle.meaux@Capital Metro.org 
Rob Borowski Capital Metro Robert.borowski@Capital 

Metro.org 
Tien-Tien Chan City of Austin Tien-tien.chan@austintexas.gov 
Ed Polasek City of Georgetown Ed.polasek@georgetown.org 
Tom Bolt City of Manor tbolt@cityofmanor.org 
Brian Kuhn City of Round Rock bkuhn@roundrocktexas.gov 
David Walther City of Round Rock davidw@roundrocktexas.gov 
Rohit Vij City of San Marcos rvig@sanmarcostx.gov 
Emily Lindsay Denver Regional Council of 

Governments (DRCOG) 
elindsey@drcog.org 

Alex Flores Hays County Alex.fores@co.hays.tx.org 
Christen Eschberger HNTB, Williamson County ceschberger@hntb.com 
Tom Fowler Kimley-Horn Thomas.fowler@kimley-horn.com 
Alix Scarborough Movability alix@movabilityaustin.org 
Lisa Kay Pfannenstiel Movability lisakay@movabilityaustin.org 
Cathy Stevens Travis County Cathy.stephens@traviscountytx.gov 
Bruce Byron Texas Department of 

Transportation (TxDOT), Austin 
District 

Bruce.byron@txdot.gov 

Stephen Ratke Federal Highway Administration, 
Texas Division 

stephen.ratke@dot.gov 

Workshop Facilitators 
Ralph Volpe Federal Highway Administration Ralph.volpe@dot.gov 
Eva Hsu ICF Eva.hsu@icf.com 
Frank Mongioi ICF Frank.mongoi@icf.com 

130

mailto:Julia.cleary@co.bastrop.tx.us
mailto:Dan.hennessey@bigreddog.com
mailto:Andres.junca@campotexas.org
mailto:ashby.johnson@wilco.org
mailto:kelly.porter@wilco.org
mailto:Nicholas.samuel@campotexas.org
mailto:Nirav.ved@campotexas.org
mailto:ahoekzema@capcog.org
mailto:Julie.mazur@capmetro.org
mailto:Michelle.meaux@capmetro.org
mailto:Robert.borowski@capmetro.org
mailto:Robert.borowski@capmetro.org
mailto:Tien-tien.chan@austintexas.gov
mailto:Ed.polasek@georgetown.org
mailto:tbolt@cityofmanor.org
mailto:bkuhn@roundrocktexas.gov
mailto:davidw@roundrocktexas.gov
mailto:rvig@sanmarcostx.gov
mailto:elindsey@drcog.org
mailto:Alex.fores@co.hays.tx.org
mailto:ceschberger@hntb.com
mailto:Thomas.fowler@kimley-horn.com
mailto:alix@movabilityaustin.org
mailto:lisakay@movabilityaustin.org
mailto:Cathy.stephens@traviscountytx.gov
mailto:Bruce.byron@txdot.gov
mailto:stephen.ratke@dot.gov
mailto:Eva.hsu@icf.com
mailto:Frank.mongoi@icf.com


 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 Handout #1 – (Regional) Self-Assessment Exercise 
Directions: Rate where you think the region is with respect to the process activities by checking the appropriate box. 

Planning Process 
Activities 

Level 1 
Ad-Hoc 

Level 2 
Defined 

Level 3 
Optimized 

Establishing Vision 
and Goals 

TDM is acknowledged as part of the 
vision in the state but no true 
commitment in terms of remaining 
steps 

Varied understanding of the concept 
of demand management as a policy 
option 

Limited high-level political or 
decision-maker support for the idea 

Primary role of MPOs is to fund 
limited TDM activities 

TDM is a part of the vision statement 
for the metropolitan region 

Enhanced understanding of TDM 
concepts and strategies at staff levels 

Treated as a substantial goal of the 
planning efforts 

Political support emerging on this topic 

Many roles (funding, coalition building, 
operations) becoming realistic for 
MPOs in the area of demand 
management 

TDM is an equal and long-term 
strategy in the metropolitan vision with 
capacity expansion and operations 

TDM permeates through the entire 
strategic planning and decision-making 
process 

Existence of strong political champions 
and decision-makers for TDM 

MPO becomes a hub for various TDM 
roles (funding, operations, coalitions) 

 Region Level: Ad-Hoc  Region Level: Defined  Region Level: Optimized 
Setting Objectives 
for TDM 

Minimal role for TDM in planning 
objectives or in the CMP 

Primarily linked to one or two 
objectives such as conformity 

Not developed using a "SMART" 
approach 

No linkage to strategies 
identification and selection 

Multiple objectives for TDM identified 
for a diverse set of needs including 
congestion, air quality, and land-use 
strategy 

Some objectives are "SMART" 

Still a strong disconnect between 
objectives and strategies identification 

CMP includes specific TDM objectives 

TDM objectives additionally include 
broader considerations of regional 
mobility, accessibility, economic 
development 

All objectives are SMART and drive 
strategy identification and selection 
Specific long-term objectives set for 
TDM 

131



Planning for Transportation Demand Management: A Contemporary Approach – MPO Workshop 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 Region Level: Ad-Hoc  Region Level: Defined  Region Level: Optimized 
Planning Process 
Activities 

Level 1 
Ad-Hoc 

Level 2 
Defined 

Level 3 
Optimized 

Definition of 
Performance 
Measures 

TDM not linked to MPO efforts at 
performance-based planning and 
management 

Outcome measures for TDM limited 
to Trip and VMT reductions 

TMD is linked to performance-based 
planning and management 

Performance measures begin to define 
TDM "outcomes," at a metro level 
including: mode splits, vehicle 
throughput, rideshare rates 

Performance measures developed for 
most objectives 

Performance measures include fully 
developed TDM "outcomes" including 
linkages to congestion, person 
throughput 

 Region Level: Ad-Hoc  Region Level: Defined  Region Level: Optimized 
Assessment and 
Selection of 
Strategies and 
Programs to 
Support Objectives 

TDM Assessment not based on 
rigorous modeling/evaluation 
especially when compared to other 
alternatives 

TDM does not drive any of the 
alternative analysis scenarios 

Specific strategies for TDM do not 
completely address broader TDM 
objectives and goals 

Selection of any TDM strategy is ad-
hoc and limited to existing 
approaches or constituencies. 
Public transit or traditional 
ridesharing is seen as the primary 
alternative 

TDM is an integral part of many 
alternatives 

Assess some TDM strategies by 
incorporating cost and time impacts 
into traditional travel demand models 

Also perform off-model 
analysis/modeling of TDM strategies as 
necessary 

All travel choices are assessed 
including active transportation, 
ridesharing etc. 

TDM strategies typically still are stand-
alone and not fully integrated with other 
programs/projects/strategies 

Demand management considered 
before supply side alternatives. A 
demand-management scenario 
identified 

Developed a rationalized means of 
assessing TDM strategies 

TDM strategy decisions are based on 
benefit-cost analysis 

Strategies and programs reflect the 
broad vision for TDM 

TDM is not only a separate 
project/program but also is integral to 
most of the projects developed by the 
MPOs 

 Region Level: Ad-Hoc  Region Level: Defined  Region Level: Optimized 

132



Planning for Transportation Demand Management: A Contemporary Approach – MPO Workshop 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Planning Process 
Activities 

Level 1 
Ad-Hoc 

Level 2 
Defined 

Level 3 
Optimized 

Integration of 
Strategies into 
Plans and Funding 
Programs 

Resulting projects/programs do not 
link back to objectives 

Level of detail for TDM projects is 
significantly lesser than that for 
other projects 

Tend to support traditional TDM 
efforts such as ridesharing etc. 

TDM is better integrated into larger and 
capital projects 

Greater level of detail for TDM projects 

Pilot programs or experimental 
approaches included for TDM 

Dedicated program/funding identified 

TDM projects as fleshed out as other 
projects in the plan 

Dedicated and sustained program and 
funding 

Fewer pilots and more mainstreaming 
of TDM 

 Region Level: Ad-Hoc  Region Level: Defined  Region Level: Optimized 
Monitoring and 
Evaluation of 
Progress Toward 
Objectives 

Evaluation methods for TDM are 
minimal and significantly different 
from other operational strategies 

Planners are monitoring awareness 
levels through surveys, focus 
groups, and workshops, among 
relevant stakeholders and the public 

Formal methodology is in place to 
evaluate performance metrics 

TDM and system performance are 
reported in a similar way (e.g., delay) 

MPOs start to perform evaluation of 
TDM effectiveness at regional, city and 
local levels. 

Performance measurement includes 
quantitative and qualitative methods 

Conduct evaluation of comparative cost 
effectiveness of TDM to other capital 
and operating strategies 

 Region Level: Ad-Hoc  Region Level: Defined  Region Level: Optimized 

133



Planning for Transportation Demand Management: A Contemporary Approach – MPO Workshop 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Handout #2 – List of Potential Actions 
Level 1  Level 2 Actions 

No. Integration Actions (Level 1 to Level 2) Policy 
Support 

Ease of 
Implementation Cost Time 

Requirement Overall 

Establishing Vision and Goals 
1 Develop TDM long-range strategic plan Low Moderate Low Moderate Low 
2 Establish a regional TDM Committee Moderate Moderate Low Low Low 

3 Create/support local ordinances & policy 
development for TDM Moderate Difficult Moderate Moderate Moderate 

Setting Objectives for TDM 

4 Adopt an objectives-driven, performance-based 
planning process to include TDM Moderate Moderate Low Low Moderate 

5 Review the role of TDM in the CMP process Low Moderate Moderate Moderate Moderate 
Definition of Performance Measures 

6 Identify concrete performance measures for 
TDM beyond air quality and conformity Moderate Moderate Low Moderate Moderate 

7 Establish the link between TDM and quality of 
life Moderate Moderate Low Moderate Moderate 

8 Create a report card or dashboard for TDM 
performance Low Low Low Low Low 

Assessment and Selection of Strategies and Programs to Support Objectives 

9 Assess the current capabilities of the travel 
demand modeling process to evaluate TDM Low Moderate Moderate Moderate Moderate 

10 Incorporate TDM and travel choices into existing 
visualization tools and processes Low Moderate Moderate Moderate Moderate 

Integration of Strategies into Plans and Funding Programs 

11 Broaden the availability of eligible funding 
beyond CMAQ Moderate Moderate Low Low Moderate 

Monitoring and Evaluation of Progress Toward Objectives 

134



Planning for Transportation Demand Management: A Contemporary Approach – MPO Workshop 

Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

12 Strengthen TDM performance evaluation and 
monitoring methods and tools Low Moderate Moderate Moderate Moderate 

Level 2  Level 3 Actions 
No. Integration Actions (Level 2 to Level 3) Policy 

Support 
Ease of 

Implementation Cost Time 
Requirement Overall 

Establishing Vision and Goals 

1 Perform a TDM visioning exercise with a broad 
set of travel choices Moderate Moderate Moderate Moderate Moderate 

2 Create incentive-based approaches for TDM 
and obtain buy-in for funding Difficult Moderate Moderate Moderate Moderate 

Definition of Performance Measures 

3 Develop performance measures that express 
TDM effectiveness in operational terms Low Moderate Low Moderate Moderate 

4 Explore role of TDM in improving health and 
safety and develop objectives accordingly Moderate Moderate Low Moderate Moderate 

Assessment and Selection of Strategies and Programs to Support Objectives 

5 
Develop procedures for considering demand 
management strategies prior to other, more 
capital-intensive alternatives 

Difficult Moderate Low Moderate Moderate 

6 Develop new tools/approaches to incorporate all 
travel choices into the analysis process Low Low Moderate Moderate Low 

Integration of Strategies into Plans and Funding Programs 

7 Develop capability to include TDM in all projects 
in an appropriate manner Moderate Moderate Low Moderate Moderate 

Monitoring and Evaluation of Progress Toward Objectives 

8 Adopt or develop a standardized approach to 
reporting TDM performance Low Low Moderate Moderate Low 

135



 

Appendix 

National Best Practices 
Atlanta Regional Commission 2013 
The Atlanta Regional TDM Plan addresses problems of existing conditions including a lack of 

infrastructure and connectivity for alternatives to single occupancy vehicle travel, unreliable long-term 

funding, fragmented program management that is not adequately linked to the Regional Planning 

Process, and a lack of cohesive branding and messaging within Georgia Commute Options (the statewide 

TDM brand) which lead to traveler confusion. Based on this analysis, a series of TDM goals were identified. 

Goals included improving customer convenience and user experience; increasing transportation 

connectivity, mode choice, and access; streamlining regional coordination of policies, programs, services, 

and investments; leveraging and diversifying funding sources for program sustainability; and pursuing 

continuous performance and operations improvements. Stemming from these goals, comprehensive 

strategies were developed and seven of core strategies were prioritized:  

 

1. Build on Georgia Commute Options rebranding to promote 

seamless customer experience. This includes plans to develop and 

implement standard operating procedures (SOPs) for core marketing 

and outreach, coordinate Georgia Commute Options brand marketing 

with individual TMA brands, and link regional travel options messaging 

with TDM brands and integrated traveler information resources.  

 

2. Improve connection of TDM to regional information systems. Expedite adoption of an 

integrated ride matching and incentives database, provide open data to partners to encourage 

development of mobile applications for traveler information, leverage available information to 

promote TDM options, and link Georgia Commute Options and the 511 system.  

3. Improve regional coordination of transportation planning, land use, and travel choice. Identify 

connectivity improvements though a region-wide land use evaluation, incorporate TDM+ 

strategies into station-area planning, integrate TDM strategies into local zoning and policies 

through region-wide coordination, and promote TDM programs and services as part of a broader 

Active Transportation and Demand Management (ATDM) approach. 

136



 

Appendix 

4. Strategically link express bus service, local transit, 

vanpools, managed lanes and park and ride lots. Ensure 

that managed lane systems continue to benefit high-

occupancy modes in order to give carpoolers, vanpoolers, 

and express bus riders both time and monetary incentives; 

coordinate TDM messaging between SRTA and GDOT to 

promote managed lanes for non-SOV travel modes; 

coordinate TDM programs and transit system operations 

in order to maximize mutual benefits.  

5. Enhance integrated operations, branding and marketing of the regional van pool program. 

Continue the regional vanpool, operations, management, and vendor oversight role within GRTA, 

update vanpool contracts to include requirements that align with regional goals and integrate 

vanpool marketing with other regional marketing.  

6. Leverage and diversify existing and potential funding sources to support creative, long-term 

and innovative strategies. Explore partnerships to advance transportation choice and 

accessibility, allocate a portion of construction project budgets to TDM marketing and messaging, 

consider various tax and fee-for-service options, increase funding flexibility and equity for 

programs and services.  

7. Develop metrics for all programs and services and use the data to make strategic 

improvements. Incorporate and track goals and performance measures for the region and for 

specific programs, develop a regional dashboard to share information with stakeholders and 

partners, review data to inform program decisions and investments. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

137



 

Appendix 

DRCOG/ Colorado DOT 
The Denver TDM Plan based best practices on 

cost-effectiveness estimates on comparisons 

with other literature, such as the Federal 

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 

Improvement Program (CMAQ) and the Metro 

Washington Council of Governments 

(MWCOG) Commuter Connections Program. 

Although certain factors prevented a direct 

comparison of costs – programs consisted of 

different elements and methods of evaluation, 

for example – it was found that the Denver 

region fell within the range found in other 

studies and tended toward the more cost-

effective side of estimates.  

Projects were evaluated by their target population and primary elements, including marketing (direct 

contact promotion with the target population), financial incentives, services (transit and vanpool, for 

example), and infrastructure, which includes pedestrian and bicycle improvements. Most projects were 

estimated at approximately $0.01-0.03 per VMT (Vehicle Miles Traveled) reduced. The projects estimated 

to be the most cost-effective, falling under $0.01 per VMT, were the most likely to be funded by the 

DRCOG – namely, marketing and incentives, transit services, and vanpool programs. Other programs 

under $0.03 per VMT reduced were land use, nonmotorized, transit infrastructure, and non-English 

marketing.  

It was noted that generally pre-project cost-effectiveness estimates are optimistic, assuming potential 

impacts in favorable conditions and that a particular program will be carried out effectively. However, it 

was found that the actual cost-effectiveness of programs is often much lower than anticipated. The 

characteristics of specific projects tend to greatly impact cost-effectiveness and result in a wide range of 

post-project cost, so it is important to monitor the effectiveness of projects so that future projects can rely 

on more accurate cost-effectiveness estimates.   

In the Denver region CMAQ TDM-Funded post-project evaluation, the projects were on average one-fifth 

as cost effective than predicted. Only employer-focused marketing and incentives met the prediction of 

around $0.01 per reduced VMT. Ridematching was the second most cost-effective program, at roughly 

$0.06 per VMT, and regional telework assistance and vanpool programs were the next most cost-effective 

but were much higher than predicted. The seven projects assessed averaged $0.12 per VMT.   

  

138



 

Appendix 

San Antonio 
This study showed that a one-on-one approach with stakeholders was more effective than a Traditional 

TxDOT public meeting format due to the planning-oriented subject and benefits being hard to document. 

The five goals of this study are:  

1. Increase voluntary TDM participation  

2. Identify employer and employee benefits of TDM strategies  

3. Increase transportation connectivity, mode choice and access  

4. Streamline regional coordination of policies, programs, services and investments  

5. Pursue continuous performance and operations improvements  

Employers were identified by contacting companies with less than 500 employees, between 500-1k and 

more than 1k. Of the 142 employers contacted, 67 showed interest. 

 

SWOT analysis revealed many strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats in the City. Many 

strengths were identified including transit, pedestrian/bicycle, existing programs/policies, potential 

programs for San Antonio, Advanced Transportation District, TIRZ (Tax Increment Reinvestment Zones), 

real-time traffic-based trip routing, and activity center growth strategy. 

Some weaknesses included lack of urgency, multiple campuses, 

perception/commuter preference challenges, and inexpensive and 

abundant parking. Additionally, many opportunities that can positively 

affect the region were reveled such as new campuses, young work forces, 

large retiree population, technology and trends, and alternate work 

schedules. Threats identified included a rising economy, low gas prices, 

limited congestions, and culture.  

 

The purpose of the San Antonio TDM study was to identify policies, programs, and other services that may 

alleviate traffic congestion. The initial study scope was adjusted from the five most congested corridors to 

the entire City (p44). The most common industries involved in the final case study were healthcare, city 

government and school districts, respectively (p47-50). An Employer/Employee Survey was conducted to 

139



 

Appendix 

determine how the workforce travels to work which was based 

on the following factors: travel distances and trip times, types 

of modes used to travel, current use and interest in alternate 

travel methods, and ability to walk or bicycle to work.  

 

The survey was also distributed to the University of Texas 

Health Science Center (UTHSC). Based on the survey results 

several recommendations were made to reduce the use of 

single-occupancy vehicles. These recommendations were to 

consider subsidized transit pass to encourage transit use, 

coordinate with the San Antonio Medical Foundation to 

explore strategies to expedite the implementation of bike lanes 

in the medical center area, review additional positions for 

potential application of alternative work schedules, and 

promote AACOG NuRIDE program for carpool/vanpool 

matching assistance as well as guaranteed ride home program and incentive programs.  

 

San Francisco 
The San Francisco TDM Plan focused on three main areas including: Land-use development program and 

policies, street management programs and policies, and customer-focused campaigns and programs. 

Land-use development policies will shape trips associated with new development and evaluate 

compliance with approved TDM strategies. Street management 

programs and policies will focus on maximizing the use of street 

space and minimize the effects of high occupancy vehicles. 

Customer-focused campaigns provide information and encourage 

visitors, residents, and employees/employers to use other modes of 

transportation such as walking, biking, or shared vehicles. 

 

  

140



 

Appendix 

There are four major organizations that are responsible for different aspects of transportation planning:  

 

1. San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA), 

which is responsible for overall management of San 

Francisco’s transportation systems, such as ensuring streets 

work for everyone, managing access to curb space and 

managing parking for bicycles or public vehicles, and 

overseeing Muni and taxi services.  

2. San Francisco County Transportation Authority (SFCTA). SFCTA, the county’s congestion 

management agency. This role includes bi-annual performance monitoring to ensure that 

planning and policy development are consistent with the long-range transportation plan.  

3. SF Environment is the county coordinator of 511 Rideshare and provides oversight of the San 

Francisco Commuter Benefits Ordinance, Tenant Bicycle Access in Existing Commercial Building 

Ordinance and the Emergency Ride Home program.  

4. SF Planning supports San Francisco and the region by generating ideas for the General Plan and 

neighborhood plans, designing planning controls, conducting environmental analysis, preserving 

heritage, encouraging housing and job diversity, and enforcing the Planning Code.  

 

Effectiveness of the TDM Plan will be evaluated by monitoring changes in solo driving, measured by the 

number of single occupancy vehicle (SOV) trips. Additionally, program evaluation will include reports on 

transportation behavior such as Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) and greenhouse gas emissions (GHGs) and 

will be calculated using trip reduction calculations. In order for the San Francisco TDM program to be 

successful, there are numerous implementation strategies. The following are 12 integral strategies and key 

actions that will help create the infrastructure for long-term success:  

1. Develop program infrastructure for public engagement by establishing an identifiable brand for 

the TDM Program, establishing funding, and program coordination,  

2. Propose and advocate for policies that reduce SOV trips through improving parking 

management, a comprehensive mobility management plan, investigating voluntary/mandatory 

trip-caps, limiting impact of new developments, and refining car-share policies,  

3. Support programs, tools, or services that enhance regional transportations,  

4. Monitor, evaluate and enforce conditions of development approval,  

5. Develop materials that provide Information about service and programs,  

6. Develop visitor-oriented and event-related TDM services,  

7. Develop programs for employers and communities to ensure everyone is aware of 

transportation options,  

8. Strengthen partnerships with schools,  

141



 

Appendix 

9. Explore ways to further TDM goals,  

10. Facilitate transportation equity,  

11. Create/ formalize active transportation, and  

12. Research and evaluate TDM strategies to make program more successful. 

 

Puget Sound 
The Puget Sound Regional TDM Action Plan, created by the Puget Sound Regional Council in 2013 

includes Action plan goals, and time frame for execution of regional TDM. 

The Goals of the plan are to: 

1. Provide a better understanding of TDM and its value by highlighting key activities in the region. 
2. Describe the strategic priorities that TDM implementers across the region continue to pursue. 
3. Recommend implementation actions for the Puget Sound Regional Council (PSRC) and the 

region’s TDM Steering Committee to support and augment the work happening at the local level 

The PSRC plan focuses on People, Partnerships and Conservation, where TDM implementers in the region 

share key principles to provide consistency and amplify the effectiveness of their individual programs: 

• People. TDM activities are focused on people and how they use transportation facilities and 

services. Implementers offer transportation options designed to appeal to both individuals and 

groups of people with common transportation needs while benefiting the entire transportation 

system. The success of TDM activities ultimately depends on how effectively they meet the needs 

of the markets they serve. 

• Partnerships. Collaboration, partnerships, and engagement are universal components of TDM 

activities. It is in the best interest of a variety of people and organizations — from transportation 

operators to cities, counties, private businesses, building managers, and community groups — to 

improve transportation efficiency. As a result, they invest time and money to advance TDM 

activities. Thus, partners are instrumental in implementing, promoting, and funding TDM activities. 

• Conservation. TDM activities maximize the capacity of the existing transportation system. They 

leverage foundational transportation infrastructure and services to increase their efficiency and 

effectiveness. They offer options that meet transportation needs while minimizing costs and 

impacts at the individual, community, and regional levels.  

 

These PSRC does so through 5 strategic priorities:  

1. Maintain and grow successful, foundational TDM activities across the region. 

o PSRC highlights both the employers engaged in transportation, and the Commute Trip 

Reduction regulatory framework enabled by Washington State legislation in 1991. 

142



 

Appendix 

2. Expand existing and create new TDM activities that are center-

and corridor-based. 

o The Plan highlights activity centers-based projects and 

programs intended to reduce congestion, parking 

demand and greenhouse gasses through alternatives to 

driving alone. Other funded projects include Business 

Access and Transit (BAT) Lanes similar to a diamond lane, 

employer-based trip reduction programs, local 

transportation management associations, transit route 

promotions, construction related investments, and tolling.  

3. Expand local and regional residential and neighborhood 

programs. 

o The plan highlights non work based trip reduction efforts, including county-based 

programs, residential and neighborhood activities, growing transit-oriented development 

(TOD) and incentive programs for people to live closer to work centers. 

4. Explore regional and locally appropriate parking management tools. 

o The plan highlights a county-based 

parking calculator for local urban and 

suburban parking use to right-size 

parking facilities, and models to 

‘unbundle’ market costs of rent and 

parking and share parking 

management practice allowing communities to use 

excess parking more efficiently.  

5. Improve multimodal connections and access to

 efficient transportation options.  

o The plan highlights last-mile projects and land uses 

that increase opportunities for access and activities in 

proximity. Examples include small area plans for 

redevelopment, vanshare programs, bike share, ferries, 

a water taxi, bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure 

investments, “transit emphasis corridors”, and 

commuter shuttles. 

 

  

143



 

Appendix 

Non-Arterial networks 

 

Regional Bicycle Network (2018)  

144



 

Appendix 

 

CARTS Interurban Coach regional service map (2019). 

145



 

Appendix 

 CARTS San Marcos (2019) 

CARTS Bastrop (2019) 

GoGeo Georgetown, (CARTS 2019) 

146



 

Appendix 

 

Capital Metro Park and Ride Facilities (CMTA, 2018) 

147



 

Appendix 

 

Capital Metro Park and Ride Facilities Location Key (CMTA, 2018) 

 

148



 

Appendix 

 

 

Capital Metro Regional Service Map (CMTA 2019, Planned) 

149



 

Appendix 

 

Open, Toll-managed lanes map (TxDOT and CTRMA 2019) 

150



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION DEMAND 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

The Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) 

3300 N. Interstate 35, Suite 630

Austin, Texas 78705

 https://www.campotexas.org/

August 2019 



phone

512.215.8225

fax

737.708.8140

address

3300 N. Interstate 35

Suite 630

Austin, TX 78705



1 

 

CAMPO 

Regional Transportation Demand Management Plan: Comment Response Matrix 

 
Document Date:  August 6, 2019 
 
 

ID Page Sentence being commented on: Reviewer Comment Team Response 

1 45 Their broad services include 
emergency communications, elderly 
assistance programs, law enforcement 
training, and criminal justice planning. 

Julia 
Cleary 

Add “air quality planning” to the list of services undertaken by CAPCOG Y – will amend sentence to 
add “air quality monitoring”  

2 45 CARTS primarily 
operates along three fixed route, rural 
service lines operating on a pulse 
schedule, but also provide 
demand response services. 

Julia 
Cleary 

Are the CARTS “ Country” buses sufficiently covered in this description?  (They 
have a fixed route, but riders are required to phone 24 hours in advance to 
request that the bus stops at their specific stop). Could you please also clarify 
what you mean by “pulse” schedule 

Y – will add the following 
sentence: “While CARTS 
operates a fixed route 
system, riders are required 
to phone 24 hours in 
advance to request the bus 
stop at a specific stop.  
 
Y – will also clarify what 
“pulse” means 

3   Julia 
Cleary 

I would add a short section acknowledging the role that school buses play in 
getting SOVs off the road system. It could say something along the lines of 
“School transportation is a critical component of the TDM system. School 
buses are generally managed by the School Districts of which there are 
approximately 39 within the CAMPO region”. 

Y – will add the suggested 
sentence to page 40 on the 
discussion of Existing 
Programs and Strategies 
under Fixed-Route and On-
Demand Transit Services 



2 

 

ID Page Sentence being commented on: Reviewer Comment Team Response 

4 41 Commute Solutions works to 
encourage alternative travel options 
like carpool, vanpool, transit, bicycling, 
teleworking, and walking and to 
educate individuals throughout 
the region on their mobility choices. 

Julia 
Cleary 

Add “and includes a trip planning tool” at the end of the sentence N – Will amend the previous 
sentence to read as 
“Another regional program 
is Commute Solutions, 
which offers a “one stop” 
trip planning tool to support 
Central Texans in planning 
their commute.  

5 19 Table 4.1 Julia 
Cleary 

Could you add a title to Table 5.1 to make it clearer that the scoring criteria 
applies to all CAMPO projects, not just TDM ones? 

N – Scoring criteria is only 
applicable to the TDM 
category for the TIP Call for 
Projects Selection Process 

6 2 However, TDM programs can also 
involve changing commuters traveling 
behavior by improving attitudes 
toward transit, carpooling, vanpooling, 
biking, walking, and work routine 
schedules (e.g., telecommuting and 
flex scheduling 

Lisa Kay However, TDM programs can also involve changing commuters traveling 
behavior by improving attitudes toward the use of transit, carpooling, 
vanpooling, biking, walking, and work routine schedules (e.g., telecommuting 
and flex scheduling) 

Y 

7 1 Encourage the implementation of TDM 
concepts within the CAMPO planning 
process by incorporating revised TDM 
project scoring criteria to select and 
fund TDM projects in the call for 
projects process 

Lisa Kay “Urge” or “foster” the implementation of TDM concepts within the CAMPO 
planning process by incorporating revised TDM project scoring criteria to 
select and fund TDM projects in the call for projects process 

Y – Foster the… 

8 5 Potential dedicated funding to support 
TDM strategies. 

Lisa Kay Seems inaccurate because of the word “Potential.”  Can that word simply be 

struck? 

N – Potential is used due to 
need for decision by TPB 
and rare occurrence of 
dedicated funding for 
projects or activities in the 
2040 RTP 



3 

 

ID Page Sentence being commented on: Reviewer Comment Team Response 

9 7 Additionally, these efforts provide 
residents and visitors with more 
information and options for deciding 
how, where, and when to travel within 
the CAMPO region 

Lisa Kay I would like this change to, “Additionally, these efforts provide residents and 

visitors  travelers with more information and options for deciding how, where, and 

when to travel within the CAMPO region. 

Y 

10 2 Figure 1.1 Lisa Kay I appreciate the graphic but I would like to see a little picture of a bus and of a 
van under “ride-sharing”  and a little scooter and a commuter train under 
“multi-modal.”  I won’t fight anyone for the scooter or train but I will speak up 
for the other.  We need for the Policy Committee to start acknowledging that 
transit and van-pools are also ride-sharing. 

Y – May not be able to get 
those graphics before TAC 
but definitely before 
presenting to TPB 

11 24 Figure 5.1 Lisa Kay Figure 5.1 is confusing for Movability denoted as “TMA.”  I’m not sure what is 

trying to be conveyed here.  Please explain. 

Y – Will add a sentence on 
page 23 noting that TMAs 
are an entity that have 
characteristics of both 
private and public 
organizations and play a 
unique role in providing 
transportation services.  

12 N/A Movability, which is uniquely situated 
in both spheres as a non-profit that 
has significant dedicated resources for 
their outreach, information provision 
and collaborative efforts. 

Lisa Kay Movability, which is uniquely situated in both spheres as a non-profit that has 

significant dedicated resources for their outreach, information provision, 

professional services, and collaborative efforts 

N/A – sentence was deleted 

13 48 The Chamber supports local TDM 
efforts by working closely with 
Movability, CapMetro, CAPCOG, 
CTRMA, and various county 
governments during the development 
of transportation projects to advocate 
for multimodal facilities that promote 
efficient movement of people and 
goods. 

Lisa Kay The Chamber supports local TDM efforts by working closely with Movability, 

CapMetro, CAPCOG, CTRMA, and various county governments during the 

development of transportation projects to advocate for multimodal facilities 

that promote efficient movement of people and goods. 

Y 



4 

 

ID Page Sentence being commented on: Reviewer Comment Team Response 

14 48 Committed to sustainability and a 
member of Movability Austin, Whole 
Foods released a survey to team 
members to understand commute 
choices. 

Lisa Kay Committed to sustainability and a member of Movability Austin, Whole Foods 

released a survey to team members to understand commute choices. 

Y 

15 53  Lisa Kay I just learned that a private employer has an Emergency Ride Home program 

for their employees through a deal with Lyft!  Might be worth mentioning.  

Let me know if you want me to find out more detail 

Y – Will follow up with Lisa 
Kay 

16 N/A Employee benefits programs with TDM 
incentives, subsidized transit passes 
and shared mobility costs, and flexible 
work schedules or telecommuting 
options are another potential method 
to reduce personal vehicle trips during 
peak hours. 

Lisa Kay Employee benefits programs with TDM incentives, subsidized transit passes 

and shared mobility costs, and flexible work schedules or telecommuting 

options are another potential method to reduce personal vehicle trips during 

peak hours. 

N/A – sentence deleted 

17 N/A Additional park-and-ride facilities are 
needed in outlying areas with 
significant numbers of commuters to 
increase transit usage. Increased 
availability of active transportation 
amenities, such as bike lockers and 
onsite showers at office buildings, 
could would assist with improving 
active mode usage. 

Lisa Kay Additional park-and-ride facilities are needed in outlying areas with significant 

numbers of commuters to increase transit usage. Increased availability of 

active transportation amenities, such as bike lockers and onsite showers at 

office buildings, could would assist with improving active mode usage. 

N/A – sentence deleted 

18 5 Address transit projects and programs 
that address service gaps, such as 
access to park-and-ride facilities, 
guaranteed ride home programs, and 
ensuring connections to the “last mile” 
portion of a trip 

Lisa Kay Support transit projects and programs that address service gaps, such as 

increasing the number of and access to park-and-ride facilities, guaranteed 

ride home programs, and ensuring connections to the “last mile” portion of a 

trip 

Y 



5 

 

ID Page Sentence being commented on: Reviewer Comment Team Response 

19 30 Figure 5.3 Julia 
Cleary 

Add Agilent Technologies and Hyatt Lost Pines to major employer map; both 
have over 300 employees. Check to see if Camp Swift has over 300 
employees. 
 

 

Y 

20 5 Investigate projects and programs that 
address and reduce peak-time 
congestion on priority 
corridors to provide for peak spreading 
and work zone queue mitigation; 

Lisa Kay Fund projects and programs that address and reduce peak-time traffic 

congestion on priority corridors to provide for peak spreading 

Y 

21 5 Investigate projects and programs that 
support implementation of work zone 
queue mitigation during roadway 
construction; 

Lisa Kay Advocate for projects and programs that support implementation of work 

zone queue mitigation during roadway construction; 

N – Will amend to Fund 
projects… 

22 11 Educate interested employers and trip 
generators on options, including flex 
schedules and teleworking; 

Lisa Kay Educate interested employers and trip generators on options, including flex 
schedules and teleworking; 

N – Removing the word 
interested seems to imply 
forcing employers to act 
which will likely be 
counterproductive 

23 12 Encourage all traditional roadway 
projects to have coordinated TDM 
education and outreach plans during 
construction phases; 

Lisa Kay Incentivize all traditional roadway projects to have coordinated TDM education 

and outreach plans during construction phases; 

Y 

24 20 The project or activity's local cost 
share is overmatched (5% = 1 point) 

Lisa Kay Please provide clarification as to what this means 

 

 

An agency that exceeds it’s 
local match receives more 
points, i.e. if an agency 
pledges between 21-25 
percent for their local 
match they receive 1 point, 
26-30 percent = 2 points, 
etc 



6 

 

ID Page Sentence being commented on: Reviewer Comment Team Response 

25 59 Establish a regional platform, operated 
by CAMPO, that conducts targeted 
outreach and education to individuals, 
employers and other trip generators, 
gathers and measures data from all 
agencies in the region, provides ride-
matching services for formal and 
informal carpools and vanpools, and 
serves as the place where all progress 
on TDM solutions are monitored and 
displayed. 

Lisa Kay Suggest remove “operated by CAMPO” N – As the region’s 
transportation planning 
agency, CAMPO is best 
positioned to operate such 
a platform 

26 4 Incorporation of transit features into 
future roadway projects; 

Mia Zmud This should be a bullet 
 

Y 

27 Global Non-tolled managed lanes Mia Zmud Clarify this simply as managed lanes  Y 

28 46 Central Texas Regional Mobility 
Authority 

Mia Zmud Would be good to mentions our bike lanes. "CTRMA also designs, constructs, 
and implements multi-modal, pedestrian and cyclist friendly facilities like 
Shared Use Paths, sidewalks, and cross-street connections as part of every 
project whenever feasible.  More than 70 lane miles of sidewalks and shared 
use paths are planned or in place. " 

N – The section already 
references active 
transportation facilities 
constructed by CTRMA on 
its roadway projects 

29 N/A “Changes in technology and 
demographics lead to changes in travel 
patterns.” 

Mia Zmud Is this a quote attributed to someone or a reference? Please provide an attribution N/A – sentence deleted 

31 9 Specific objectives to advance regional 
coordination are outlined below. 

Mia Zmud Not a bullet Y – will remove bullet 

32 45 CARTS serves approximately 240,000 
trips per year.vi 

Nirav Ved Delete “vi” Y 

33 15 Table 3.1, Incorporate TDM into the 
transportation planning process 

Julia 
Cleary 

Bottom bullet points under Measuring Progress should not be indented, they 
don’t relate to development codes 

Y 



7 

 

ID Page Sentence being commented on: Reviewer Comment Team Response 

34 17 Table 3.1, Improve the Transportation 
System 

Julia 
Cleary 

How will you measure percentage of commute trips taken at least one day a 
week by a non single-occupancy vehicle mode?  

TBD, but it is a measure that 
requires exploring for data 
collection 

35 35 Table 5.9 Julia 
Cleary 

Is it possible to get one more MPO with sidewalk data?  Y – will explore finding more 
MPOs with such data 

36 36 The graphic shows how different 
combinations of non-SOV modes can 
result in higher percentages despite 
having fewer transportation 
alternatives. 

Julia 
Cleary 

Not quite clear what this sentence means 

 

Y – will reword for clarity 

37 36 The tracts in the illustrative have been 
aggregated into hexagons for ease of 
presentation 

Julia 
Cleary 

Illustrative – did you mean illustration?  Y 

38 37 Figure 5.12 Julia 
Cleary 

How are these hexagons established?  Noted. 

39 38 In 2017, both systems operated 842 
transit vehicles.  

Julia 
Cleary 

Could we split this up between CARTS and Capital Metro? Need to find 
numbers 

Y 

40 40 Park and ride facilities in the region are 
places dedicated to transit stations or 
other lots that are not normally used 
during work hours such as those of 
churches, theaters or shopping malls.  

Julia 
Cleary 

Are there examples of churches, theaters or shopping malls in the region?  Y – will include the example 
of the New Life Church lot 
used as a park and ride for 
Capital Metro’s Express Bus 
Service 

41 40-41 Commute Planning and Incentives Julia 
Cleary 

Break paragraph into multiple paragraphs for better reading Y 



8 

 

ID Page Sentence being commented on: Reviewer Comment Team Response 

42 50 Providing regional guidance on TIAs 
could result in a standardized 
approach towards the nexus between 
land use and transportation. 

Julia 
Cleary 

It is also unclear whether or not counties have the authority to require TIAs for 

new subdivisions under current platting or development permitting regulations – 

separate guidance for counties would also be beneficial.  

Y – will include a sentence 
noting the confusion for 
counties and the benefit 
such guidance could provide 

43 53 NCTCOG offers a free educational 
program on employer trip reduction to 
reduce single-occupant vehicle 
commute trips.  

Julia 
Cleary 

Fix spacing between words Y 

44 59 Establish a regional platform, operated 
by CAMPO, that conducts targeted 
outreach and education to individuals, 
employers and other trip generators, 
gathers and measures data from all 
agencies in the region, provides ride-
matching services for formal and 
informal carpools and vanpools, and 
serves as the place where all progress 
on TDM solutions are monitored and 
displayed.  

Julia 
Cleary 

I think we need to assess the strengths and weaknesses of the existing Commute 

Solutions platform first as opposed to starting from scratch.  

Noted.  

45 75 SH 21 Julia 
Cleary 

Add, “and SH 71” Y 

46 59 The rate of funding increases sharply 
when adding consideration for TDM 
and TSMO functioning projects that 
include all the programs, services and 
managed infrastructure strategies 
described in this plan.  

Nirav Ved New paragraph after sentence…. 

The CAMPO region is unique in that it represents one of the largest metropolitan 

areas in the nation that is within attainment of the National Ambient Air Quality 

Standards (NAAQS). Therefore, the CAMPO region does not have access to CMAQ 

funds and instead rely on Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG, also known as 

Category 7 funds within TxDOT) funds in order to fund most TDM activities in the 

region. STBG funds are the most flexible of transportation funds but the total 

amount is small compared to the funds available for solely for roadway projects.  

Y 



9 

 

ID Page Sentence being commented on: Reviewer Comment Team Response 

47 58 Major MPOs typically fund TDM 
programs with CMAQ funds… 

Nirav Ved Amend sentence to: 

Major MPOs typically fund TDM programs with Congestion Mitigation and Air 

Quality (CMAQ) funds… 

Y 

48 18 TDM is one of the six distinct project 
category types. Previous cycles of 
project selection… 

Nirav Ved Amend sentence to:  

…types. However, the other category types such as Roadway, ITS and Transit all 

contain a TDM nexus in some way. For example, the Roadway category provides 

extra points for projects that include a multimodal aspect such as sidewalks or 

transit connectivity.  

 

New paragraph 

Previous cycles of project selection have had… 

Y 

49 58 This guidance section includes revenue 
resource suggestions to expand the 
menu of options for revenue sources 
to fund TDM programs in the region.  

Nirav Ved Delete sentence.  Y 

 

50 15 Table 3.1, Goal: Regional Coordination Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Add new sub-bullet: Number of meetings of TDM TAC subcommittee N – Premature to establish 
a metric for a body that 
does not yet exist 

51 16 Table 3.1, Goal: Provide Education and 
Outreach 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Add a new bullet: Number of jurisdictions and public agencies that conduct 

outreach and disseminate TDM materials to their constituents 

Y 

52 16 Table 3.1, Goal: Increase Mobility 
Choices for Travelers 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Add new sub-bullet under “Increase the range of transportation options…”: 

Number of centerline miles for active transportation facilities 

Y 

53 16 Table 3.1, Goal: Increase Mobility 
Choices for Travelers 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Add a new sub-bullet under “Increase the range of transportation options…”: 

Number of dedicated guideway miles  

Y 

54 19 Table 4.1, Criteria: Planning Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Change point value for second performance measure from 5 to 10 Y 



10 

 

55 19 Table 4.1, Criteria: Congestion and 
Mobility 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Change point value for third performance measure from 10 to 5 Y 

56 20 Planning (5) Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Amend to, “Planning (10) Y 

57 21 Congestion and Mobility (10) – Provide 
documentation on how the project or 
activity includes operational 
improvements… 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Amend to, “Congestion and Mobility (5) – Provide documentation on how the 

project or activity includes operational improvements…” 

Y 

58 19 Table 4.1, Criteria: Congestion and 
Mobility 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Amend third performance measure to, “The project or activity reduces vehicle 

trips or manages demand through strategies such as carpools, vanpools, managed 

lanes, corridor improvements, ITS installation, signal optimization or park and 

rides.” 

Y 

59 20 Table 4.1, Criteria: Multimodal 
Elements 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Amend performance measure to, “The project or activity decreases single-

occupancy vehicle usage or increases transit access.”  

Y 

60 20 Table 4.1, Criteria: Interagency 
Coordination 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Amend second performance measure to, “…other trip generators impacting travel 

patterns.” 

Y 

61 21 For example, provide documentation 
detailing number of participants in the 
project or activity… 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Amend sentence to, “For example, provide documentation detailing (actual or 

estimated) number of participants in the project or activity… 

Y 

62 21 For example, provide documentation 
detailing employers or travelers 
participating… 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Amend sentence to, “For example, provide documentation detailing (actual or 

estimated) employers or travelers participating… 

Y 



11 

 

63 56 Diamond priority is also known as high 
occupancy vehicle (HOV) and refers to 
strategies that give priority to High 
Occupant Vehicles and is a major 
component of many regional TDM 
programs to reduce the number of 
vehicles on the network. The efficiency 
of this type of strategy depends on 
maintaining an uncongested Level of 
Service (LOS) within the lane. 

Mia Zmud Amend sentence to, “Diamond priority is also known as high occupancy vehicle 

(HOV) and refers to strategies that give priority to HOVs and is a major component 

of many regional TDM programs to reduce the number of vehicles on the 

network. Managed lanes are physically separated from main lanes by a structural 

separation or barriers. The MoPac Express Lanes are an example of managed 

lanes. The efficiency of these types of strategies depend on 

maintaining an uncongested Level of Service (LOS) within the lane.” 

Y 

64 60 Investigate additional TDM concepts 
to include in the project scoring 
criteria in 
CAMPO’s call for projects as the region 
advances TDM. 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Amend to, “Update the project scoring criteria for non-TDM categories before the 

next funding call to award additional points to projects that incorporate TDM 

measures into either during construction or after completion." 

N – CAMPO staff received 
no direction from the TPB 
to amend other criteria 
categories. 

65 60 Recommendations Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Add new bullet, “Establish a targeted amount or percentage of funding for the TIP 

and RTP to TDM measures.” 

N – CAMPO staff will await 

TPB direction  

66 60 Recommendations Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Add new bullet, “Include and encourage the inclusion of TDM plans and strategies 

into traditional roadway projects and in TIP cycle applications.” 

N – CAMPO staff will await 
TPB direction 

67 60 Establish a regional platform, operated 
by CAMPO, … 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Amend to, “Transition the regional platform, to be operated by CAMPO,…” Y 

68 60 Establish a regional platform, operated 
by CAMPO,… 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

At end of sentence add, “To ensure a seamless transition that preserves 

continuity of a program that is currently being utilized by many regional 

stakeholders, CAMPO will: establish a detailed transition plan; fully fund a 

minimum of one new FTE to lead the transition and, at a minimum, maintain 

existing program functions; identify a sustained funding source for ongoing 

program maintenance and continued growth 

N – CAMPO and CAPCOG 
are currently having 
discussions to discuss these 
items and will execute the 
discussion through an ILA 

69 16 Table 3.1, Goal: Provide Education and 
Outreach 

Tien-Tien 
Chan 

Add sub-bullet under second bullet, “Number of outreach and education 

campaigns that engage underserved populations” 

Y 

 



12 

 

70 19 Table 4.1, Goal: Congestion and 
Mobility 

Cathy 
Stevens 

Amend first performance measure to, “The project or activity reduces vehicle 

miles traveled (VMT) or vehicle hours traveled (VHT) 

Y 

71 20 Table 4.1, Goal: Interagency 
Coordination 

Cathy 
Stevens 

Amend first performance measure to, “The project or activity includes the direct 

participation of other federal, state, or local jurisdictions.” 

Y 

72 59 Recommendations Cathy 
Stevens 

Add new bullet, “New regional platform will continue to provide its services 

available at no cost to users, employers and other trip generators.  

N – CAMPO and CAPCOG 
are currently having 
discussion regarding these 
items and will execute the 
discussions through an ILA 

 



From: polam
To: CAMPO Comments; Nirav Ved
Subject: Campo TDM plan comment
Date: Monday, June 17, 2019 2:15:24 PM

EXTERNAL email: Exercise caution when opening.

Nirav,

I am glad to see CAMPO is starting a TDM plan. I hope you will make use of the TDM
encyclopedia of the Victoria Transportation Policy Institute here.  A vital feature of any plan
must include a way to incentivize people to use transportation alternatives. Getting SOV cars
off the road has a value and it must be shared if you want more than token participation. With
all the apartment buildings going up, each complex must have an intensive to promote ride-
sharing among the tenants.  There are many ways this can be done.  I will be happy to discuss
this with you anytime. Thanks.

Michael Polacheck

mailto:comments@campotexas.org
mailto:nirav.ved@campotexas.org
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.vtpi.org%2Ftdm%2F&data=02%7C01%7Ccomments%40campotexas.org%7C4bdb63dd618b4d51d37c08d6f358243b%7Ce25da04722d04e2ea07d9d98221979c7%7C1%7C1%7C636963957236143305&sdata=OXzNelwEei0rRFVqkxd%2FgdDy2L5L9y73%2FCwXH%2BvdCaY%3D&reserved=0


From: Sarah Simpson
To: CAMPO Comments
Subject: Feedback: TDM Plan
Date: Sunday, July 14, 2019 6:23:19 PM

EXTERNAL email: Exercise caution when opening.

To CAMPO:

The Transportation Demand Management is incomplete in its omission of congestion pricing
as a way to help manage traffic. I encourage the incorporation of such fees for single-occupant
vehicles on congested roads to encourage drivers to modify their transportation habits. These
fees could be used to maintain the roadways, as well. 

Sarah Simpson
Austin, District 9 

mailto:comments@campotexas.org


From: Susan Pantell
To: CAMPO Comments; Nirav Ved
Subject: TDM Plan comments
Date: Friday, July 5, 2019 3:52:00 PM

EXTERNAL email: Exercise caution when opening.

Mr. Ved,

I strongly support the development of a Transportation Demand Management Plan and
appreciate the work that has gone into it so far. 

My main comment is that more effort should go into improving transit throughout the region,
and CAMPO should prioritize funding for transit projects. The plan mentions managed lanes,
park and ride facilities, and increasing the use of existing transit, which are o.k.; but it does not
mention new rail or bus rapid transit (BRT) projects. Rail and BRT projects should be
included in the plan, and CAMPO should prioritize funding for them. This comment should be
added to the list of priorities starting on p. 5 and should be included in the following goal:
Develop a listing of TDM projects and needs the region should address and include in the
CAMPO 2045 Plan update.

Additional comments are below.

- TDM Scoring Elements

The project or activity directly reduces vehicle miles traveled.
This consideration is important and should qualify for 10 points, not 5.

o Percentage of commute trips taken at least one day a week by a non-SOV mode
That is o.k., but you should also measure the percentage of all commute trips by a non-SOV
mode and by transit; and the percentage of non-work trips that are by a non-SOV mode and by
transit.

o Percentage of residents within a quarter mile of a transit stop
This measure is very important. At some point, it would be helpful to distinguish between the
type of transit, i.e. by frequency, mode (rail, BRT, or local bus), and type (inter-urban or
urban).

It would also be useful to measure the percentage of people who can access their employment
by transit within a certain time period, say 30 or 45 minutes.

Please confirm receipt of these comments.

Sincerely,

Susan Pantell

mailto:comments@campotexas.org
mailto:nirav.ved@campotexas.org


From: Kelly Davis
To: Campo
Cc: "Bill Bunch"; bobby@sosalliance.org
Subject: Save Our Springs" Comments on CAMPO"s Transportation Demand Management Plan
Date: Monday, July 15, 2019 4:11:56 PM
Attachments: image001.png

19.07.15_SOS Comments on TDM Plan_FINAL.pdf

EXTERNAL email: Exercise caution when opening.

Please see the attached comments by Save Our Springs Alliance on CAMPO’s
Transportation Demand Management Plan.
 
Thank you,
Kelly
 
 
Kelly Davis
Staff Attorney
kelly@sosalliance.org
(512) 477-2320 ext. 106
4701 Westgate Blvd.
Bldg. D, Ste. 401
Austin, Texas 78745
SOSAlliance.org
 

mailto:kelly@sosalliance.org
mailto:campo@campotexas.org
mailto:bill@sosalliance.org
mailto:bobby@sosalliance.org
mailto:kelly@sosalliance.org




 
 


 
 


      
 
 
 
July 15, 2019 
 
Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Transportation Policy Board  
3300 N. Interstate 35, Ste. 630 
Austin, Texas 78705 
comments@campotexas.org        Via Email 
 
Re: Comments on the CAMPO Transportation Demand Management Plan 
   
Dear Members of the CAMPO Transportation Policy Board: 
 
 Save Our Springs Alliance (SOS Alliance) offers the following comments on the CAMPO 
Transportation Demand Management Plan. SOS Alliance appreciates the opportunity to 
comment and the Board’s consideration of these comments.   
 
 CAMPO supports the adoption of a robust and fully funded Transportation Demand 
Management (TDM) Plan. SOS Alliance supports the development and implementation of 
strategies and tools to reduce single-occupancy vehicle use on the road, particularly during 
peak travel hours. Investing in such programs can reduce costly infrastructure projects in the 
long-run, and TDM projects should be prioritized over financially costly and environmentally 
destructive road construction projects.  
 
 Other than the obvious financial and environmental benefits of a TDM plan, SOS 
Alliance notes that a TDM plan is required by federal law governing the metropolitan planning 
process. Specifically, the relevant statute requires that a regional transportation plan contain, 
among other requirements: 
 
(F) Operational and management strategies.--Operational and management strategies to 
improve the performance of existing transportation facilities to relieve vehicular congestion 
and maximize the safety and mobility of people and goods. 
 
23 U.S.C. § 134(i)(2).  
 
Further, for areas designated as transportation management areas, defined as urbanized areas 
with a population of over 200,000 individuals, the statute requires:  
 
(3) Congestion management process.--   


(A) In general.--Within a metropolitan planning area serving a transportation 
management area, the transportation planning process under this section shall address 
congestion management through a process that provides for effective management and 
operation, based on a cooperatively developed and implemented metropolitan-wide  







 2 


strategy, of new and existing transportation facilities eligible for funding under this 
title and chapter 53 of title 49 through the use of travel demand reduction (including 
intercity bus operators, employer-based commuting programs such as a carpool 
program, vanpool program, transit benefit program, parking cash-out program, shuttle 
program, or telework program), job access projects, and operational management 
strategies. 
 


23 U.S.C. § 134(k). 
 


 In addition, Congress adopted amended language in 2015 that further emphasized the 
use of transportation demand management strategies, providing that a metropolitan planning 
organization may include TDM strategies in a Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), 
and laying out the requirements for a TDM plan:   


 
(C) Congestion management plan.--A metropolitan planning organization serving a 
transportation management area may develop a plan that includes projects and 
strategies that will be considered in the TIP of such metropolitan planning 
organization. Such plan shall-- 


(i) develop regional goals to reduce vehicle miles traveled during peak 
commuting hours and improve transportation connections between areas 
with high job concentration and areas with high concentrations of low-
income households; 
(ii) identify existing public transportation services, employer-based 
commuter programs, and other existing transportation services that support 
access to jobs in the region; and 
(iii) identify proposed projects and programs to reduce congestion and 
increase job access opportunities. 
 


(D) Participation.--In developing the plan under subparagraph (C), a metropolitan 
planning organization shall consult with employers, private and nonprofit providers of 
public transportation, transportation management organizations, and organizations 
that provide job access reverse commute projects or job-related services to low-
income individuals. 


 
23 U.S.C. § 134(k)(3). 
 
 SOS Alliance strongly encourages the TPB vote to adopt the proposed Transportation 
Demand Management Plan in accordance with federal law and policy. Thank you for your 
consideration. 


 
Sincerely, 
  
/s/ Kelly D. Davis_____________ 
 
Kelly D. Davis, Staff Attorney  
Bill Bunch, Executive Director 
Save Our Springs Alliance 







 
 

 
 

      
 
 
 
July 15, 2019 
 
Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Transportation Policy Board  
3300 N. Interstate 35, Ste. 630 
Austin, Texas 78705 
comments@campotexas.org        Via Email 
 
Re: Comments on the CAMPO Transportation Demand Management Plan 
   
Dear Members of the CAMPO Transportation Policy Board: 
 
 Save Our Springs Alliance (SOS Alliance) offers the following comments on the CAMPO 
Transportation Demand Management Plan. SOS Alliance appreciates the opportunity to 
comment and the Board’s consideration of these comments.   
 
 CAMPO supports the adoption of a robust and fully funded Transportation Demand 
Management (TDM) Plan. SOS Alliance supports the development and implementation of 
strategies and tools to reduce single-occupancy vehicle use on the road, particularly during 
peak travel hours. Investing in such programs can reduce costly infrastructure projects in the 
long-run, and TDM projects should be prioritized over financially costly and environmentally 
destructive road construction projects.  
 
 Other than the obvious financial and environmental benefits of a TDM plan, SOS 
Alliance notes that a TDM plan is required by federal law governing the metropolitan planning 
process. Specifically, the relevant statute requires that a regional transportation plan contain, 
among other requirements: 
 
(F) Operational and management strategies.--Operational and management strategies to 
improve the performance of existing transportation facilities to relieve vehicular congestion 
and maximize the safety and mobility of people and goods. 
 
23 U.S.C. § 134(i)(2).  
 
Further, for areas designated as transportation management areas, defined as urbanized areas 
with a population of over 200,000 individuals, the statute requires:  
 
(3) Congestion management process.--   

(A) In general.--Within a metropolitan planning area serving a transportation 
management area, the transportation planning process under this section shall address 
congestion management through a process that provides for effective management and 
operation, based on a cooperatively developed and implemented metropolitan-wide  



 2 

strategy, of new and existing transportation facilities eligible for funding under this 
title and chapter 53 of title 49 through the use of travel demand reduction (including 
intercity bus operators, employer-based commuting programs such as a carpool 
program, vanpool program, transit benefit program, parking cash-out program, shuttle 
program, or telework program), job access projects, and operational management 
strategies. 
 

23 U.S.C. § 134(k). 
 

 In addition, Congress adopted amended language in 2015 that further emphasized the 
use of transportation demand management strategies, providing that a metropolitan planning 
organization may include TDM strategies in a Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), 
and laying out the requirements for a TDM plan:   

 
(C) Congestion management plan.--A metropolitan planning organization serving a 
transportation management area may develop a plan that includes projects and 
strategies that will be considered in the TIP of such metropolitan planning 
organization. Such plan shall-- 

(i) develop regional goals to reduce vehicle miles traveled during peak 
commuting hours and improve transportation connections between areas 
with high job concentration and areas with high concentrations of low-
income households; 
(ii) identify existing public transportation services, employer-based 
commuter programs, and other existing transportation services that support 
access to jobs in the region; and 
(iii) identify proposed projects and programs to reduce congestion and 
increase job access opportunities. 
 

(D) Participation.--In developing the plan under subparagraph (C), a metropolitan 
planning organization shall consult with employers, private and nonprofit providers of 
public transportation, transportation management organizations, and organizations 
that provide job access reverse commute projects or job-related services to low-
income individuals. 

 
23 U.S.C. § 134(k)(3). 
 
 SOS Alliance strongly encourages the TPB vote to adopt the proposed Transportation 
Demand Management Plan in accordance with federal law and policy. Thank you for your 
consideration. 

 
Sincerely, 
  
/s/ Kelly D. Davis_____________ 
 
Kelly D. Davis, Staff Attorney  
Bill Bunch, Executive Director 
Save Our Springs Alliance 















 
 

 

Resolution 2019-9-8 

Acknowledging the Transportation Policy Board’s Adoption of the Regional 

Transportation Demand Management Plan 

WHEREAS, pursuant to federal law, the Governor of the State of Texas designated the Capital Area 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) as the Metropolitan Planning Organization for the Austin 

region in 1973; and    

WHEREAS, CAMPO’s Transportation Policy Board is the regional forum for cooperative decision-

making regarding transportation issues in Bastrop, Burnet, Caldwell, Hays, Travis and Williamson Counties 

in Central Texas; and 

WHEREAS, the mission of a Metropolitan Planning Organization is to conduct a coordinated, 

comprehensive and continuous metropolitan transportation planning process; and  

 

WHEREAS, transportation demand management (TDM) is comprised of a series of strategies with the 

objective of reducing the strain on a transportation network without adding new capacity; and 

 

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2018, the Transportation Policy Board awarded $300,000 to CAMPO to develop 

a regional TDM plan; and   

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the CAMPO Transportation Policy Board hereby votes 

to adopt the Regional Transportation Demand Management Plan as reflected in this Resolution; and 

 

Hereby orders the recording of this resolution in the minutes of the Transportation Policy Board; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board delegates the signing of necessary documents to the Board 

Chair. 

 

The above resolution being read, a motion to adopt the Regional Transportation Demand Management Plan as 

reflected was made on September 9, 2019 by __________________ duly seconded by _________________. 

 

 

Ayes:  

 

Nays:  

 

Abstain:  

 

Absent and Not Voting:  



 

 

 

SIGNED this 9th day of September 2019. 

 

   

Chair, CAMPO Board  

 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

        

Executive Director, CAMPO 



Date:        September 9, 2019 
 Continued From:      February 11, 2019 

 Action Requested:  Approval 

To: Transportation Policy Board 

From: Mr. Ashby Johnson, CAMPO Executive Director 

Agenda Item: 9 

Subject: Discussion and Approval of Proposed Transportation Demand Management (TDM) 

Policy and Allocation of Remaining Funds in Transportation Demand Management 

Category 

RECOMMENDATION 

CAMPO staff has the following recommendations: 

1. CAMPO staff and the TAC supports the change in the TDM definition to more closely align with 
current Federal Highway Administration guidelines

2. CAMPO staff does not support the request to amend the 2040 Plan

3. CAMPO staff proposes the award of $498,720 in the TDM category to CAMPO to facilitate the 
reinstatement of a TDM program housed within CAMPO.

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Travis County has requested an amendment to the existing 2040 Plan as it related to Transportation 

Demand Management (TDM). The amendment request is composed of three separate items: (1) an 

amendment to the 2040 Plan to change existing policy and create a 5% set aside of CAMPO funding for 

TDM; (2) a change in the definition of TDM activities; (3) an award of federal STBG funding in the amount 

of $498,720.  The Travis County request also asks that any potential changes be carried over automatically 

to the 2045 Plan and the 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program. 

This item was discussed at the February 11, 2019 Transportation Policy Board meeting.  A copy of the 

cover memo for the TPB materials that addresses this item is attached for your review. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The Transportation Policy Board held $498,720 of STBG funding in abeyance when they selected a 

program of activities for the 2019-2022 TIP in May 2018.  The Transportation Policy Board stipulated that 

the funding would be held for future TDM activities but did not specify that the funding would go to any 

particular existing or future programs/activities.  

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Attachment A – February TPB Meeting Cover Memo 

Attachment B – Memo from Judge Sarah Eckhardt, Travis County, Chair of Clean Air Coalition 

Attachment C – TDM Policy Proposal-Final Document 

Attachment D – Resolution 2019-9-9 







TDM Policy  
Memo 

To:  CAMPO Policy Board 
From:  Sarah Eckhardt, Judge of Travis County, Chair of Clean Air Coalition 
Date:  January 28, 2019 
Subject:  Proposed Transportation Demand Management Policy Amendments 
 
We have real challenges that Transportation Demand Management (TDM) efforts are well-suited to 
address. Targeted updates to CAMPO’s 2040 Plan and related policies can help guide near-term TDM 
planning, and inform development of CAMPO’s upcoming Regional TDM Plan. As the Federal Highways 
Administration (FHWA) states, “few question the need to manage travel demand these days as growth 
in travel continues to exceed our ability to accommodate it with new capacity,” and stating that, 
“many transportation plans appropriately place TDM very high in policy-level discussions.” 1  
 
We are barely in attainment of federal air quality standards. We are currently maximally congested at 
peak times on our regional highways and in the urban core of our Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). 
We have limited options to car travel. We are experiencing increasing unreliability in travel times. All of 
these challenges are affecting our environment, our quality of life, and our economy. 
 
TDM has often been defined too narrowly; current TDM best practices cover a wide range of actions to 
maximize the efficiency of a multi-modal system. TDM includes both programatic and infrastructure 
(including capital investment) elements to achieve the overarching goal of travel reliability: 

• Examples of Infrastructure TDM 
o Congestion Priced Toll Lanes 
o HOV/HOT dedicated lanes 
o Bus pull-outs/dedicated lanes 
o Synchronized signalization 
o Park & Ride lots 
o Expansion of the fleet of transit buses and/or vanpools  
o Bike/ped infrastructure 

• Examples of Programmatic TDM 
o Flexible work schedules 
o Ridesharing 
o Transit utilization 
o Parking policies 
o Telecommuting 
o Pricing incentives for multi-modal travel and disincentives for SOV travel 
o Education and outreach to residents, employees, and institutions 

 
Incorporating TDM into the planning process can optimize the use of scarce funding. Programatic TDM 
projects can be implemented quickly, are relatively inexpensive, and are readily adaptable to changing 

                                                      
1 https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/publications/fhwahop12035/fhwahop12035.pdf  

https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/publications/fhwahop12035/fhwahop12035.pdf


needs. Infrastructure TDM projects need more lead time and are more costly, but they provide the 
fundamentals that allow Programatic TDM to work effectively.        
 
Contemporary TDM: Definitions and Examples 
“The acts of creating a most efficient multi-modal transportation system that moves people with the 
goal of reducing congestion, improving air quality, and stimulating economic development.” 
(Association of Commuter Transportation TDM definition) 
 
“Managing demand is about providing travelers, regardless of whether they drive alone, with travel 
choices, such as work location, route, time of travel, and mode. In the broadest sense, demand 
management is defined as providing travelers with effective choices to improve travel reliability.” 
(Federal Highways Administration TDM definition) 
 
Recent local projects demonstrate how TDM (programmatic and/or infrastructure) elements can 
improve system reliability and travel efficiency.  

• MoPac Express Lane –  Since the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (CTRMA)  opened 
Mopac Express Lane in October 2017, Capital Metro Express Bus service using the lanes has 
increased ridership by 65%; personal vehicle drivers using the lanes are saving up to 25 minutes 
in travel time. Both bus riders and personal vehicle drivers are experiencing more reliable travel 
times.  

• Bicycle and Pedestrian Accommodations--CTRMA designs, constructs, and implements multi-
modal, pedestrian and cyclist friendly facilities like Shared Use Paths, sidewalks, and cross-
street connections as part of every project whenever feasible.  More than 70 lane miles of 
sidewalks and shared use paths are planned or in place.  

• MetroRideShare (regional vanpool program) – Capital Metro’s MetroRideShare has grown 
dramatically since January 2014, when the program began operating with a contracted service 
provider. It has grown from 102 to 253 vanpool groups, and more than 1,345 program 
participants.  The average round-trip commute is 75 miles. Anticipated program growth will 
require 20 additional vanpools per year. Capital Metro is planning a pilot project to expand 
eligible vanpool coverage area.  

• The Round Rock Transit Master Plan (TMP) – Developed in 2015, the TMP is a 10-year blueprint 
to improve local mobility and regional connectivity, and to map future transit options. Round 
Rock City Council can implement TMP elements incrementally, as expansion is needed and 
funds are available. The TMP allowed Round Rock to partner with Capital Metro to operate 
three fixed bus routes and one commuter bus route that began in Fall 2017. The Commuter 
Route uses the MoPac Express Lanes from Round Rock to downtown Austin. The fixed routes 
connect Round Rock to Howard Station and Tech Ridge, and serve the ACC Round Rock 
Campus. The fixed routes also include: medical facilities, downtown, high school, 
neighborhoods, Dell and Walmart.  

• Smart Trips Austin - engages communities to try multi-modal transportation options and shift 
away from driving alone. The program focuses on personal interactions and helps individuals to 
overcome real and perceived barriers through hand-delivered transportation information and 
incentives, community tabling, and walking/biking/transit events. 



• Movability - Central Texas’ first and only transportation management association, working with 
employers to improve the regions’ economic vitality by connecting commuters with mobility 
options that save time and money. Movability has over 50-member organizations from both the 
private and public sector, representing over 60,000 commuters. The staff of the non-profit 
provide professional services directly to employers, including strategic mobility planning, 
developing telework and commute benefit policies, designing communication plans, assisting 
with employee education, program tracking, and more. 

• Commute Solutions – the Commute Solutions program is a regional transportation demand 
management tool for addressing transportation challenges in the region. The program aims to 
be a “one-stop” sustainable transportation resource in Central Texas, promoting options such 
as carpools, vanpools, transit, bicycling, teleworking and walking. Partnering employers have 
access to resources including training for employees, comprehensive regional commute 
website, ride matching/data collection tool, and regional trip reduction contests and 
incentives.  
 

Please see Attachment D for more information on these and other TDM initiatives in the region.  
 

Measuring Success 
Measuring success for integrated TDM is difficult; there is not a one size fits all metric. Fortunately, 
there is a body of work outlining which metrics work best for various TDM strategies and purposes. The 
region can incorporate metric identification options into the CAMPO/Movability Regional TDM Plan 
(which received STP funding in 2018), and into the work of the regional TDM Coordinating Committee 
hosted by CAPCOG. 
 
Policy Considerations  
Urbanized MSAs have long recognized the value of both programmatic and infrastructure TDM. Their 
MPOs invest in TDM using Federal Surface Transportation Program (STP) or Congestion Mitigation/Air 
Quality (CMAC) funds, coupled with Transportation Development Credits (TDCs). For example, AAMPO 
awarded STP funds and TDCs to AACOG for their Commute Solutions program. 
 
TDM infrastructure and programmatic efforts are woven into the long-range transportations plans for 
the Houston, Dallas/Ft. Worth and San Antonio MSAs. MPOs and COGs both take advantage of 
investing in TDM opportunities. HGAC, NCTCOG, and AAMPO/AACOG have engaged in TDM efforts 
continuously for more than 20 years.  
 
CAMPO has a long history of support for programmatic TDM; there are many examples in the CAMPO 
2040 Plan. Investment in infrastructure TDM is ample, although these projects are usualy not identified 
specifically as a regional strategy for managing transportation demand. 
 
From 1994-2017 CAMPO’s acclaimed Commute Solutions promoted multiple TDM options. Funding 
came through STP funds, planning funds (PL), and local dollars. TDCs were not used. CAMPO relocated 
Commute Solutions to CAPCOG in 2017. In its new institutional home Commute Solutions is working to 
secure sustainable funding, and is exploring funding mechanisms other COGs have used successfully. 
   



In 2018, CAMPO Board awarded STP funds for TDM projects to CAPCOG (for Commute Solutions), 
Capital Metro, and City of Austin. Both CAPCOG and Capital Metro applied for TDCs to use for local 
match; to date neither agency has been awarded the requested TDCs.  
 
 Proposed Policy Revisions for Integration into Applicable CAMPO Documents 
Our challenges are best addressed through a holistic TDM strategy that merges, and recognizes the 
importance of, both programmatic and infrastructure TDM projects and programs.  
We propose amending the CAMPO 2040 Plan, and carrying forward to the CAMPO 2045 Plan and 
applicable documents and policies, the following revisions to achieve this holistic strategy: 
 
1) CAMPO 2040 Plan Glossary (Appendix B) 

a) Revise the definitions of Transportation Demand Management and Transportation Systems 
Management to reflect the following melded definition of Transportation Demand 
Management:  

• Transportation Demand Management (TDM) comprises programmatic and 
infrastructure components that contribute to an optimally efficient, multi-modal 
transportation system. TDM provides travelers, including those who drive alone, with 
choices. It prioritizes moving people. TDM’s goals are to: improve travel reliability and 
air quality, manage congestion, and stimulate economic development.  
 

2) CAMPO 2040 Plan Congestion Management and Transportation Demand Management Policies 
(Appendix C) 
a) Amend Policy 3 to state “Use transportation investments to support continued reduction of per 

capita vehicle miles and vehicle hours traveled, and improved travel time reliability.” 
3) CAMPO 2040 Plan Compliance and Funding Policies (Appendix C) 

a) Add Policy 2.1 to state “Target 5% of available CAMPO discretionary federal funding (STP) to 
programmatic TDM projects and programs, and allow the use of TDCs for local match if the 
applicant supplies either a secondary project (their own or from another agency) or an 
adequate qualitative demonstration.”  

b) Add Policy 2.2 to state “In project calls for available CAMPO discretionary federal funding, the 
scoring criteria will award extra points for infrastructure projects that incorporate TDM 
elements.  

 
Attachment A – Current CAMPO 2040 Plan Definitions and Policies 
Attachment B -  CAMPO 2040 Plan Definitions and Policies – Proposed Revisions, Redline Version 
Attachment C -  CAMPO 2040 Plan Definitions and Policies – Proposed Revisions, Clean Version 
Attachment D -  Regional TDM Initiatives 
 
 
 



  Attachment A 

Current CAMPO 2040 Plan Definitions and Policies 

TSM and TDM Definitions – (Appendix B, page 219)  

Transportation Systems Management (TSM): A program to reduce congestion and improve 
traffic flow through traffic signal synchronization, freeway operations improvements (e.g., 
changeable message signs and ramp metering), and incident management (clearing accidents 
and breakdowns quickly). Other methods can include bus pullouts, intersection improvements 
and queue jumper lanes, where appropriate.  

Travel Demand Management (TDM): Achieving greater transportation system efficiency by 
managing or decreasing the demand for auto-related travel. This typically includes alternatives 
to single occupant vehicles (transit, carpool, vanpool), incentives/disincentives (congestions 
pricing, HOV lanes), and alternative work environments (teleworking, flex scheduling).  

Congestion Management and Transportation Demand Management Policies (Appendix C, 
page 220) 

Policy 3.   Use transportation investments to support continued reduction of per capita vehicle 
miles traveled.  

Policy 4.   Consider transportation improvements that increase person-carrying capacity, rather 
than vehicle-carrying capacity of the regional transportation system.  

Policy 5.   Expand the public, and other, transportation systems to keep up with the region’s 
mobility needs over time.  

Plan Compliance and Funding Policies (Appendix C, page 220) 

Policy 1.  Target 50 percent of available CAMPO discretionary federal funding (STP-MM) to 
support development of the mixed-use activity centers indicated on the CAMPO Centers Map. 
(The same project may address both the 15 percent bicycle and pedestrian, and the 50 percent 
Centers target policies.) 

Policy 2.  Target 15% of available CAMPO discretionary federal funding (STP-MM) to bicycle and 
pedestrian projects through the CAMPO TIP process. (The same project may address both the 
15 percent bicycle and pedestrian, and the 50 percent Centers target policies.) 

  



  Attachment B 

CAMPO 2040 Plan Definitions and Policies – Proposed Revisions, Redline Version 

TSM and TDM Definitions – (Appendix B, page 219)  

Transportation Systems Management (TSM): A program to reduce congestion and improve 
traffic flow through traffic signal synchronization, freeway operations improvements (e.g., 
changeable message signs and ramp metering), and incident management (clearing accidents 
and breakdowns quickly). Other methods can include bus pullouts, intersection improvements 
and queue jumper lanes, where appropriate.  

Travel Demand Management (TDM): Achieving greater transportation system efficiency by 
managing or decreasing the demand for auto-related travel. This typically includes alternatives 
to single occupant vehicles (transit, carpool, vanpool), incentives/disincentives (congestions 
pricing, HOV lanes), and alternative work environments (teleworking, flex scheduling).  

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) comprises programmatic and infrastructure 
components that contribute to an optimally efficient, multi-modal transportation system. TDM 
provides travelers, including those who drive alone, with choices. It prioritizes moving people. 
TDM’s goals are to: improve travel reliability and air quality, manage congestion, and stimulate 
economic development.  

Congestion Management and Transportation Demand Management Policies (Appendix C, 
page 220) 

Policy 3.   Use transportation investments to support continued reduction of per capita vehicle 
miles and vehicle hours traveled, and improved travel time reliability.  

Policy 4.   Consider transportation improvements that increase person-carrying capacity, rather 
than vehicle-carrying capacity of the regional transportation system.  

Policy 5.   Expand the public, and other, transportation systems to keep up with the region’s 
mobility needs over time.  

Plan Compliance and Funding Policies (Appendix C, page 220) 

Policy 1.  Target 50 percent of available CAMPO discretionary federal funding (STP-MM) to 
support development of the mixed-use activity centers indicated on the CAMPO Centers Map. 
(The same project may address both the 15 percent bicycle and pedestrian, and the 50 percent 
Centers target policies.) 

Policy 2.  Target 15% of available CAMPO discretionary federal funding (STP-MM) to bicycle and 
pedestrian projects through the CAMPO TIP process. (The same project may address both the 
15 percent bicycle and pedestrian, and the 50 percent Centers target policies.) 

Policy 2.1 Target 5% of available CAMPO discretionary federal funding (STP) to programmatic 
TDM projects and programs, and allow the use of TDCs for local match if the applicant supplies 
either a secondary project (their own or from another agency) or an adequate qualitative 
demonstration. 



  Attachment B 

Policy 2.2  In project calls for available CAMPO discretionary federal funding, the scoring criteria 
will award extra points for infrastructure projects that incorporate TDM elements.  

   

  



  Attachment C 

CAMPO 2040 Plan Definitions and Policies - Proposed Revisions, Clean Version 

Transportation Demand Management Definition (Appendix B, page 219) Delete current TDM 
and TSM definitions and replace with the following definition.  

Transportation Demand Management: Transportation Demand Management (TDM) comprises 
programmatic and infrastructure components that contribute to an optimally efficient, multi-
modal transportation system. TDM provides travelers, including those who drive alone, with 
choices. It prioritizes moving people. TDM’s goals are to: improve travel reliability and air 
quality, manage congestion, and stimulate economic development.  

Congestion Management and Transportation Demand Management Policies (Appendix C, page 
220) Revise Policy 3 

Policy 3: Use transportation investments to support continued reduction of per capita vehicle 
miles and vehicle hours traveled, and improved travel time reliability. 

Plan Compliance and Funding Policies (Appendix C, page 220) Add Policies 2.1 and 2.2 

Policy 2.1 Target 5% of available CAMPO discretionary federal funding (STP) to programmatic 
TDM projects and programs, and allow the use of TDCs for local match if the applicant supplies 
either a secondary project (their own or from another agency) or an adequate qualitative 
demonstration. 

Policy 2.2 In project calls for available CAMPO discretionary federal funding, the scoring criteria 
will award extra points for infrastructure projects that incorporate TDM elements. 

 

 

 



Regional TDM Initiatives 

Metro Ride Share 

The MetroRideShare program is Austin’s regional vanpool program.  The program provides eligible 

groups of 5-12 riders with a month-to-month vanpool lease agreement including vehicle (7, 8 and 12-

seats), insurance, maintenance, 24-hour roadside assistance and an optional fuel purchasing 

program.  The program is operated by a contracted service provider and subsidized by Capital 

Metro.  The goal of the program is to reduce the use of single occupant vehicles during peak travel times 

to reduce congestion and improve air quality. 

  Since January 2014, the RideShare program has been operated by a contracted service provider to 

provide turn-key vanpool services.  Over five-years, the program has grown from 102 to 253 vanpool 

groups, with more than 1,345 program participants.  The average round-trip commute is 75 miles.  The 

future growth of the program is anticipated to be 20 additional vanpools per year.   

Capital Metro offers monthly subsidies to two types of vanpool groups: (1) In-Service-Area (ISA) groups 

that operate entirely within the Capital Metro service area (2) Out-of-Service-Area (OSA) groups with at 

least an origin or destination inside the Capital Metro service area.  In-Service-Area groups receive a 

$500 monthly subsidy, while Out-Of-Service-Area groups receive a $450 monthly subsidy.  The subsidy is 

used to help offset the monthly lease cost. Program participants share the cost of the monthly lease, 

fuel, tolls and any other commute-related expenses.  The monthly cost is based on the vehicle type 

chosen by the group, commute distance and the number of paying riders.  Currently, there are 84 ISA 

groups and 169 OSA groups. 

Round Rock Transit Master Plan 

The Round Rock Transit Master Plan (TMP) was developed in 2015 to provide a blueprint for improving 

local mobility and regional connectivity over the next 10 years. The TMP is a road map of future transit 

options the city council can implement incrementally, as expansion is needed, and funds are available. It 

looks at all options available for providing transit services, continued third-party contracting, bringing 

the service in-house, and contracting with Capital Metro. The TMP options also takes into consideration 

regional transit activities, such as Project Connect; other public transportation providers, such as Capital 

Metro and CARTS; and other municipality’s transit activities, such as Georgetown and Pflugerville. In 

addition, the City will continue to partner with community entities who desire to bring more 

transportation options to the region. 

In 2017, Round Rock entered into an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with Capital Metro to operate three 

fixed routes and one commuter bus route. This fixed route service began in August 2017 and the 

commuter bus route started in November 2017. The four routes have nearly 48,000 boardings. The 

Attachment D



Route 980 North MoPac Express is a commuter route into downtown Austin, utilizing the MoPac 

managed lanes. Capital Metro and the City of Round Rock share the cost of the commuter route. The 

Route 50 Round Rock Howard Station travels north and south, between Austin Community College’s 

Round Rock Campus and connecting Capital Metro at MetroRail Howard Station. The Route 51 Round 

Rock Circulator travels east and west within Round Rock serving medical facilities, downtown, high 

school, neighborhoods, Dell and Walmart. The Route 52 Tech Ridge Limited is a reverse commute 

service from Tech Ridge to the industrial southwest corner of Round Rock. This route travels from the 

Tech Ridge Park & Ride to the Round Rock Transit Center, with limited stops. Paratransit service is also 

offered through the City of Round Rock in a 1.5-mile radius, the maximum allowed by law, of routes 

50 and 51.  

  

Previously, the City of Round Rock contracted with CARTS for transit services. Beginning in June 2012, 

the City began providing Demand Response Bus Service under a turnkey contract for citizens living in the 

city limits. In 2013, the City expanded the service beyond its city limits and, in 2014, added a job-access 

reverse commute route from Capital Metro’s Tech Ridge Park and Ride to Sears Teleserv in Round 

Rock.   

  

Round Rock also built an Intermodal Transit Facility that includes a ticket office and parking garage with 

110 spaces. All bus routes travel through this facility for connectivity. In partnership with CARTS, they 

moved their operations to the Intermodal Transit Facility. This provides additional connectivity for 

people travelling into and out of the Williamson County area, as well as improves access to Greyhound 

bus system. 

 



H O W  M O B I L I T Y   P R O G R A M S    
B E N E F I T  E M P L O Y E R S

Employers throughout Central Texas feel the impacts of traffic congestion. New infrastructure can help, but it is a 
slow and costly process. Implementing transportation demand management (TDM) is something every employer 

can do almost immediately at a low cost. 
“Solving traffic in the Austin area takes all of us: government agencies, transportation providers, private sector

employers, and commuters who can choose each day to be part of the solution.” - Austin Mayor Steve Adler

R E C R U I T M E N T  A N D  R E T E N T I O N

of American workers want mobility benefits. Employers 
with mobility policies and commuter benefits are 

better able to recruit talented employees.  

86 % 
of workers see better commutes as a reason to switch 
jobs. Movability members enjoy higher retention rates, 
some of them well above the national average.

33 % 

COST SAVINGS

45-60 minutes
in lost time and fuel are wasted annually sitting in 
traffic. Driving alone also drives up parking costs for 
employers. Save money when employees use commute 
alternatives, reducing the demand for parking and 
saving time.

$10 billion
is the average commute time from Round Rock to 

Central Austin. Time wasted in traffic is a drain on 
bottom lines. Mobility policies help employees 

connect without enduring congested traffic.

3 in 5
Texas companies awarded the national Best Workplaces 

for Commuters are located in the Austin area. Earn 
recognition for your leadership with a proactive 

approach to mobility.   

LEAD THE WAY "Joining Movability has enabled Samsung to collaborate with
partners and create mobility solutions that work best for us. As a

large facility with many employees driving alone, we value
working with Movability to create solutions like ridesharing and

incentives that help us meet our goals. The ability to offer
commute resources is also a valuable recruitment tool that we
think will boost our company culture and create an enjoyable
workplace. Thank you to Movability for providing us with the

tools and resources to change the mindset of individuals
commuting to and from work and throughout the city."  

- Julie Fisher, Samsung Austin Semiconductor



Attachment A 

Regional TDM Initiatives  

Metro Ride Share 

The MetroRideShare program is Austin’s regional vanpool program.  The program provides eligible 

groups of 5-12 riders with a month-to-month vanpool lease agreement including vehicle (7, 8 and 12-

seats), insurance, maintenance, 24-hour roadside assistance and an optional fuel purchasing 

program.  The program is operated by a contracted service provider and subsidized by Capital 

Metro.  The goal of the program is to reduce the use of single occupant vehicles during peak travel times 

to reduce congestion and improve air quality. 

 

  Since January 2014, the RideShare program has been operated by a contracted service provider to 

provide turn-key vanpool services.  Over five-years, the program has grown from 102 to 253 vanpool 

groups, with more than 1,345 program participants.  The average round-trip commute is 75 miles.  The 

future growth of the program is anticipated to be 20 additional vanpools per year.   

 

Capital Metro offers monthly subsidies to two types of vanpool groups: (1) In-Service-Area (ISA) groups 

that operate entirely within the Capital Metro service area (2) Out-of-Service-Area (OSA) groups with at 

least an origin or destination inside the Capital Metro service area.  In-Service-Area groups receive a 

$500 monthly subsidy, while Out-Of-Service-Area groups receive a $450 monthly subsidy.  The subsidy is 

used to help offset the monthly lease cost. Program participants share the cost of the monthly lease, 

fuel, tolls and any other commute-related expenses.  The monthly cost is based on the vehicle type 

chosen by the group, commute distance and the number of paying riders.  Currently, there are 84 ISA 

groups and 169 OSA groups. 

 

Round Rock Transit Master Plan 
 
The Round Rock Transit Master Plan (TMP) was developed in 2015 to provide a blueprint for improving 

local mobility and regional connectivity over the next 10 years. The TMP is a road map of future transit 

options the city council can implement incrementally, as expansion is needed, and funds are available. It 

looks at all options available for providing transit services, continued third-party contracting, bringing 

the service in-house, and contracting with Capital Metro. The TMP options also takes into consideration 

regional transit activities, such as Project Connect; other public transportation providers, such as Capital 

Metro and CARTS; and other municipality’s transit activities, such as Georgetown and Pflugerville. In 

addition, the City will continue to partner with community entities who desire to bring more 

transportation options to the region.  

  

In 2017, Round Rock entered into an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with Capital Metro to operate three 

fixed routes and one commuter bus route. This fixed route service began in August 2017 and the 

commuter bus route started in November 2017. The four routes have nearly 48,000 boardings. The 



Route 980 North MoPac Express is a commuter route into downtown Austin, utilizing the MoPac 

managed lanes. Capital Metro and the City of Round Rock share the cost of the commuter route. The 

Route 50 Round Rock Howard Station travels north and south, between Austin Community College’s 

Round Rock Campus and connecting Capital Metro at MetroRail Howard Station. The Route 51 Round 

Rock Circulator travels east and west within Round Rock serving medical facilities, downtown, high 

school, neighborhoods, Dell and Walmart. The Route 52 Tech Ridge Limited is a reverse commute 

service from Tech Ridge to the industrial southwest corner of Round Rock. This route travels from the 

Tech Ridge Park & Ride to the Round Rock Transit Center, with limited stops. Paratransit service is also 

offered through the City of Round Rock in a 1.5-mile radius, the maximum allowed by law, of routes 

50 and 51.  

  

Previously, the City of Round Rock contracted with CARTS for transit services. Beginning in June 2012, 

the City began providing Demand Response Bus Service under a turnkey contract for citizens living in the 

city limits. In 2013, the City expanded the service beyond its city limits and, in 2014, added a job-access 

reverse commute route from Capital Metro’s Tech Ridge Park and Ride to Sears Teleserv in Round 

Rock.   

  

Round Rock also built an Intermodal Transit Facility that includes a ticket office and parking garage with 

110 spaces. All bus routes travel through this facility for connectivity. In partnership with CARTS, they 

moved their operations to the Intermodal Transit Facility. This provides additional connectivity for 

people travelling into and out of the Williamson County area, as well as improves access to Greyhound 

bus system. 

 



H O W  M O B I L I T Y   P R O G R A M S    
B E N E F I T  E M P L O Y E R S

Employers throughout Central Texas feel the impacts of traffic congestion. New infrastructure can help, but it is a 
slow and costly process. Implementing transportation demand management (TDM) is something every employer 

can do almost immediately at a low cost. 
“Solving traffic in the Austin area takes all of us: government agencies, transportation providers, private sector

employers, and commuters who can choose each day to be part of the solution.” - Austin Mayor Steve Adler

R E C R U I T M E N T  A N D  R E T E N T I O N

of American workers want mobility benefits. Employers 
with mobility policies and commuter benefits are 

better able to recruit talented employees.  

86 % 
of workers see better commutes as a reason to switch 
jobs. Movability members enjoy higher retention rates, 
some of them well above the national average.

33 % 

COST SAVINGS

45-60 minutes
in lost time and fuel are wasted annually sitting in 
traffic. Driving alone also drives up parking costs for 
employers. Save money when employees use commute 
alternatives, reducing the demand for parking and 
saving time.

$10 billion
is the average commute time from Round Rock to 

Central Austin. Time wasted in traffic is a drain on 
bottom lines. Mobility policies help employees 

connect without enduring congested traffic.

3 in 5
Texas companies awarded the national Best Workplaces 

for Commuters are located in the Austin area. Earn 
recognition for your leadership with a proactive 

approach to mobility.   

LEAD THE WAY "Joining Movability has enabled Samsung to collaborate with
partners and create mobility solutions that work best for us. As a

large facility with many employees driving alone, we value
working with Movability to create solutions like ridesharing and

incentives that help us meet our goals. The ability to offer
commute resources is also a valuable recruitment tool that we
think will boost our company culture and create an enjoyable
workplace. Thank you to Movability for providing us with the

tools and resources to change the mindset of individuals
commuting to and from work and throughout the city."  

- Julie Fisher, Samsung Austin Semiconductor



Resolution 2019-9-10 

Acknowledging the Transportation Policy Board’s Approval of the Award of Funding for a 

Transportation Demand Management Program 

WHEREAS, pursuant to federal law, the Governor of the State of Texas designated the Capital Area 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) as the Metropolitan Planning Organization for the Austin 

region in 1973; and    

WHEREAS, CAMPO’s Transportation Policy Board is the regional forum for cooperative decision-

making regarding transportation issues in Bastrop, Burnet, Caldwell, Hays, Travis and Williamson Counties 

in Central Texas; and 

WHEREAS, the mission of a Metropolitan Planning Organization is to conduct a coordinated, 

comprehensive and continuous metropolitan transportation planning process; and  

WHEREAS, transportation demand management (TDM) is comprised of a series of strategies with the 

objective of reducing the strain on a transportation network without adding new capacity; and 

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2018, the Transportation Policy Board reserved $498,720 of 

Surface Transportation Block Grant funds for use on TDM projects; and

WHEREAS, as the region’s transportation planning body, CAMPO is the entity best positioned to 

advance the progress of TDM in the region; and  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the CAMPO Transportation Policy Board hereby votes 

to approve the allocation of $498,720 in Surface Transportation Block Group funds to CAMPO for use 

on TDM projects as reflected in this Resolution; and 

Hereby orders the recording of this resolution in the minutes of the Transportation Policy Board; and 



 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board delegates the signing of necessary documents to the Board 

Chair. 

 

The above resolution being read, a motion to adopt the Regional Transportation Demand Management Plan as 

reflected was made on September 9, 2019 by __________________ duly seconded by _________________. 

 

 

 

 

 

Ayes:  

 

Nays:  

 

Abstain:  

 

Absent and Not Voting:  

 

SIGNED this 9th day of September 2019. 

 

   

Chair, CAMPO Board  

 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

        

Executive Director, CAMPO 



Date: September 9, 2019
Continued From: June 10, 2019

Action Requested: Approval

To: Transportation Policy Board

From: Mr. Ashby Johnson, CAMPO Executive Director
Agenda Item: 10

Subject: Discussion and Approval of Transfer of Ownership, Operations and Maintenance of 
Commute Solutions Program to CAMPO

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends the Transportation Policy Board approve the interlocal agreement transferring the 
Commute Solutions Program back to CAMPO from the Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG). 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
On March 6, 2017, the Transportation Policy Board voted to transfer the Commute Solutions Program to
CAPCOG. At the time, CAMPO did not possess the staffing capable of effectively running the program 
and CAPCOG expressed interest in its management. Since then, CAMPO has increased its staffing levels 
and secured the services of Freese and Nichols as a general planning consultant that can provide additional 
staff on an as-needed basis. The Freese and Nichols team has Cambridge Systematics as a subconsultant.  
Cambridge Systematics is a national leader in TDM development and implementation. CAMPO staff used 
Cambridge Systematics to assist in the development of the draft final TDM Plan. Additionally, CAMPO 
now has an excellent outreach staff and also has the additional outreach services of CD&P as part of the
general planning consultant team. These resources now allow CAMPO to adequately operate and maintain 
the program to promote TDM solutions region-wide.  

Under the terms of this ILA, CAPCOG will administer the Regional Transit Coordinating Committee 
(RTCC) under guidance from CAMPO. Additionally, CAPCOG and CAMPO will collaborate on areas 
related to TDM and general transportation planning public outreach in rural areas of the CAMPO region, 
incident management strategies and operations, emergency response training, and other areas where 
appropriate.

The transition period for the transfer will occur beginning September 2019 and ending no later than April
2020.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
The funds to administer the RTCC are provided by the Texas Department of Transportation. Through this 
agreement and depending upon availability of state funding and performance, CAMPO will allocate 
$35,000 for each fiscal year starting in 2020-2022 to CAPCOG to administer the RTCC under 
guidance from CAMPO. Additionally, CAMPO will provide another $120,000 (depending upon
availability of funding, approval of the TPB, and performance) to CAPCOG for assistance with TDM-
related activities, incident management, and emergency response training.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

Attachment A – CAMPO-CAPCOG ILA



   Date:  September 9, 2019 
  Continued From:        N/A 

 Action Requested: None  

  

To: Transportation Policy Board 

From: Mr. Ashby Johnson, CAMPO Executive Director 

Agenda Item: 11 

Subject: Discussion on Potentially Adding the City of Kyle as a Non-Voting Member of the 

Transportation Policy Board 

RECOMMENDATION 

None.  

 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Joint Powers Agreement specifies that cities that meet the 50,000 population threshold as per the 

Census Annual Update are automatically granted voting membership on the TPB.  The Annual Update 

was released in May 2019.   
 

The City of Kyle in Hays County has a population of 46,874 as of the last Census Annual Update.  

The Joint Powers Agreement only provides two ways an entity may become a board member:  

automatically as a voting member after its population reaches 50,000 in population or as a non-voting 

member upon the majority vote of the policy board.   

 

Federal and state law allow MPOs to add entities as voting members with less than a 50,000 population.  

Please reference 23 USC 134(d)(3)(A) and 23 CFR 450.310(d)(3)(i) for the applicable language.  

However, the by-laws of our MPO require our board to act in accord with the Joint Powers agreement on 

such matters. 

 

The Joint Powers Agreement does not otherwise specifically address whether a local government can be 

given voting membership before reaching the 50,000 population threshold.  An issue that is presented by 

this item is whether the two ways to become a board member as set forth in the Joint Powers Agreement 

are exclusive or whether the fact that there is not a specific prohibition against the policy board bringing in 

as a voting member an entity with a population under 50,000 leaves open that possibility for policy board 

action. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

None. 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Attachment A –  Excerpted Section of 23 USC 134(d)(3)(A) and  

Attachment B –  Excerpted Section of 23 CFR 450.310(d)(3)(i) 

  

 



Excerpted Section of 23 USC 134 
 

(a)POLICY.—It is in the national interest— 

(1) 

to encourage and promote the safe and efficient management, operation, and development of 

surface transportation systems that will serve the mobility needs of people and freight, foster 

economic growth and development within and between States and urbanized areas, and take into 

consideration resiliency needs while minimizing transportation-related fuel consumption and air 

pollution through metropolitan and statewide transportation planning processes identified in this 

chapter; and 

(2) 

to encourage the continued improvement and evolution of the metropolitan and statewide 

transportation planning processes by metropolitan planning organizations, State departments of 

transportation, and public transit operators as guided by the planning factors identified in 

subsection (h) and section 135(d). 

(b)DEFINITIONS.—In this section and section 135, the following definitions apply: 

(1)METROPOLITAN PLANNING AREA.— 

The term “metropolitan planning area” means the geographic area determined by agreement 

between the metropolitan planning organization for the area and the Governor under subsection 

(e). 

(2)METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION.— 

The term “metropolitan planning organization” means the policy board of an organization 

established as a result of the designation process under subsection (d). 

(3)NONMETROPOLITAN AREA.— 

The term “nonmetropolitan area” means a geographic area outside designated metropolitan 

planning areas. 

(4)NONMETROPOLITAN LOCAL OFFICIAL.— 

The term “nonmetropolitan local official” means elected and appointed officials of general 

purpose local government in a nonmetropolitan area with responsibility for transportation. 

(5)REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION.— 

The term “regional transportation planning organization” means a policy board of an 

organization established as the result of a designation under section 135(m). 

(6)TIP.— 

The term “TIP” means a transportation improvement program developed by a metropolitan 

planning organization under subsection (j). 

(7)URBANIZED AREA.— 

The term “urbanized area” means a geographic area with a population of 50,000 or more, as 

determined by the Bureau of the Census. 

(c)GENERAL REQUIREMENTS.— 

(1)DEVELOPMENT OF LONG-RANGE PLANS AND TIPS.— 

To accomplish the objectives in subsection (a), metropolitan planning organizations designated 

under subsection (d), in cooperation with the State and public transportation operators, shall 

develop long-range transportation plans and transportation improvement programs through a 

performance-driven, outcome-based approach to planning for metropolitan areas of the State. 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134


(2)CONTENTS.— 

The plans and TIPs for each metropolitan area shall provide for the development and integrated 

management and operation of transportation systems and facilities (including accessible 

pedestrian walkways, bicycle transportation facilities, and intermodal facilities that support 

intercity transportation, including intercity buses and intercity bus facilities and commuter 

vanpool providers) that will function as an intermodal transportation system for the metropolitan 

planning area and as an integral part of an intermodal transportation system for the State and the 

United States. 

(3)PROCESS OF DEVELOPMENT.— 

The process for developing the plans and TIPs shall provide for consideration of all modes of 

transportation and shall be continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive to the degree appropriate, 

based on the complexity of the transportation problems to be addressed. 

(d)DESIGNATION OF .— 

(1)IN GENERAL.—To carry out the transportation planning process required by this section, 

a metropolitan planning organization shall be designated for each urbanized area with a 

population of more than 50,000 individuals— 

(A) 

by agreement between the Governor and units of general purpose local government that together 

represent at least 75 percent of the affected population (including the largest incorporated city 

(based on population) as determined by the Bureau of the Census); or 

(B) 

in accordance with procedures established by applicable State or local law. 

(2)STRUCTURE.—Not later than 2 years after the date of enactment of MAP-21, 

each metropolitan planning organization that serves an area designated as a transportation 

management area shall consist of— 

(A) 

local elected officials; 

(B) 

officials of public agencies that administer or operate major modes of transportation in the 

metropolitan area, including representation by providers of public transportation; and 

(C) 

appropriate State officials. 

(3)REPRESENTATION.— 

(A)In general.— 

Designation or selection of officials or representatives under paragraph (2) shall be determined 

by the metropolitan planning organization according to the bylaws or enabling statute of the 

organization. 

(B)Public transportation representative.— 

Subject to the bylaws or enabling statute of the metropolitan planning organization, a 

representative of a provider of public transportation may also serve as a representative of a local 

municipality. 

(C)Powers of certain officials.— 

An official described in paragraph (2)(B) shall have responsibilities, actions, duties, voting 

rights, and any other authority commensurate with other officials described in paragraph (2). 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134
https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/23/134


Excerpted Section of 23 CFR 450 

§450.310   Metropolitan planning organization designation and redesignation. 

(a) To carry out the metropolitan transportation planning process under this subpart, an 

MPO shall be designated for each urbanized area with a population of more than 50,000 

individuals (as determined by the Bureau of the Census). 

(b) MPO designation shall be made by agreement between the Governor and units of 

general purpose local government that together represent at least 75 percent of the affected 

population (including the largest incorporated city, based on population, as named by the Bureau 

of the Census) or in accordance with procedures established by applicable State or local law. 

(c) The FHWA and the FTA shall identify as a TMA each urbanized area with a population 

of over 200,000 individuals, as defined by the Bureau of the Census. The FHWA and the FTA 

shall also designate any urbanized area as a TMA on the request of the Governor and the MPO 

designated for that area. 

(d) TMA structure: 

(1) Not later than October 1, 2014, each metropolitan planning organization that serves a 

designated TMA shall consist of: 

(i) Local elected officials; 

(ii) Officials of public agencies that administer or operate major modes of transportation in 

the metropolitan area, including representation by providers of public transportation; and 

(iii) Appropriate State officials. 

(2) An MPO may be restructured to meet the requirements of this paragraph (d) without 

undertaking a redesignation. 

(3) Representation. (i) Designation or selection of officials or representatives under 

paragraph (d)(1) of this section shall be determined by the MPO according to the bylaws or 

enabling statute of the organization. 

 



 Date:                  September 9, 2019 
  Continued From:                                       N/A 

     Action Requested:                             Information 

  
 

To: 
 

Transportation Policy Board 
 

From: 
 

Mr. Ryan Collins, Short-Range Planning Manager 

Agenda Item: 12 

Subject: Discussion of the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and Regional 

Transportation Plan (RTP) Amendment Cycle 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

None. This item is for informational purposes only. 
 

PURPOSE AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) is requesting amendments for the 2019 

– 2022 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and 2040 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) from 

local government and transportation agency project sponsors. The amendment cycle schedule is listed 

below. 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

None. 
 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The amendment cycle is part of the regularly scheduled amendment process. This amendment cycle does 

not allocate any new CAMPO funding for projects and only provides an opportunity for project sponsors 

to make changes to existing projects, add projects, or remove projects currently listed.  
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

None. 

Date Description 

9/20/2019 Amendment Request Form Due 

October Public Outreach 

10/7/2019 Transportation Policy Board Information and Public Hearing 

10/21/2019 Technical Advisory Committee Information 

11/4/2019 Transportation Policy Board Approval 

1/28/2020 Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Amendment Due 



 

 

 

 

 

 
Transportation Policy Board 

2020 Meeting Schedule 

 

 

All meetings will be held in Room 3.102 of the Joe C. Thompson Center, University of Texas Campus, 

Red River and Dean Keeton Streets and will begin promptly at 6:00 p.m. 

 

 

January 13, 2020 

 

February 10, 2020 

 

March 9, 2020 

 

April 6, 2020 

 

May 4, 2020 

 

June 8, 2020 

 

July 6, 2020 

 

August 10, 2020 

 

September 14, 2020 

 

October 12, 2020 

 

November 2, 2020 

 

December 7, 2020 



 

 

 
 

 

Technical Advisory Committee 

2020 Meeting Schedule 

 

 

All meetings will be held at the University Park Building, 3300 N. IH 35, Suite 300 and 

will begin promptly at 2:00 p.m. 

 

 

January 27, 2020 

 

February 24, 2020 

 

March 23, 2020 

 

April 20, 2020 

 

May 18, 2020 

 

June 22, 2020 

 

July 20, 2020 

 

August 24, 2020 

 

September 28, 2020 

 

October 19, 2020 

 

November 16, 2020 

 

December 14, 2020 


	Revised TPB Agenda 09-09-2019
	TPB Meeting Summary _June 10 2019
	Item 7A UPWP Amendment  6 Background
	FY 2018  2019 UPWP_amendment 6
	Item 7A - Resolution Draft (September 9, 2019)
	Item 7B UPWP Amendment  1 Background
	FY 2020 2021 UPWP_Amendment 1_ 09092019
	Item 7B - Resolution Draft (September, 2019) am 1
	Item 8 - Draft Regional TDM Plan_Background
	Attachment 1 - TDMPlan_20190829
	CAMPO TDM Appendix 20190829.pdf
	Table of Contents
	Basics of TDM
	Shared Mobility and Employer Programs
	Transit Incentives
	Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)
	Vanpooling
	Expanded Transit Service
	Shared Mobility and TNCs (Uber, Lyft, taxis)
	Carpools
	Teleworking
	Bicycle Facilities
	Bike to Work
	Bike Share

	Traveler Information
	Pedestrian Programs
	Electric Vehicles
	Flexible Emergency/Guaranteed Ride Home Programs
	Parking Management
	Current Parking Ordinances
	Parking Subsidies

	Autonomous/Self-Driving Vehicles
	Flex Work Hours (peak spreading, 4/10 or 9/9s)
	Managed Lanes
	Toll-Managed, or Express Lanes
	Hard Shoulder Running
	Transit on Shoulder

	Stakeholder Interviews
	Interview Questions
	Interview Minutes
	Planner at Bastrop County
	Mobility Innovation Manager at Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority
	Director of Engineering & CIP and Senior Engineer at City of San Marcos
	Assistant Director of Transportation Operations at TxDOT Austin District
	Planner Senior, Planner, and Environmental Project Manager at Travis County
	Regional Coordination Manager, Regional Coordination Planner, and Sustainability Officer at Capital Metro
	Regional Planning and Services Assistant Director at CapCOG
	TDM Program Manager at the City of Austin
	Executive Director at Movability
	Vice President of Regional Infrastructure and Mobility at the Greater Austin Chamber of Commerce
	Facilities Manager at Google
	EHS and Sustainability Professional at Samsung
	Program Manager at Whole Foods Market
	Project Delivery Supervisor at TxDOT Austin District


	FHWA TDM Workshop – August 2018
	Executive Summary
	Self-Assessment Findings
	Regional Vision and Goals
	Setting Objectives for TDM
	Definition of Performance Measures
	Assessment and Selection of Strategies and Programs to Support Objectives
	Integration of Strategies into Plans and Funding Programs
	Monitoring Evaluation of Progress toward objectives

	Full Workshop Report – Published by FHWA
	Workshop Overview

	1. TSMO and TDM Overview
	2. Workshop Findings
	DRCOG Presentation
	2.1 Self-Assessment Findings
	Regional Vision and Goals
	Setting Objectives for TDM
	Definition of Performance Measures
	Assessment and Selection of Programs to Support Objectives
	Integration of Strategies into Plans and Funding Programs
	Monitoring and Evaluation of Progress toward Objectives


	3. Identified Actions
	4. Next Steps
	Appendix A. List of Attendees
	Appendix B. Handout #1 – (Regional) Self-Assessment Exercise
	Appendix C. Handout #2 – List of Potential Actions
	National Best Practices
	Atlanta Regional Commission 2013
	DRCOG/ Colorado DOT
	San Antonio
	San Francisco
	Puget Sound

	Non-Arterial networks



	Attachment 2 - Regional TDM Plan Comment Response Matrix
	Attachment 3 - Summary of Public Comments
	All comments
	Campo TDM plan comment
	Feedback_ TDM Plan
	TDM Comments
	TDM Plan comments

	SOS attachment
	SOS

	Resolution 2019-9-8
	Item 9 - Proposed TDM Policy Background Paper
	Attachment A -Feb TPB Meeting Cover Memo 020719
	Attachment B - Memo
	Memo TDM Policy Proposal FinalDocument
	Attachment A Current CAMPO 2040 Plan Transportation Demand Management Definitions and Policies current
	Attachment B Current CAMPO 2040 Plan Transportation Demand Management Definitions and Policies redline
	Attachment C CAMPO 2040 Plan Definitions and Policies propsed revisions clean
	Attachment D FINAL

	Attachment C - FINAL Document
	Resolution 2019-9-9
	Item 10 - Transfer of Commute Solutions Program
	Item 11- City of Kyle TPB Voting Representation
	Item 11 - Attachment A
	Item 11 - Attachment B
	Item 12- Amendment Cycle
	2020 TPB Meeting Schedule
	2020 TAC Meeting Schedule



